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EMPOWERING
reopierosiue 1.2+
CONFIDENCE CI.IENTS

1,224,000 active clients, up 133,000 in the year (2018: 1,091,000)
Net Promoter Scores™ of 48.7* (2018: 50.3)

£1.1BN
GROWTH

Growth of £7.7 billion in Assets under administration (AUA)
Net new business inflows of £7.3 billion (2018: £7.6bn)

The HL app for mobile and iPad
Our award-winning app is free to
download foriPhone, Android™
andiPad

AUA up 8% to £99.3 billion (2018: £91.6bn)
Fast and simple trading

Free live share prices for HL clients

Loginto know what's happening,
asit happens.

Swipe to start trading

Trade UK shares, bonds and funds
as wellas overseas shares from

Europe, the US and Canada.

Watch your favourites Profit before tax £305.8 million, up 5% (2018: £292.4m)
Create watghh’ststo keepaneyeon Dividend 42-0P, up 5% (2018. 40.0p)
yourfavouriteinvestments. Net revenue £480.5 million, up 7% (2018: £447.5m)

https://www.hl.co.uk/apps#mobile

1 NetPromotor Score, NPS and the NPS-related emoticons are registered service
marks, and Net Promoter Score and Net Promoter System are service marks of
Bain & Company Inc., Satmetrix Systems, Inc. and Fred Reichheld.
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Who we are

We are the UK's largest direct to investor
investment service. For more than 37 years,
we have helped investors save time, tax and
money on their investments. Today we are
trusted with more than £99 billion by
1,224,000 clients.

Hargreaves Lansdown is a secure, F TSE 100
company. We are based in Bristol where we
now employ over 1,580 people.

What we do

We aim to help you make more of your
investments by giving you the tools and
information to make your own informed
decisions. From our award-winning website
and app, which give you access to your
investments anytime, to our specialist
helpdesk, our aimis to simplify your financial
life by making it easy and straightforward to
manage your investments and pensions.

< FIND OUT MORE

Our market opportunities see page 6
The opportunities and challenges presented by our market environment.

Our business model see page 12
How we're driving value.

Our vision and strategy see page 20
How we're addressing our most significant opportunities and challenges.

Our progress see page 32
Theresults we've achieved this year.

Our Corporate social responsibility see page 40
Our commitments and aspirations.
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Group at aglance

We offer a lifelong, secure home for people’s savings and investments that offers
great value, an excellent service and makes their financial life easy.

Society's challenge

Large savings gap
and investment landscape
growing in complexity

Significant opportunitiesin

a growing addressable market

Our sustainable .
business model Delivering Our vision
Execution through value to clients, To be known as the best place for
compliant, controlled, secure em ployees, savers and investorsin the UK
and efficient platform shareholders Attractive service-driven offering

Using scale and market position 1ale Society across our target client segments
to benefit our stakeholders

Our client focus

Improving client
experience, delivering value
and driving growth

Competitive advantagesin people,
marketing and technology

02 = Contents Hargreaves Lansdown / Reportand Financial Statements 2019



2019 in numbers

We are a well established and trusted brand providing a
high quality service across a range of products and services.

898,000+

ISAaccounts

£40 BILLION+

ISAAUA

54,000+

Lifetime ISA clients

£9.4 BILLION

HL Fund Manager AUM

110,000+

Junior ISA accounts

45]

Corporate schemes

115,000+

Corporate scheme members

406,000+

SIPP accounts

£32 BILLION+

SIPP AUA

369,000+

Fund and Share accounts

£24 BILLION+

Fund and Share AUA

£1 BILLION

Active Savings AUA

£3.4 BILLION

Portfolio Management Service AUA

40.5%

Platforum UK D2C market share

< FIND OUT MORE

Our market opportunities see page 6

The opportunities and challenges presented by our market environment.

Our business model see page 12
How we're driving value.

Our vision and strategy see page 20
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Theresults we've achieved this year.

Our Corporate social responsibility see page 40
Our commitments and aspirations.
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Chair's statement

DEANNA OPPENHEIMER
CHAIR

EMBEDDING THE
RIGHT CULTURE

Embedding the right culture and
behaviour throughout the business

Overview and strategy

It gives me great pleasure to introduce

our 2019 Report and Financial Statements.
During the year we made significant
strategic and operational progress, which
enabled us to deliver strong growthin client
numbers and AUA leading to continued
growthin profit before tax, up 5% to

£305.8 million.

Empowering our clients to save and invest
with confidence is why we are in business.
As aBoard, we have strived to further
develop a healthy corporate culture that
drives behaviour focused on our core
values of:

« Puttingthe clients first;
« Goingthe extramile;

+ Doingtheright thing;

« Makingit easy; and

» Doingitbetter

04

To bring these values to life we have defined
behaviours that are beingembedded into
the way we set objectives and measure
performance across the whole business.
Delivering onthese values ensures we stay
true to our purpose.

It goes without saying that
returns for our shareholders
are of paramount importance.
In order to build a business
that is truly sustainable in

the long term, the Board has
placed increased focus on how
we engage with a much wider
range of stakeholders.

The Boardis committed to delivering high
standards of corporate governance and
embedding the right culture and behaviour
throughout the business. This determines
not only how we interact with our clients,
but also our employees, our shareholders,

= Contents

the communities in which we live, our
regulators and all parties we interact with
on aregular or one-off basis.

Many of you will be aware that on 3 June
2019 trading was suspended in the high
profile Woodford Equity Income Fund.

On behalf of Hargreaves Lansdown, | deeply
regret the distress, uncertainty and
inconvenience this has caused to many of
our clients. Our top priority has been, and
remains, to help our clients through this
difficult period and make sure that we are
doing everything we can to help them. We
have beeninregular contact with the
relevant parties to get a resolution and will
continue to keep our clients updated. We
are determinedto listen, reflectand learn
from thisissue and implement changes to
benefit our clientsin the future.

Board governance and changes

Backin August 2018, an external Board
effectiveness review was undertaken and
during this financial year we have worked
onimplementing various recommendations
in order to deliver even higher levels of
corporate governance. Examplesinclude an
in-depth review of the Group's governance
structure andimproving the Board's
involvement in the Group's move to
statistical modelling for setting Pillar Il
capital as part of its ICAAP, enabling
increased scrutiny at Board level. More
detail on the actions we have taken can

be foundin the Governance report.

The Board's composition and diversity is
regularly reviewed and we are committed
to ensuring we have the right balance of
skills and experience within the Board.
During the year we commenced a search
foranew Non-Executive Director with
expertise ininformation technology.
Arigorous selection process was
undertakenandon1June 20191 was
delighted to confirm the appointment of
Dan Olley to the Board and as a member

of the Risk Committee. Danis a seasoned
senior technology leader with a track
record of driving digital transformations

in established businesses, including the
financial services sector. He has operatedin
growth-focused organisations and brought
his expertise to technology leadership roles
by combining a high degree of commercial
awareness with a strong technicaland
product management background.

Although the year has seen significant
economic uncertainty, largely as a result

of Brexit and the imposition of tariffs on
international trade, the executive leadership

Hargreaves Lansdown / Reportand Financial Statements 2019



team have continued to effectively drive our
strategy and vision to be "known as the best
place for savers and investorsin the UK".
Investmentin our people, marketing and
technology are key to delivering a high
quality and engaging experience that drives
the accumulation of assets and growthin
profits. Our Chief Executive, Chris Hill, will
review the progress we have made on our
strategic priorities in what has been another
value creating year.

As a growing business, | am also aware
of the needto focus onimproving the
communities around us. During the year
we have increased our support through
the work of the HL Foundation.

Our people

In my role as Chair, | have the opportunity
to meet with many employees across

the organisation and | am consistently
impressed with their quality, client focus
and engagement with the continued
evolution of the business. Our people
remain our greatest asset and we continue
toinvest to develop, promote and recruit
the people and skills required for a growing
business, which also enables us to benefit
from diversity of thought, backgrounds
and life experiences. This helps us to meet
the challenge of faster-pacedinnovation,
to leverage technological advancements
and to deliver amore tailored and engaging
service to our wide range of clients.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank
allour people for their dedication and
relentless client focus throughout the year.

Dividend

Inline with our stated dividend policy, the
Board recommends, subject to shareholder
approval at the AGM, payment of a final
dividend of 23.4p per share. In addition, the
Board has today declared a special dividend
of 8.3p per share.

Aninterim ordinary dividend of 10.3p per
share was paid on 11 March 2019. Taking this
into account, the total ordinary dividend for
the year willbe 33.7p per share (2018: 32.2p),
anincrease of 5% onlast year. Adding

the special dividend gives a total dividend
of 42.0p per share (2018: 40.0p), anincrease
for 2019 of 5%.

Subject to shareholder approval of the
final dividend at the AGM to be held

on Thursday 10 October 2019, the final
and special dividends will be paid on

18 October 2019 to all shareholders
ontheregister at the close of business
on 27 September 2019.
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1,224,000

Total number of clients

£99.3 BILLION

Total AUA

Outlook

Although Brexit and economic uncertainty
along with the impacts on markets and
consumer confidence remain, Hargreaves
Lansdown has a proven strong track record
of organic growth and growing market
share through consistent focus on clients
and the use of technology to broaden

our proposition. We have and will continue
tolearn from our challenges to ensure

we can make the most of our existing

and new opportunities.

The need forindividuals and families to
save and invest for their financial futures
remains as strong as ever and this helps

to grow our already significant addressable
UK market opportunity. The fundamentals
of our strategy remain the same and lam
confident that the Board and management
team have theright plansin place to
continue delivering a market leading
proposition and service that meets the
long-term needs of clients, enabling further
growth for the benefit of our shareholders
and wider stakeholders.

Deanna Oppenheimer
Chair

7 August 2019
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Market opportunities

AN ATTRACTIVE
AND GROWING
MARKET

Market background

The UK currently faces significant
challengesinterms of engagement with
saving and investing. As a nation, much
work needs to be done to address these
challenges and develop a stronger culture
and more confident attitude to saving
and investing, which willbring long-term
benefits to society as awhole.

The Savings Gap —the gap between
retirement expectations and the cost of
funding such expectations —is estimated at
£314 billion'. The level of funding necessary
to provide retirementincomeisincreasing,
driven by longer life expectancies, less
generous company and state pensions

and ambitious retirement expectations.
The burden of responsibility for retirement
is shifting fromn government and corporates
to theindividual. This gap cannot be closed
without individuals taking ownership for

Client segmentation

Givenwealth Startingindependent life

JuniorISA Lifetime ISA

self-provision and without the use of
long-terminvestments alongside cash
savings. Despite the growing need for
higher savings the UK savings rate has been
declining which presents both a challenge
but, more importantly, an opportunity for
Hargreaves Lansdown and the rest of the
UK Savings industry to help bridge this gap.

The Advice Gap —post the Retail
Distribution Review (RDR) cost effective
advice has beenincreasingly difficult to find.
Many advisers left the industry and those
remaining concentrated on their wealthier
clients to whom they were now charging
adirectfee. Although adviser numbers are
starting to climb again they are still 14%
below their pre-RDR peak creating alarge
advice gap particularly at the mass affluent
end of the market.

Saving for the future Atretirement

Inretirement

In addition, successive UK governments
implementing further changes to pension
savings, the introduction of various ISA
products and persistent low interest
rates have made finding the right solution
forindividuals'investment needs ever
more complex.

Within the UK, investors have a wide range
of financial awareness. Some are confident
but face ever increasing complexities from
regulation, choice and technology. Others
areless financially aware and need more
helpin beginning their journey into savings
and investment. Hargreaves Lansdownis
well placed withits expertise and expanding
capabilities to help existingand new

clients navigate through this minefield of
complexity, providing appropriate products
and solutions for the young through to
those atandinretirement. Hargreaves
Lansdown firmly believes that government

Laterlife

Drawdown: Helping clients understand and manage income via new income tools

Pensions: Helping clients save for their future retirement

Workplace: Workplace Solutions for auto-enrolled and corporate investors

ISAs: A tax efficient means of saving

General Investment Accounts: Enabling investment outside of a pension or ISA tax wrapper

Investment solutions: Simply Invest helps people get started/ Portfolio+ for less confident investors / Wealth 50 selection for investors who wish to choose their own funds

Active Savings: Providing one-stop cash solutions via active savings

Advice

06
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Our opportunity

Significant addressable market

Addressable wr—.\alth‘;z aatsnll Assets
- under
administration

undergoing structural change

» People arelivinglonger

» Shift of wealth to older clients
» Complex savings environment
+ Ongoinglow asset yields

» Market volatility

« Political uncertainty

Clients need help...

» Help tounderstand

» Helptomanage

» Just make it simple for them to do

...and want exceptional experience
» Compelling proposition

» Excellent service

» Tailored client engagement

has arole to play through improving
financial education, addressing the savings
gap and by empowering companies like us
through proportionate regulation to help
provide the solutions and education.

Addressable market

The UK private wealth market is estimated
at c£1.6 trillion, of which we see c£1.0 trillion
as addressable, giving animplied market
share for Hargreaves Lansdown of about
9%. Outside the Direct-to-Consumer (D2C)
space, the bulk of this addressable market
is held through independent financial
advisers, independent wealth managers
and vertically integrated firms. A significant
amount of this investment pool will have
beeninitially advised upon, maybe many
years ago, but now receives no ongoing
advice and little support. This provides
arich source of potential transfers to
Hargreaves Lansdown as clients look to
consolidate all their investments onto

our platform.

This £1.0 trillionis concentrated across
c7 million people with £100,000 or more
ofinvestments (source: ONS). Within this
population there are key segments for us
such as adult savers, Pre-retirement and
Retiring which alone hold c£900 billion.

Demographics and longevity alone will
provide growth driversin these key
segments but, if the UK savings gap can

be better addressed, then furtherimpetus
could be developed across these and other
segments. Although other segments are
not so key in terms of the opportunity,

they stillneed engagement and investment
solutions and Hargreaves Lansdown,
throughits breadth of offering, can address
themtoo.

Transfersin from across the wealth market
spectrum show our wide appeal to investors
who currently hold assets elsewhere.

Managinginvestmentsinone place

with a trusted company that makes things
easy is an ambition for many investors
and this consolidation processis ajourney
that many of them go through with us.
Such consolidation of investments

onto platforms has helped drive the UK
D2C platform market to £222.0 billion,

of which Hargreaves Lansdown has

a 40.5%? market share.

1 Source: "Mind the Gap" (Aviva and Deloitte, September 2016)

2 Platforum UK D2C Market Update, July 2019

3 Platforum UK D2C Market Size and Structure, February 2019
4 Oliver Wyman. Addressable wealth includes self-directed, financial adviser and independent wealth manager segments mainly serving upper affluent.
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Addressable wealth:

WE HAVE A 4% SHARE
£2.4 TRILLION MARKET

£1.0tn*

D2C Platform N
£222.0bn

(£99.3 BILLION) OF A

The D2C platform market grew
by 7.4% in the past year and
forms part of the wider D2C
market worth £616.9 billion
which grew at 9.9%.

Significant other shares of the D2C market
include £285.7 billion held by pension and
insurance providers and £67.4 billion®* held by
wealth managers in execution only assets,
both of which provide a source of transfer
business to Hargreaves Lansdown.

Industry expert, Platforum, also estimates
that £32 billion®is held directly with asset
managers who are increasingly realising
that they are not set up to service direct
retail customers. This provides a source
of transfers or an opportunity to acquire
the entire direct books from fund
management groups.
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Market opportunities continued

During the year, we

acquired direct books from
Witan Investment Services,
J.P. Morgan Asset Management
and Baillie Gifford.

This takes the total number of such
acquisitions to nine having previously
completed deals with the likes of Jupiter,
Legg Mason and BlackRock. We continue
to pursue similar deals working with fund
groups and the FCA to ensure affected
clients can be transitioned effectively to a
superior and more engaging service such
as ours.

Althoughthereis a significant addressable
market for execution only investing,
financial advice stillhas animportant role
to play as people are often put off by the
perceived complexities of investing, have
insufficient time to devote to it or just want
the comfort that an expertis involved. Such
advice can be ongoing or one-offin nature
to address a certainissue or to ensure that
investment plans are on track.

Hargreaves Lansdown, with
around 100 highly qualified
advisers, is well placed to
service such needs.

We believe thatinvestors should have
access to appropriate cost effective
advice at the point they actually need it.

Market development

ISAs

The markets for the Group's products and
services continue to evolve as individuals'
savings and investment needs react to
the changingregulatory and market
environment. With continued low interest
rates, Stocks and Shares ISAs remain
attractive and we have seen significant
transfersin from cash ISAs held with banks.
The current ISA allowance of £20,000
provides additional scope for tax efficient
investing, particularly for higher earners
who stand to lose some of their annual
pension allowance and are impacted by
the lower lifetime allowances.
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With the threat of further changes to the
pensionrules, the ISAincreasingly becomes
along-terminvestment plan for many and
hence provides a significant opportunity
for new business flows. According to HMRC,
asat 5 April 2018, the Stocks and Shares ISA
market was estimated at £337 billion with an
additional £270 billion held in Cash ISAs and
£4 billionin Junior ISAs. Based on recent
HMRC data, the average annualamount
subscribed into ISAs over the past four

tax yearshas been c£73 billion. These
statistics clearly demonstrate a significant
opportunity to gather more assets into

our core ISA products.

Lifetime ISA

In April 2017, the Lifetime ISA (LISA) was
launched. Thisis open to UK citizens
between the ages of 18 and 40 and any
savings added to the LISA before their
50th birthday will receive an added 25%
bonus from the government. The savings
allowance is capped at £4,000 per annum
and can be used towards a deposit on a first
home worth up to £450,000 or towards
saving for retirement, whereby, after their
60th birthday individuals can withdraw all
the savings free of tax.

Hargreaves Lansdown was one of only
three platforms that offered the LISA at

its launchand by 30 June 2019 we have

over 54,000 accounts with £384 million of
invested assets, which makes us the largest
provider of LISAs. Approximately half of
these clients were new to Hargreaves
Lansdown highlighting how it serves as
away for attracting a younger demographic
to our platform. For those who were already
existing clients it helps strengthen the client
relationship and enables us potentially to
capture more of their investment wealth
over time. Althoughiitis early days for this
new type of ISA, it could provide fresh
impetus for adults to boost their long-term
savings and for others to start saving for
the first time using risk-based investments
rather than cash.

Junior ISA

Since theirintroductionin November 2011,
Junior ISAs have proved popular and
Hargreaves Lansdown is now the largest
provider of Stocks and Shares Junior ISAs,
with an estimated 34% market share as at
5 April 2018 (based on HMRC ISA statistics).
Engaging with investors at a young age
provides us with the opportunity to build
arelationship that will hopefully transfer
into their adult years and potentially through
their lifetime. Before the Junior ISA, the
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Government between September 2002 and
January 2011 operated a Child Trust Fund
scheme (CTF). Cash was given to each child
along with the opportunity for parents or
guardians to add to the investment subject
to anannual limit. Some six million accounts
were set up and are due to mature between
2020 and 2029. Although many of these
CTFs willbe smallin value they present

an opportunity to engage with a distinct
segment of the population with a view to
them becoming adult savers and investors
onour platform.

Pensions

Pension auto-enrolment in the UK'is now
approaching steady state, with over one
million employers and more than 10 million
employees now participating in the
programme. From 6 April 2019, the
minimum contribution is 9%, of which the
employer will have to pay a minimum of 4%.
The Department for Work and Pensions
estimates that nearly £20 billion of
additional pension contributions will have
beenmade by 2020 which represent
genuine new incremental inflows to the
UK savings industry.

The workplace will continue to play a pivotal
rolein retirement saving and Hargreaves
Lansdown Workplace Solutions, which
already provides pension, investment and
annuity services for over 500 employers,
can really make a difference by improving
employee engagement with saving through
arange of high quality services.

Auto-enrolment has delivered
demonstrable successes,
however, Hargreaves Lansdown
continues to lobby for

further reform.

There are still some nine million employees
who have not been auto-enrolled due

to not being eligible and many of these
should be enjoying the benefit of employer
contributions into a workplace pension.

Self-employment is more common than

it was when auto-enrolment was first
introduced; there are now nearly five million
self-employed workersinthe UK and very
few of them are savingin a pension. The
majority pass through employment before
becoming self-employed. However, there
are few mechanisms in place to keep them
inthe pension system as they move from
employed to self-employed. In addition,
every time someone changes their job, they

Hargreaves Lansdown / Reportand Financial Statements 2019



Developing the proposition: Active Savings

Making savings fair and simple

Savers need solutions

« Poorinterest rate « More consistent returns

information

+ Greater transparency —know the
rate and when it expires

« Difficult to manage
multiple accounts

» Hardto switch providers

+ 40% of savers have » Easyforclients to manage cash
alongside theirinvestments

never switched

willbe enrolledinto a new pension, which
over time will lead to millions more pension
accounts thanare necessary. This recurring
auto-enrolment process is highly disruptive
for anindividual's retirement savingjourney.
Irrespective of how interested and engaged
they are with their pension, whenever they
changejobs, they are forced to suspend
their existing pension and start a new one

if they want to benefit from their employer's
pension contributions. To avoid this we
believe that anindividual who has an
existing auto-enrolment pension from
aprevious employment or who wishes

to make an active choice regarding their
pension provider, should have a right to
choose that arrangement in preference

to being forced tojoin their new employer's
scheme. They should have the right to have
their new employer's contributions paid into
the pension of their choice, along with any
of their own contributions deducted from
their salary.

The development of pension dashboards
continues and may in time provide
individuals with a comprehensive view of all
their pensions in one place. Whilst we are
actively supporting this project, we do not
expect aquick result. In the meantime we
are also collaborating with otherindustry
participantsin the development of systems
to allowinvestors to view through a single
access point, all their financial assets across
awide range of financial institutions.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

Active Savings marketplace

» Simple switching: nine banks,
over 20 products, one easy login

Theimpact of the introduction of Pension
Freedomsin 2015 has beenimmense and
whilst they have proved understandably
popular with investors, regulation continues
to evolve to protectinvestors from the
financial risks the freedoms present. The
free Pension Wise service is still not widely
used and the FCAisintroducing stronger
prompts to encourage people to shop
around, as well as consulting oninvestment
pathways for non-advised drawdown
investors. Better investor engagement with
their retirement savings and the decisions
they can take to improve their financial
futuresis a high priority. Hargreaves
Lansdownis committed to being at the
forefrontin helping people meet this
challenge. We can provide bespoke ongoing
personal advice, but for many thisis too
expensive and not appropriate, so we are
looking at more cost effective solutions
which will give guidance or advice at the
point clients really need it.

In January, the FCA published its second
consultation paper and first policy
statement for its Retirement Outcomes
Review. There are new requirements

for wake-up packs, enhanced annuity
comparisons and illustrations, a proposal
forinvestment pathways and cash warnings
for non-advised drawdown, subject to
consultation. Such requirements will
take time and effort to embed into our
processes but we already have a team
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1. Easy Access Savings
2.CashlISAs

3. Current Accounts

4. Noticeand Term Deposits £160bn

2018 household
cash savings market

£1.4 TRILLION

£650bn
£280bn
£270bn

dedicated to delivering them along with
looking at various retirement solutions
that would benefit our clients.

Demographic pressures have not abated.
Notwithstanding the progress achieved
through auto-enrolment, the UK still faces
a significant retirement saving challenge.
Thisis likely to be exacerbated by the
developing financial challenge presented by
the increasing cost of providing social care.
Thereis continued government support
for retirement saving and anincreased
emphasis on personal responsibility and
engagement. Hargreaves Lansdown s likely
to be abeneficiary from this trend as we

are a marketleader at customer service,
simplifying pensions and making it easy for
people to save andinvest with confidence.

Cash savings

Alongside risk-based investments,
investors continue to hold cash despite
persistent low interest rates on cash
savings. Our research shows that thereis
£1.4 trillion of cash held in the UK including
c£650 billionin easy access type accounts.
Backin December 2017, we soft launched
‘Active Savings', our digital deposit service
that provides a solution for managing cash
savings. In September 2018, having refined
the proposition, we began to actively
market it to our clients. In January 2019,
alongside the initial offer of term deposits
we also launched an easy access product
widening the appeal of the service.
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Market opportunities continued

As at 30 June 2019 we had over
27,000 clients using the service
with just under £1 billion AUA.

Clients holding risk based investments
invariably have cash held elsewhere so
utilising Active Savings becomes a natural
extension of theirinteraction with us and
enables us to become ever more part

of their financial lives.

Active Savings remains a key part of our
growth strategy and through additional
functionality and more banking partners
we will widen the appeal to existing

clients and provide a significant marketing
opportunity to attract new clients,
particularly if we return toamore
normalinterest rate environment.

Competition

Muchis made of the increasingly
competitive landscape andindeed,

new competitors continue to enter the
market with innovative technology and
new solutions. We are never complacent
and continue to watch the competitive
landscape closely. Where competition
raises the awareness of saving and investing
we see this as a good thing. Financial
education and awareness in the UK'is
relatively low and hence high quality, client
focused companies like ours have a key
role in addressing these issues. Healthy
competition ultimately delivers better
outcomes for investors.

Achieving scale is key to
becoming successful and this
relies on a deep understanding of
savers, investors and their needs,
which is something we continue
to focus on.

Once scaleis achieved, sustainable profits
rely on continued investmentin technology,
people and a focus on how our clients'
needs develop. Hargreaves Lansdown does
not rest up andis always looking to improve
the experience for our clients, ensuring
value for money is delivered.

10

Regulation

Regulationis an ever present theme

in financial services and absorbs a
considerable amount of time and
resources. Hargreaves Lansdownis well

placed to address the challenge this brings.

Our primary regulatoris the FCA and it
oversees allaspects of our work, fromhow
we manage our platform, give advice and
run our fund management operations to
how we communicate with our clients.

During the year, we continued to engage
with the FCA onits Investment Platform
Market Study, whichlooks at how
competitionis working in the market and
whether platforms offer value for money
toinvestors. The interim findings were
published on 16 July 2018 following which
there was a consultation period where we

provided feedback on the initial findings and

proposed remedies. The final report was
subsequently published on 14 March 2019.
The FCA confirmed its view that the
platform marketis mainly working well,
that there isn't excessive profitability,
that consumers who pay more get more
and that platforms help consumers make
informed investment decisions.

The FCA, however, did cite the need

to make transfers between platforms
easier. Itis proposing rules to allow
consumers to switch platforms and remain
invested, evenif their unit classes are not
available on the new platform. In addition,
they have discussed a ban on exit fees on
platforms offering “comparable services
toretail clients.” This potentially extends
the impact of a ban beyond investment
platforms and so the FCAis taking time

to do more work before implementing
changes. Aninitial consultation was
undertaken ending 14 June 2019.
Hargreaves Lansdown along with other
stakeholders responded on how an exit
fee should be defined, the scope of
intervention and whether there should

be aban or cap on fees. Subject to the
consultation, the FCA expects rules on
transfers between platforms to comeinto
effect from 31 July 2020. Responses to the
discussion on exit fees will be considered
and a formal consultation may be issued
later this year.
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Hargreaves Lansdownis already at

the forefront of making transfers of
investments between providers quicker
and easier through chairing the industry's
working group on transfers (STAR). The goal
is to create a set of common standards to
deliver faster automated transfers and
better customer communication. Given the
significant transfer volumes we deal with,
this will help improve client satisfaction and
improve operational efficiency.
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SAVINGS AND
INVESTMENTS YOUR
EMPLOYEES CAN
UNDERSTAND, ENGAGE
WITH, AND VALUE

HL Workplace is a service for employers, not individual investors. Every one of your
employees is different. That means they have different financial goals —and therefore
different needs and priorities. '‘One size fits all' justisn't enough for employers who want to
offer modern and competitive workplace benefits. We offer a Workplace Pension, Workplace
Retirement Service, Workplace Savings, Flexible Benefits and Workplace Financial Education.
With over 115,000 Corporate Scheme members across 457 Corporate Schemes,

we're empowering people to save and invest with confidence.

uolew.IoUl 18Y310O
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Business model

USING
CALE AND
MARKEI
POSITION
10 DRIVE
VALUE

We offer a lifelong, secure home for
people’s savings and investments that
offers great value, an excellent service
and makes their financial life easy.

These key attributes enable us to grow
client numbers and assets on our platform
which drives revenues to support
reinvestment for further growth. Executing
this virtuous circle enables long-term value
creation across our stakeholders and helps
deliver broader economic benefits across
society.

12
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Inputs

People
Technology
Marketing

Growth cycle

Serviceclients
Transfers
Allowances
New clients
Reinvestment

Value creation

Clients
Employees
Investors
Society

See pages 14-15
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People

Our people are at the heart of Hargreaves
Lansdown, ensuring we deliver on our
core values. They develop knowledge

and expertise, implement our strategy
and deliver our products and services.

Technology

Our platformuses our own proprietary
systems, allowing us to develop our
products and services in a nimble, secure
and efficient manner.

We embrace technological innovation to
improve the client experience now andin
the future throughimproved architecture
that could enable collaborative
opportunities. We invest to ensure our
systems are safe and secure, giving peace
of mind to clients.

Marketing

We provide a multi-channel marketing
approach to engage with new and existing
clients, ensuring they have high quality
information to empower them to save
andinvest with confidence.

We seek to understand our clients better,
to tailor our communications to their
needs and enhance a lifelong relationship.

Growthinclients

We have a market leading, client

focused, scalable platformand through

a combination ofinvestment and
application of our core values, we
continually improve the client experience,
attracting new clients across the lifecycle
and retaining our existing client base.

Growthin AUA

Growing the number of clients and
nurturing our relationships with them
over their lifetime drives the long-term
sustainable growthinassets on

our platform.

The more happy and engaged clients we
have, the greateris the flywheel effect
forincreased new business flows through
transfers of investments held elsewhere
onto our platform, new lump sum
contributions and regular savings,
particularly with regards to the tax
allowances within a SIPP and an ISA.

Growthinservices

We talk andlisten to our clients to
understand their needs along with those
of our wider addressable market. This
helps to focus our reinvestment and the
the allocation of resources to improve
existing and develop new services, which
makes us an ever more integral part of
clients’ daily financial lives.

Revenue

We generate revenues based on the
value of assets managed on our platform,
activity levels of our clients and a net
interest margin on uninvested cash.

81% of these revenues are recurring
in nature, providing a high degree of
profit resilience.

By providing an excellent service, we
willattract new clients and new assets,
ensuring we are well positioned to

grow revenues across the market cycle.

Costs

From our revenues, we fund the
administration of the platform, our
proposition and the business as a whole.
Key to our strategy is the reinvestment
backinto people, technology and
marketing, ensuring that we are always
improving and evolving the service and
maintaining our competitive advantage.

Despite the significant reinvestment, our
scalability enables us to generate industry
leading operating margins of 63%.

Profits and dividends

Our high quality earnings and scalability
deliver strong profits which quickly
convertinto cash.

After ensuring we maintain a surplus of
capital over and above our regulatory
requirement, we are stillable to pay
significant dividends to our shareholders.

Value creation

Through placing clients at the heart of all
we do, we have already achieved
significant scale, but our continuing
investment and adherence to our core
values will enable further growth.

This will deliver long-term value creation
not only for clients but across arange
of stakeholdersincluding:

» Clients

- Employees
+ Investors
- Society

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019
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Our market opportunities seepage6

The opportunities and challenges presented by our market environment.

Our business model see page 12
How we're driving value.

Our vision and strategy see page 20

How we're addressing our most significant opportunities and challenges

Our progress see page 32
The results we've achieved this year.

Our Corporate social responsibility see page 40

Our commitments and aspirations.
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Stakeholder engagement
Clients

CREATING 4%
FUTURE
TOGETHER

Engaging with stakeholders is
fundamental to the way we do business
at Hargreaves Lansdown and ensures
responsible and balanced decisions Shareholders
are made across both the short and
long-term. We have investedin the
development and involvement of our
stakeholder communities as we believe
itis the right thing to do, not only for
our stakeholders but for our business.
These pages provide a snapshot of just
some of the ways in which we do this.

Employees

Adiverse andinclusive
workforce, motivated and
enabled to achieve greatness
by strong leadership.

Enjoying long-term sustainable
returns through share price
appreciation and a progressive
dividend policy.

Society

We aim to be aresponsible
corporate citizen, positively

influencing society and
encouraging people to save and
make more of their money.
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How did we engage with them?

What were the key topics raised?

How did we respond?

Our relationship with clients is at the heart
of what we do. Only by truly understanding
theissuesintheir financial lives can we
develop services and solutions to help.

We regularly conduct client surveys, hold
focus groups and client panels to get more
insight. Feedbackis used to continually
improve the choice, quality, and convenience
of our services and because of this more
people trust Hargreaves Lansdown than
any other service of its type.

Extensive research showed clients
wanted one simpler, shorterlist

of preferred funds, which included
active and tracker funds and more
information on why funds had
been selected.

Clients were looking for global
opportunities to invest.
Clients wanted an easy way to manage

cash savings and improve their rates
of interest.

Our favourite fund list, the Wealth 150,
was made simpler and shorter and
relaunched as the Wealth 50. The new
list came with improved online
selection tools and improved discounts
averaging 30% as we used our scale to
reduce the cost of investing for clients.

We launched our HL Select Global
Growth Shares fund.

In September 2018, we fully launched
Active Savings which provides an easy
solution to manage cash savings and
consistently earn top quartile interest
rates, allin a couple of clicks.

Engaging colleagues is key to creating an
excellent work environment. We have used
anumber of channels, ensuring everyone
has the chance to be heard including:

+ Colleague Survey and half-yearly Pulse
Survey, supported by focus groups.

« Colleague Forums to share views on key
strategicitems with the Board, Q&A and
talks with senior leaders to ask questions
and share feedback.

» Engagement groups such as LGBT+to
discussinitiatives on how we can engage
and support our colleagues better.

Aneedto support more collaboration,
faster and devolved decision making,
andimproved cross business
communication to enable us to deliver
our strategy andlead change at pace.

There has been recognition of the
significantimprovements made
towards encouraging Diversity and
Inclusion, colleague training, and career
development.

Transparency around pay and bonuses.

Established working groups addressing
the key topics raised with senior
leaders to bring about change.

Empowered colleagues to make
change happen and have seenan
impact by the awards won by our
Mental Health Awareness group and
LGBT+ group among others.

« Continued focus on building

engagement and enablement through
the creation of a Culture Action plan.

We launched a new approach to
promote transparency in pay reviews.

We engaged with our shareholders at
our AGMin October 2018, with the Board
providing areview of performance of
the Group and providing opportunity
forinteraction and shareholder voting
onresolutions.

Members of our senior management meet
with shareholders and potential investors
across the year through a programme of
results presentations, individual and group
meetings and attendance at conferences
bothin the UK and abroad.

The addressable market and what
we are doingtowiniit.

How we can sustain growthin new
clients and net new business.

Managing costs and increasing
operational efficiency.

Progress on strategic initiatives such
as Active Savings.

Investment in technology and growth.

What competitive threats are there?

Key topics for investors are
incorporated into presentations which
we give at the Interim and Full-year
results announcements and usein
meetings throughout the year.

Regular reports and feedback to
the executive team and the Board
on key marketissues and concerns
are provided.

Our corporate brokers deliver updates
on market dynamics and corporate
perception helping us to shape our
strategic priorities.

« We engaged with the government,
our regulator, the FCA, along with industry
and trade associations both on specific
topic debates and wider investment and
savingissues.

« We explored citizenship and sustainability
agendas through colleague forums,
surveys, the HL Foundation, partnering
with the likes of Bristol Sport, Bristol
One City, Bristol Equality Network and
Business West.

Improving the process of moving
investments from one provider
to another.

+ Societalimpacts and workinthe

communities we operate.

» Reducing the environmentalimpact

of our operations.

We chair an industry working group
called STAR focused onimproving
the transfer of investments.

We are lobbying industry and the
DWP onthe importance of engaging
people with their workplace pension.

We launched an employee volunteering
scheme and have increased our
involvement and sponsorship in various
community projects.

Switched to recyclable paper
envelopes rather than degradable
plastic ones.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

CHRIS HILL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIVERSIFIED GROWTH
AND LEADING
CLIENT SERVIGE

Itis through uncertain times that clients seek knowledge,
information and our insight more than ever.

Continued execution of our strategy
2019 saw Hargreaves Lansdown continue
to execute our strategy. We delivered
strong growth, increased market share and
maintained our focus on clients' evolving
needs and the service we provide.

Net new business was £7.3 billion
and we welcomed a further
133,000 net new clients.

We now have arecord 1,224,000 clients.
lamalso pleased to report that AUA
exceeded £100 billion for the first time

in July 2019. We take great pride in what
we do and | am confident that we are well
positioned for the future.

This growth came despite external
challenges, including uncertainty over

16

Brexit and the wider macro-economic
outlook. Investor confidence was
understandably volatile in the UK market
overalland, by our own measures, it hit
recordlows in the second half of 2018 with
the Investment Association reporting the
worst quarter ever for net retail fund
outflowsin Q4 2018.

Our growth and the resilience of net new
business reflects the execution of our
strategy and our relentless focus on putting
the client at the centre of allthat we do. The
second half of our financial year was
particularly strong, driven by a number of
ongoingdiversificationinitiatives that
broaden our accessible market and by
improved marketing effectiveness.

This contributed to our best ever tax year
end as clients continued to use their ISA
and SIPP allowances.

= Contents

We continue to develop new and innovative
products and services where there is
client need.

Our new Active Savings

service has gained considerable
momentum and made a
significant contribution

to growth.

[ts Assets Under Administration went
above £1billionin early July. We launched
the HL Select Global Growth Shares fund in
May 2019, with £298 million placed ahead of
the launch. We were also delighted to
welcome new clients from Witan, JP
Morgan and Baillie Gifford during the year,
continuing our successfulhistoryas a
provider of choice for organisations wishing
to transfer direct books. These books
contributed £1.2 billion.

Due to this growth and our diversification
initiatives, we have continued to add market
share. We have grown our share of the
direct to consumer platform market to
40.5%' and increased our share of the
execution only stockbroking market to
34.1%7°.

I would like to thank our clients for their
continued loyalty and support. Our
relationship with themis based on a desire
tohelp them to save andinvest with
confidence and build for their long-term
prosperity and our strong retention rate
of 93.6% is a demonstration of our strong
service performance.

The hard work of colleagues is behind all
that has been achieved and | would also
like to thank them for their dedication and
resilience throughout the year.

Serving our clients

We have a significant opportunityinan
evolving and growing market. Societal
changes such asimproving life expectancy,
the transfer of long-term savings from
companies toindividuals, and a prolonged
low interest rate environment offering
minimal risk-free returns all require that
individuals and families build their own
wealth and capital. Thisis againsta
backdrop of ever-shifting regulatory

and tax environments. In this complicated
world, our clients need support more
thanever.

Our business grows as we add clients then
deepen our relationship with them. We aim
to develop this throughout their financial

Hargreaves Lansdown / Reportand Financial Statements 2019



lives as they save and invest to accumulate
before movinginto a decumulation phase

in retirement. By providing the service and
solutions that they need, when they need
them, engaging with them at the right times
and communicating in the ways they prefer,
we optimise the value that we can bring
tothem.

We have worked hard this year on the
areas that our clients tell us cause them
inconvenience, such as transfers, where
we have reacted by facilitating higher
numbers of online transactions and a
reductionin overall completion times.
We have improved our Helpdesk service
by responding to high volume call drivers,
providing new training to managers and
through deployment of technology tools.
We have also maintained our marketing
efforts through quieter periods of client
activity. Itis through uncertain times that
clients seek knowledge, information and
our insight more than ever.

Given all of the hard work and resource

we putinto service, | was delighted that
Hargreaves Lansdown received top marks
from Platforuminits November 2018

UK D2C Investor Experience report for
customer service, as well as for our online
and mobile propositions. We also won the
Boring Money Best Customer Service
award, sponsored by The Times and The
Sunday Times. We have achieved recordsin
our internal measures for client satisfaction
with our Helpdesk and improved our
performance in Operations, whilst at the
same time improving efficiency.

At the heart of our businessis an extensive
and complex technology infrastructure.
We ensure that the monitoring and
maintenance of our systems is thorough
and rigorous to ensure that client
information is always safe and secure and
our hardware, software and client portals
enable a smooth and efficient experience.
This year we have delivered a number of key
projects that have improved our ability to
handle electronic trading volumes and to
make our back office systems and websites
work faster. We also completed changes

to the way our clients loginto the platform,
making the process simpler and safer.
Throughout all of these changes, platform
uptime has been maintained and we have
made enhancements to capacity and
responsiveness of core applications.

Investing for the future
Akey part of maintaining a lifelong
relationship with clients is to provide a home

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

for their assets not only throughout their
lifetime, but through the market cycle.
Tothatend, we continue to investin our
proposition. Our research told us that
clients wanted to manage their cash
savings as well as theirinvestments allin
one place with simple switching and easy
execution. We therefore "soft" launched our
cash management service, Active Savings,
in December 2017 and spent some time

to get the proposition right, adding more
banks and making sure that the rates on
offer were the best they could be.

We launched with a full tranche of term
deposits and a focus on growing AUAIn
September 2018. In order to achieve this
and establish aleading presence in this
market, we have reduced our revenue
margins to make sure that the rates we can
offer on the platform are competitive. We
followed this up by introducing Easy Access
in January 2019. We have been pleased with
the growth that we've seen this year which
has taken us to almost £1billion of AUA as at
30 June 2019. Our rates continue to be
among the best available to the 28,000
clients who have opened accounts and we
are committed to maintaining top quartile
rates.

Through the uncertainties of 2018, clients
indicated a desire toinvest in global funds
and this continued into early 2019.

We therefore launched the
HL Select Global Growth Shares
fund in May 20109.

This now has over £350 million of AUM, our
most successful Select fundlaunchyet. Itis
a high conviction fund that will typically hold
sharesin 30-40 companies and s actively
managed by our experienced teamin
Bristol.

We are committed to transparency and
engagement with fund holders, so for

all our HL Select funds we publish every
shareholding once dealt, as well as the
complete portfolio breakdown and regular
updates on performance.

As Hargreaves Lansdown grows, itis
paramount that we invest so that we
continue to provide the very best service
to our clients and develop capabilities to
maximise the significant long-term market
opportunity. By continually developing

our people, technology and marketing
capabilities we believe we will nurture the
trust, engagement and ease of doing
business thatis critical to our success.
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The Wealth 50

Behavioural economics suggest that

when people are presented with a wide

or unfamiliar choice, for example about
financial planning, this can resultin them
not making any decision at all. One tool that
people can use when making investment
decisionsis 'best buy'lists. In their
Investment Platforms Market Study, the
FCAfoundthat 'best buy' lists and/or model
portfolios help investors pick independent
well-performing funds.

We are committed to a favourite funds list
as one of many tools which are important
for our clients.

At Hargreaves Lansdown, we have had
afavourite funds list since October 2003.
Thisis now known as the Wealth 50
followingits relaunchin January 2019.

This was as a result of feedback from 6,500
current and potential investors who told us
they wanted a shorter, more focusedlist
with the ability to filter by objective, risk,
yield and cost.

The process of selecting and reviewing the
Wealth 50 constituents is a rigorous one
driven by our 14 person investment research
team. They devote thousands of working
hours every year to conducting quantitative
and qualitative analysis of fund managers
andthe funds. This process helps identify
managers who have added value over the
long-term through repeatable skill rather
than market movements or thematic biases.

This research has resulted in the selection of
funds which have on average outperformed
both their relevant benchmarkindex and
their sector average after charges, by 5.8%
and 11.8% respectively over the period they
have been on our favourite funds list.

[tisimportant to note that Hargreaves
Lansdownis paid directly by our clients,
not by fund managers. Our feeincome is
calculated as a percentage of the clients’
assets held on our platform, and we earn
the same fee regardless of the funds our
clients hold.

We use the combined buying power of our
1.2 million clients to get the lowest cost we
can for each fund, as alower price delivers
betterinvestmentreturns. These discounts
are passedin full to our clients. In 2018,

we saved our clients £61 million of fund
management costs as a result of the terms
we have negotiated on their behalf and the
Wealth 50 relaunch has enabled us to
deliver afurther £7 million of discounts to
clients.
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Chief Executive Officer's review

Woodford Equity Income

The nature of active fund management
portfolios means that there will be periods
of outperformance and underperformance
by allmanagers. There are alimited number
ofindividuals who deliver outperformance
over their peers and benchmarks over the
long term, and investors who own these
managers' portfolios benefit from these
outcomes.

We have followed Neil Woodford's career
from 1999, when he was at Invesco
Perpetual, and supported the launch of
his new venture in 2014. For the first two
and a half years from launch, the Woodford
Equity Income fund was among the top
performersin the sector, but at the end
of 2016 the fund started to underperform.
We had seen the fund manager display
similar periods of underperformancein
1999, but then bouncing back strongly to
2003 and again underperformingin 2009,
rallying strongly to 2016.

We believed there was a reasonable
expectation that the fund would do the
same again. As aresult, the research
process concluded that the Woodford
Equity Income Fund should be kept on
our favourite funds list.

As | detailed in my submission to the
Treasury Select Committee, we began an
active dialogue with Woodfordin November
2017 over the proportion of small and
unquoted assets in the Woodford Equity
Income fund.

During the course of 2018, redemptions
fromthe fund began toincrease. This
meant the manager sold stocks where he
had the least conviction to meet demands
forinvestor cash. Thisin turn meant the
unquoted portion of the portfolio was not
reduced as quickly as we had desired.

On 3 June, the authorised corporate
director, Link Asset Services, decided to
suspend dealing in the Woodford Equity
Income Fund. We responded quickly and
decisively. We immediately removed the
fund from the Wealth 50, communicated
the suspension to clients and dealt with
all calls and emails received sinceina
timely and orderly manner. We waived
our platform administration fee ondirect
holdings in this fund and we believe that
Woodford Investment Management
should suspend collectingits fees whilst
theirinvestors cannot access their cash.
This is the right thing for them to do.

1 Source: Platforum UK D2C Market Update (July 2019).

Since these announcements, Hargreaves
Lansdown's own business flows and service
levels have held up well. We have actively
engaged with external stakeholders,
including Link, Woodford Investment
Management, and the regulator as well as
the financial press which followed the story
closely, keeping them informed. Our priority
remains to support our clients and pressing
for the Woodford Equity Income Fund to
reopen as soon asis practicable, whilst
protecting the interests of allinvestors.

I am determined that we learn from events
such as these. I have apologised to all
clients who have beenimpacted by the
recent problems because we all share their
disappointment and frustration. Inthese
difficult times we recognise the financial
and personalimpact the gating of the fund
has had on them. Philipand |, together with
the unanimous support of the Board, have
therefore decided that we will not take a
bonus award for 2019.

Our aim remains to provide the best
possible service and choices to allow people
to manage theirinvestments simply and
effectively. The shortcomings of one fund
should not detract from the benefits of
favourite fund lists like the Wealth 50.

We are confidentin the robustness of how
we analyse, research and compile our
favourite fund list with a focus on ensuring
best value for clients. Nonetheless, we
recognise that there will be learnings and
improvements we can make fromreviewing
this event and we will ensure we apply these
to benefit our clientsin the future.

The regulatory environment

The FCA's final Investment Platforms
Market Study report was publishedin
March 2019. The FCA confirmed its view
that the platform market is mainly working
well. There is not excessive profitability,
consumers who pay more get more and
that platforms help consumers make
informed investment decisions. There are
no material barriers to entry in the market
and whilst the cost of customer acquisition
is a barrier to expansion, making transfers
between platforms easier should be an
appropriate solution.

We welcome the proposed remedies

which are reflective of our own core value of
putting the client first. The FCA cited

the need to make transfers easier and
Hargreaves Lansdown is already at the
forefront of this, chairing the industry's

2 Source: Compeer Limited XO Quarterly Benchmarking Report Quarter 12019.
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STAR working group. We anticipate that
the study's focus on switching willenable
afasterand more straightforward process.
We also believe helping clients to compare
and contrast platform services and fees and
making it easier for them to switch between
providers, will lead to healthier competition.
This should promote greater engagement
amondg clients across the entire industry.
We look forward to working with the FCA

on the outcomes from this study.

Conclusion and outlook

| am pleased with the performance

and progress we have made throughout
avery challenging 2019. We recognise

that there are industry headwinds and that
the environment continues to be difficult
and we remain vigilant to these conditions.
However, we are confident in the underlying
strength of our business and that we are
well placed to help our clients prosper whilst
continuing to deliver strong and sustainable
returns for shareholders.

Chris Hill
Chief Executive Officer

7 August 2019
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SIMPLE TO START,
EASY TO MANAGE
CASH SAVINGS

Our clients told us they don't have time to chase the best rates — they just want
consistently good returns without teaser rates and without any stress. With Active Savings
you can pick and mix savings products from a range of UK banks and building societies

through one simple to use online account. With over £1 billionin Active Savings and 28,000
accounts, we're empowering people to save and invest with confidence.
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Strategy and KPIs

OUR
STRATEGY

Our vision is to deliver a market leading
proposition and service to fulfil the
long-term needs of clients.

We focus on providing an unrivalled and
evolving client experience, using it to deliver
deeper relationships so we become one

of the few companies that clients connect
with regularly in their daily lives. Delivering
high levels of client retention, client
satisfaction and anincreased use of our
services drives net new business flows
from existing and new clients. This provides
the engine for financial growth, enabling
reinvestmentinto the client experience
whilst generating returns for shareholders.

0o
OA

Attractive client proposition
To provide anincreasing range
of services and solutions to meet
the needs of clients

Financial growth Excellent client service

To deliver sustainable returns To efficiently provide a high quality
We use the Key Performance Indicators for shareholders along with service, across all touchpoints with
(KPIs) on the following pages to measure reinvestment for clients, making their lives easier

the progress and success of our strategy
implementation.

future growth O

Vo

Client engagement
To deliver tailored content,
at theright times andinthe
ways clients prefer

< FIND OUT MORE

Our market opportunities see page 6
The opportunities and challenges presented by our market environment.

Our business model see page 12
How we're driving value

Our vision and strategy see page 20
How we're addressing our most significant opportunities and challenges.

Our progress see page 32
The results we've achieved this year.

Our Corporate social responsibility see page 40
Our commitments and aspirations.
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oo
OA Attractive client proposition

Net new clients

Represents the change in active clients between the opening

and closing position for the year (unique number of clients holding
at least one PMS or Vantage account with a value over £100 at the
year end).

Why
The greater the number of new clients, the better the potential
for growing AUA.

Principal risks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory, conduct.

Progressinthe year

« Threedirect book acquisitions announced adding new clients
in this financial year and next.

» More tailored marketing campaigns through better client
segmentation improving conversion rates.

» New Corporate schemes and members added.

Net new business (NNB)
Represents subscriptions, cash receipts, cash and stock transfersin,
less withdrawals and assets transferred out.

Why

NNB is anindicator of the trust and security clients place in
Hargreaves Lansdown along with the perceived value of the client
offering. The greater the assets gathered, the greater the revenue.

Principalrisks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory, conduct, financial.

Progressinthe year
Best ever tax year end for NNB.

Three direct book acquisitions announced adding new business
in this financial year and next.

Active Savings rolled out including Easy Access from January 2019.

Increased market share and AUA grew by 8% to a record
£99.3 billion.

(2018:137,000)

e 193,000

s 1-3BN

(2018:7.6bn)

@ Excellent client service

Client retentionrate
Based on the monthly lost number of clients, as a percentage
of the opening months' Vantage clients and averaging for the year.

Why

Ahigh client retention rate is a sign that clients are happy with

the service we provide and that it fulfils their investment needs.
The longer a clientis with Hargreaves Lansdown, the more assets
they are likely to accumulate. High retention provides more
certainty of future earnings.

Principal risks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory conduct.

Progressinthe year

+ Average discount of 22bps negotiated on the new Wealth 50 list.

« Increasedlevels of online transfers and completion times down
significantly.

« Average call response time of just 14 seconds (measured Jan to
May 2019).

Result 9 3. 60/0

(2018:94.3%)

Net Promoter Score®"

Based on May 2019 and May 2018 client surveys of 16,361

and 14,674 respondents respectively, using the Net Promoter
Score methodology.

Why

This measures the willingness of existing clients to recommend
the services of Hargreaves Lansdown to others. It provides a
measure of our clients' overall satisfaction and loyalty to the brand.
Ahigh score will have a positive effect on gathering more clients,
particularly friends and family, and therefore AUA.

Principalrisks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory conduct.

Progressinthe year

» Our NPS remains a very high score within the financial
services sector.

+ Reductionsinthe volumes of errors and complaints
per 1,000 clients.

» Voted best platform for client service by Platforum.

s 48.1

(2018:50.3)
Net Promotor Score, NPS and the NPS-related emoticons are registered service marks, and Net Promoter Score
and Net Promoter System are service marks of Bain & Company Inc., Satmetrix Systems, Inc. and Fred Reichheld.
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Strategy and KPIs continued

2 Client engagement

Digital visits

Why
Provides a view of the engagement and reach that Hargreaves
Lansdown has withits digital footprint.

Principal risks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory.

Progressinthe year

» Research undertaken toimprove the segmentation of our clients
leading to more tailored marketing campaigns.

» Enhanced functionality of the mobile app.

» More personalised communications, content and guidance.

e 111M

(2018:169m)

/‘]\ Financial growth

Average accounts per client
Average number of active accounts held per client over the year.

Why
Provides anindicator of how widely our clients are using Hargreaves
Lansdown throughout their financial life.

Principalrisks
Strategic, legal and regulatory.

Progressinthe year

« Increased number of clients opening Income Drawdown and LISA
accounts.

« We continue to win Corporate schemes and hence new individual
clients to whom we can actively market other accounts.

« September 2018 saw the wider launch of Active Savings
to existing clients.

Result 1 ] 3

(2018:1.3)

Profit before tax (PBT)

Diluted earnings per share (EPS)

Why

Gathering and retaining assets and clients drives revenue.
Thisis managed on a scalable platform to deliver improved
operating profits.

Principal risks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory, financial.

Progressintheyear
Improved manager training and deployment of technology
delivering efficiencies on the Helpdesk and in Operations.

PBT grew 5% on the back of strong growth in assets and clients.

e £309.8M

(2018: £292.4m)
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Why
This is a measure of profit per share andis a metric used
to determine value delivered to shareholders.

Principal risks
Strategic, operational, legal and regulatory, financial.

Progressinthe year
The growthin diluted EPS was driven by the scalability of the
business model and continued strategic execution.

seun 92.0P

(2018: 49.6p)
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A FLEXIBLE,
TAX-EFFICIENT WAY T0
SAVE FOR RETIREMENT

A Self-Invested Personal Pension is different to a traditional pension. Instead of limiting
your investment options, a SIPP opens the doors, giving you more choice in how you invest
your money. Our SIPPs are one of the most tax-efficient and flexible ways of saving for your
retirement, offering online management, low costs, award-winning service and a wide
investment choice. With over 406,000 SIPP accounts, we're empowering people to save
andinvest with confidence.
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Risk management and the principal risks and uncertainties

EVALUATING
AND MANAGING
RISKS

1. Risk management

The Board has ultimate responsibility

for the Group's risk management and
determining an appropriate risk appetite

as well as setting the tolerance levels within
which the Group must operate. To assist
the Boardin dischargingits responsibilities,
the Group hasimplemented a
comprehensive approach to identifying,
mitigating, managing and monitoring risk
whichis described below.

Hargreaves Lansdown manages risk

at a consolidated level. The Group's

Risk Management Framework is designed
to manage risk within agreed appetite
levels andis aligned to delivering the
Group's strategy.

The Group aims for effective and proactive
risk managementintegratedinto the
culture of the Group as demonstrated

by the Hargreaves Lansdown 'values'.

24

Governance of the risk

and control framework

Risk management is acknowledged to

be a core responsibility of all colleagues

at Hargreaves Lansdown. The oversight of
risk and controls management is provided
by Board committees and the Group Risk
and Compliance functions. Arisk policy
suiteisin place, with policies reviewed on
an annual basis.

Key governance committees relating
specifically to the maintenance and
oversight of the risk and control
environmentinclude the plc Board

Plc Board

Audit Committee

Risk Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

Investment Committee

Figure 1: Board Committee structure
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andthe Board Risk Committee. The plc
Boardis responsible for overseeing the
Audit, Risk, Remuneration, Nomination and
Investment Committees. The Board Risk
Committeeis responsible for oversight of
the Executive Risk, CASS, Treasury and
Product Governance Committees. Itis
understood by the Chair of the plc Board
and Board Risk Committee that riskis a
core theme whichis demonstratedin all
committee discussions.

The activities of the Board and Executive
Committees are detailed inthe Corporate
governance report, page 54-60.

Executive
Committee

Model Governance
[ | Committee

Executive Risk
Committee

CASS
Committee

Treasury
Committee

Product
Governance
Committee

Figure 2: Executive Committee structure
with specific focus onrisk
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Risk Universe Risk Cycle

Risk Process

Risk Governance

Assessment
« Functional
« Thematic

Technology

Operational

Regulatory

Departmental
risks
« Financial

= - + Operational
Financial

Risk Appetite

Risk Appetite Statements

ICAAP
« Capital
« Liquidity

Identify
Assess
Mitigate
Manage & control
Monitor
Report

Executive
risks
«Emerging
« Strategic

Board
Risk
Committee

Risk Dashboard

Executive
Risk Committee

Team Risk Ml

Team Management

Group risk framework components

Figure 3: Risk management framework and reporting schematic

Risk management framework

The departmental risk register process

is the foundation of the Group's risk
framework. Each functional business area
completes arisk assessment, facilitated

by the Group Risk team. This is reviewed
alongside the periodic control performance
assessments and key risk indicators

(KRIs) to ensure emerging risks are also
captured and managed. Risk owners give
consideration to relevant operational losses,
process changes or system amendments
within the department. Where controls

are insufficient, management defines
improvements to bring risks within agreed
tolerance levels. Identified risks that have

a sufficiently high likelihood of potential
impact onthe Group are reportedin the risk
dashboard to ensure they receive a suitably
high level of Executive and Board attention.
The Executive and Board take action where
therisks are outside of tolerance levels

or may become so.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

Risk universe

Hargreaves Lansdown has a comprehensive
risk management framework (see figure 3),
capturing both forward looking risks and
current business as usual risks.

Risk materials are reviewed by the Board
and Executive Management teams on a
rolling basis with support from the second
line business functions.

The Group has an agreed and documented
risk universe, which sets out the high level
risk categories to which the business is
exposed and to which all risks are linked.
Risks are captured using both top-down and
bottom-up approaches and eachriskis
assigned to an agreed risk owner.

Therisk universe ensures that thereis
completenessin the capture of risks and
that there is consistency of treatment
across allrisk categories.

= Contents

Risk erse Risk Risk Events Risk Risk Risk Self
Appetite and Escalations Maturity Model Acceptance Assessment

Risk appetite

The Group's risk appetite is an articulation
of the nature and type of risks that the
Groupis willing to accept, or wants to avoid,
in order to achieve its business objectives.
Effective risk appetite statements combine
qualitative statements and quantitative
measures expressed relative to metrics
such as operational process, capital,
liquidity and other relevant measures.

The Group's risk appetite statements

are reviewed on at least an annual basis.
The Board has overall responsibility for
determining the nature and extent of the
risk it is willing to take and for ensuring that
risks are managed effectively across

the Group.

The Board sets the Group's risk appetite
and measures this across six risk categories,
with KRIs monitored against each.

These categories are strategic, technology,
operational, regulatory, conduct and
financial. AllKRIs include three statuses,
setting the required risk response level.

25

ddUBUIDA0D

SjuBWale]s [eIduURUL

uoleW IO IBYIO



Risk management and the principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk reporting

Risk datais reported on a monthly basis

by the Risk Team in a Risk Dashboard,
ensuring that there are appropriate levels
of transparency, discussion and challenge.
The dashboardreports on all the core
elements of risk management, including:
risks, risk appetite and risk events. Risk data
is also reviewed inlocalmanagement
meetings. The risk data reportedis based
onthe management information provided
by departments as well as cross department
functions such as second line Risk and
Compliance functions.

The firstline of defence owns andis
responsible for managing risk. There are
also teams with areas of specific focus
to support the maintenance of a strong
control framework. Key examples of first
line control functions include:

« CASS Oversight team —provides
guidance to operational teams on CASS
and provides oversight of the CASS
control environment;

« Operations Oversight team —provides
risk and control support to Operations,
creates Ml for the Operations
Management Team and manages
the Operations process framework; and

« Hargreaves Lansdown has a dedicated IT
Security team, which manages, tests and
controls the cyber control environment.

In the second line of defence, the
Compliance and Risk functionincludes
teams focused on prevention of money
laundering, prevention and detection
of fraud and data protection.

26

Individual Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process

The primary purpose of the ICAAP is to
ensure that thereis a clear, accurate and
transparent link between the risk profile
of the business and the capital held by
the firm. The ICAAP is overseen by the
Risk Committee, with facilitation provided
by the Risk function.

The Group has an established governance
framework that ensures all inputs,
decisions, assumptions, limitations and
outputs are reviewed, challenged and
approved by key governance forums
including Executive and Board Risk
Committees. The Group's annual ICAAP
reportis reviewed and approved by the
Board. The Group's ICAAP approach s
designed to be appropriate given the scale,
nature and complexity of its business
model.

Thereis an established Model Governance
Committee (MGC) that provides oversight
to the application of a statistical modelling
approach when assessing the Group's Pillar
Il Operational Risk capital. Further external
validation of the approachis commissioned
througha third party.

= Contents

Viability statement

The Board has considered the principal
risks, in arriving at the viability
statement below.

The principal risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group are detailed below.
The principal risks are categorised into
strategic, technology, operational,
regulatory, conduct and financial in
accordance with our risk framework.

Management and the Board regularly
discuss emerging risks. Topics discussed
during the periodincluded Brexit,

the market place, communications

from the FCA and the gender pay gap.

Assessment process

for the viability statement

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of
the UK Corporate Governance Code,
the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over the three-year period
to June 2022 and confirm that they have
areasonable expectation that the Group
will continue to operate and meetits
liabilities up to this date. The Directors'
assessment has been made with
reference to the Group's current
position and strategy, the Board's risk
appetite, the Group's financial forecasts
and the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties.

The Board considers that a time horizon
of three years is an appropriate period
over which to assess its viability and
prospects, and to plan the execution

of its strategy. This assessment period
is consistent with the Group's current
strategic forecast and ICAAP andit also
matches the timescale over which most
changes to major regulations and the
external landscape that affect our
business typically take place.

The strategic forecast is approved
annually by the Board and regularly
updated as appropriate. It considers the
Group's profitability, cash flows, dividend
payments, capital requirements and
other key variables such as exposure

to principal risks. It is also subjected to
stress tests and scenario analysis, such
as fluctuations in markets, increased
competition and disruption to business,
to ensure the business has sufficient
flexibility to withstand these impacts by
making adjustments to its plans within
the normal course of business.
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2. Principal risks
and uncertainties

The Board regularly assesses the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that
would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity.

In making such an assessment the
Board considers the likelihood of each
risk materialising in the short and longer

Strategic risks

Proposition and services

Owner:

Chief Executive Officer

Risk

Risk that HL does not provide the
proposition and services required to
achieve HL's strategy and purpose.

Potentialimpact

» Erosion of shareholder value

» Negative impact on achievement
of AUA and client number
strategic targets

» Negative impact on our reputation
as aninnovative market leader

Technology

Owner:

Chief Information Officer

Risk

Risk that HL fails to effectively
manage and maintain existing
technological architecture,
environments or components.

Potentialimpact

« Inability to maintain operational
efficiency

+ Increased costs

» Poorclient outcomes

» Reputational damage

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

term. The Board has considered the
principalrisks, inarriving at its viability
statement.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group are detailed below. The
principal risks are categorised into strategic
risks, legal and regulatory risks, conduct
risks, operational risks and financial risks as
per our risk framework. Principal risks
reported here are those with the greatest

Link to strategy: Link to HL values:
Attractive client

proposition make it easy

Mitigation and controls

+ The Executive team and Board discuss
strategy in the context of propositional
design and service enhancement
onaregular basis

+ Dedicated proposition/client
experience team

+ Clienttesting workshops

» Product governance process

+ Anoperational planisinplace
prioritising development

Link to strategy: Link to HL values:
Excellent client

service

Mitigation and controls

+ |IT Architecture Plan

» Rollinginternal and external monitoring
of IT environment

« Operational Plan, including prioritisation
of IT development

+ Integration of the development
capacity from HL Techin Poland

= Contents

Put the client first, do the right thing,

focus, and to which the organisation has the
largest exposure. The principal risks are
linked to risk appetite and KRI measures
forreporting.

Management and the Board regularly
discuss emerging risks. Topics discussed
during the period included Brexit,
communications from the regulator,

and third party services and solutions.

2018-2019 Change

INCREASING

Key risk indicators

NNB v forecast

Net Promoter Score
Client retention
Servicerating
Complaints

Risk events

2018/19 activity

Do theright thing, doit better

Launched Segregated Mandate
capability in HL Fund Managers
Development of Active Savings
proposition

Launch of Global Equity Fund
Launch of Wealth 50

2018-2019 Change

STABLE

Keyrisk indicators

System availability
Status of critical projects
Core system monitoring
System patching status

2018/19 activity

Continued development and evolution
of our core architecture
Platform security improvements
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Risk management and the principal risks and uncertainties continued

Strategic risks continued

Reputational

Owner: Link to HL values:

Executive Committee

Link to strategy:
Financial growth

Risk

Therisk that negative publicity, public
perception or uncontrollable events have
an adverseimpact on HL's reputation.

Mitigation and controls

mitigations and controls
« PRfunction, including access
to external advisors

Potentialimpact

» Reduced AUA and AUM

» Negative impact on HL revenue
« Erosion of shareholder value

Legal and regulatory risks

Regulation

Owner: Link to HL values:

Risk and Compliance Director

Link to strategy:
Excellent client
service

Risk

Risk that required regulatory change
is notimplemented to regulatory
expectations or requirements.

Mitigation and controls
« Compliance Plan
« Group Operating Plan

to review and challenge progress of
Potentialimpact

» Regulatory breaches

+ Increasedregulatory scrutiny, censure
orfines

» Missed opportunities to achieve
competitive advantage

to ensure business readiness

« The Compliance function performs
horizon checking to ensure the
Group has timely visibility of future
regulatory change

» Dialogue with the FCA
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Put the client first, go the extra mile, do
theright thing, make it easy, do it better

« Reputational risk is embedded within
all the principal risks and uncertainties,
andis considered within the relevant

Put the client first, do the right thing,
make it easy, doitbetter

« Change Committee meets monthly

regulatory change projects designed

2018-2019 Change

INCREASING

Key risk indicators

« NNB

+ Clientattrition
« NPS

2018/19 activity

» Management of the Woodford Equity
Income Fund suspension, engagement
with clients and external stakeholders

2018-2019 Change

STABLE

Keyrisk indicators

+ Volume of new outputs from
regulatory bodies

« Number of regulatory change projects

2018/19 activity

+ Delivery of CSDR changes

+ Ongoing CASS environment review and
improvement activities

» Projects ongoing: SMCR and PSD2
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Conduct risks

Client outcomes

Owner:

Chief People Officer

Risk

Risk that HL's culture and the HL values fall
to support and encourage appropriate
client focused conduct by all colleagues,
leading to poor conduct.

Potentialimpact

« Poor client outcomes

» Reputationaldamage

« Regulatory scrutiny

» Negative impact on the achievement
of our growth targets

Operational risks

Operational delivery

Owner:

Chief Financial Officer

Risk

Risk that HL fails to design or
implement appropriate policies,
processes or technology.

Potentialimpact
« Incorrect orinefficient delivery
of activities
« Regulatory or policy breaches
» Poorclient outcomes
+ Financiallosses including compensation
» Reputationaldamage

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

Link to strategy: Link to HL values:
Excellent client

service

Mitigation and controls

+ Business planslinked to colleague
surveys

+ Senior Management meet monthly
to oversee and drive client experience,
people and culture related activity

» Regular Conduct Risk Ml, discussed at
the Product Governance Committee

Link to strategy: Link to HL values:
Excellent client
service

Financial growth

Mitigation and controls

« Group risk management framework

+ Ongoing firstline of defence monitoring
of controls, control testing and
self-assessment

+ Process manuals and process mapping

» Operational Ml

« Controlfocus at key governance
forums, including: CASS Committee,
Operations Risk and Control
Committee, Executive Risk Committee,
Risk Committee.
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Put the client first, go the extra mile, do
the right thing, make it easy, do it better

Put the client first, do the right thing,
make it easy, doit better

2018-2019 Change

STABLE

Key risk indicators

» Glassdoorrating

« Employee surveys

« Clientsurveyresults

« Colleague retention

« Complaints

« Colleague attritionrate

2018/19 activity

« Quarterly "Town hall' Communications
sessions

« Leadership group restructured
and developed

« Establishment of a Corporate and social
responsibility programme

« Established abusiness led diversity,
inclusion and wellbeing programme
of activity

« Updated Performance Development
model

2018-2019 Change

STABLE

Keyriskindicators

» Riskevents

« Bestexecution monitoring
« Third party breaches

« Complaints

« Helpdesk call quality

« Employee retention rates

2018/19 activity

« Embedding of a process
framework model

« Processimprovements across
operational functions leadingto a
significant reductionin errors, complaints
and breaches
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Risk management and the principal risks and uncertainties continued

Operational risks continued

Business continuity

Owner: Link to strategy: Link to HL values: 2018-2019 Change

Chief Information Officer Excellent client Do the right thing, do it better STABI_E
service

Risk Mitigation and controls Key risk indicators

Risk that HL fails to manage theresilience  « Business continuity and disaster » Performance of BCP and DR tests

of operational functions. recovery plans tested regularly

« Dualhosting of all critical servers,

Potentialimpact telecommunications and applications 2018/19 activity
+ Inability to manage extreme . Separate business continuity/disaster « Enhancements to Business

orunexpected events recovery site available 24/7 Impact Analyses
» Operational errors » Review of our third party DR site
» Poor client outcomes
» Regulatory scrutiny
» Reputationaldamage

Financial crime and data protection

Owner: Link to strategy: Link to HL values: 2018-2019 Change
Chief Information Officer and Excellent client Put the client first, go the extra mile, do STABI_E
the Risk and Compliance Director service theright thing, make it easy, do it better
Risk Mitigation and controls Keyrisk indicators
Risk that HL fails to design orimplement » Dedicated Chief Information Security » Fraud monitoring
appropriate frameworks, including policies, Officer and team, and a Security » Cyber threat assessment
processes or technology, to counter HL Operations Centre focused on the « Time takento address security
being used to further financial crime. detection, containment, and remediation vulnerabilities

of information security threats
Potentialimpact . Dedicated Information Security, 2018/19 activity
+ Lossofdata Anti Money Laundering and Client » Aprogramme of training and awareness

« Poor client outcomes (including fraud)
» Negative impact on confidence in HL
+ Diminish the integrity of the

financial system

» Expansion of the Security
Operations Centre
+ Continuous cycle of cyber control

Protection teamsin place

« Formalpolicies and procedures and
arobust, rolling risk-based programme )
of penetration and vulnerability testing improvements
inplace
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Financial risks

Performance of markets

Owner:

Chief Financial Officer

Risk

Fluctuations in capital markets may
adversely affect trading activity and/or
the value of the Group's AUA or AUM,
fromwhich we derive revenues.

These fluctuations can result from

macro-economic or political concerns,

such as Brexit for example.

Potentialimpact
+ Reduced AUA and AUM
» Negativeimpact on HL revenue

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

Link to strategy: Link to HL values:
Financial growth N/A

Mitigation and controls

« The Group's business model comprises
both recurring platform revenue and
transaction-based revenue

+ Ahigh proportion of the AUA are held
within tax-advantaged wrappers,
meaning there s a lower risk of
withdrawal

« The Group has established a specific
Brexit-preparation workstream focused
mitigating business and clientimpacts
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2018-2019 Change

INCREASING

Keyriskindicators
« Interestrates
. FTSE100

2018/19 activity
« Ongoingdiscussionin the Executive
Committee
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Operating and Financial review

PHILIP JOHNSON
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CONTINUED GROWTH
IN AUA, PROFITS
AND DIVIDENDS

Assets Under Administration (AUA) and Net New Business (NNB)

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£bn £bn

Opening AUA 91.6 79.2
Underlying NNB 7.3 76
Market growth and other 0.4 59
Founder transfers! - (1.1)
Closing AUA 99.3 91.6

1 Underlying net new businessin 2018 excludes the transfer off the Vantage platform of £902 million of Hargreaves Lansdown plc shares and the withdrawal of £188 million
of Hargreaves Lansdown plc placing proceeds that were held by a founder.

The diversified nature of Hargreaves Lansdown, the breadth of our product offering and the provision of high quality services tailored
to the needs of our clients has allowed us to deliver another robust year for NNB and growth in AUA. We believe the Group's focus on
client serviceis core to our success as a business and positions us well for the structural growth opportunity in the UK savings and
investments market.

NNB for the year totalled £7.3 billion despite the backdrop of low investor confidence, record industry retail fund outflows for part of the
year and the continued Brexit and political uncertainty. This was driven by increased client numbers and continued wealth consolidation
onto our platform. We also benefited from new business from direct books totalling £1.2 billion. We remain in discussions with other fund
groups but have no further deals to announce at present.
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During the year to 30 June 2019 we introduced 133,000 net new clients to our services and grew our active

client base a further 12% to 1,224,000.

Thisincreased client population underpins future growth as clients add new money to their accounts, particularly through the use of
annual tax free allowances in the SIPP and ISA products. Over a period of time, clients also typically consolidate their investments through
transfers onto our platform. This growth was supported by our continued high retention rates.

Our focus on service and the value our clients place on our offering is evidenced by client and asset retention rates remaining strong
at 93.6% and 93.1% respectively. Our increased focus on digital marketing has been key in winning new clients and engaging with existing
ones, ensuring we become integral to their lives in terms of saving and investing for the future.

Total AUA increased by 8% to £99.3 billion as at 30 June 2019 (£91.6 bn as at 30 June 2018). This was driven by £7.3 billion of NNB and positive
market movement which added a further £0.4 billion.

Financial performance

Income statement

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Revenue 480.5 4475
Operating costs 179.4 (158.7)
Fair value gains on derivatives 2.2 2.3
Finance income 2.8 15
Finance costs (0.3) (0.2)
Profit before tax 305.8 292.4
Tax (58.2) (55.7)
Profit after tax 247.6 236.7

2019 profit before tax grew by 5% to £305.8 million. This was due to revenues increasing on the back of continued NNB-driven growth,
despite challenging external conditions at various points during 2019 and costs growing in line with client numbers, as signalled last year.

Revenue

Total revenue for the year was £480.5 million, up 7% (2018: £447.5m), driven by higher asset levels and improved margins on client cash. This
more than offset a fallin stockbroking commissions from reduced client share dealing activity due to unsettled market conditions and a
loss of investor confidence particularly around Brexit and political events. The proportion of recurring revenue has increased to 81% (2018:
77%) as the transactional stockbroking commissions have declined. Inline with the wider industry our share dealing volumes fell, however,
our market share of the UK execution only market continued to increase to 34.1%".

The table below breaks down revenue, average AUA and margins earned across the main asset classes which our clients hold with us.

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Average Revenue Average Revenue
Revenue AUA margin Revenue AUA margin
£m £bn bps £m £bn bps
Funds! 206.2 50.67 41 198.0 48.47 41
Shares? 86.2 31.4 27 89.6 28.3 32
Cash® 73.2 10.2 72 421 8.8 48
HL Funds* 68.3 9.2’ 74 67.2 9.1 74
Other® 46.6 0.5°¢ - 50.6 - -
Double-count’ - (9.1)7 - - (9.1 -
Total 480.5 92.8’ = 4475 85.57 -

1 Platform fees and renewal commission.

2 Stockbroking commission and equity holding charges.

3 Netinterestearnedon client money.

4 Annualmanagement charge on HL Funds, i.e. excluding the platform fee, whichis included in revenue on funds.

5 Advisory fees, FundsLibrary revenues, Active Savings and ancillary services (e.g. annuity broking, distribution of VCTs and Hargreaves Lansdown Currency and Market Services).
6 Average cash held via Active Savings.

7 HL Funds AUM included in Funds AUA for platform fee and in HL Funds for annual management charge. Total average AUA excludes HL Fund AUM to avoid double-counting.

1 Source: Compeer Limited XO Quarterly Benchmarking Report Quarter 12019
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Operating and Financial review continued

Revenue on Funds increased by 4% to £206.2 million (2018: £198.0m) due to AUA growth primarily from net new business. Funds remain our
largest client asset class at 55% of average AUA (2018: 56%), and the revenue margin earned on these this year was 41bps (2018: 41bps).
Revenue margins on Funds have been broadly stable following the completion of RDR and we continue to expect them to remain at similar
levels over the next 12 months. However, this guidance may be slightly impacted, depending on how long the current suspension on
dealingin the Woodford Equity Income Fund lasts. The suspension commenced in June 2019 and we took the decision to waive our
platform fee where clients directly held this fund. The loss of revenue is estimated at £360,000 per month and Link Asset Services, the
fund's Authorised Corporate Director, has confirmed that trading will likely be suspended until early December. Funds AUA at the end of
2019 was £53.8 billion (2018: £51.0bn).

Revenue on Shares decreased by 4% to £86.2 million (2018: £89.6m) and the revenue margin was 27bps (2018: 32bps), within our expected
range of 27bps to 33 bps. The impact of lower client driven equity dealing volumes, down 5% on the prior year, has only been partly offset by
agrowthin management fees. Management fees for shares chargedin the SIPP and Stocks and Share ISA accounts are capped once
holdings are above £44,444in a SIPP and £10,000 in an ISA. This causes some dilution to the margin over time as clients grow their portfolio
of shares. Shares account for 34% of the average AUA (2018: 34%). We expect the margin on Shares to be centred around 29bps over the
next 12 months, with a range around this depending on actual dealing volume levels. Shares AUA at the end of 2019 was £33.7 billion (2018:
£31.0bn).

Revenue on Cashincreased by 74% to £73.2 million (2018: £42.1m) as a result of increased cash levels combined with an increase in the
interest margin to 72bps (2018: 48bps). This was slightly ahead of our commmunicated expectations at the Interim results announcedin
January 2019, that margins would be within a 60bps to 70bps range. This was due to the yield curve anticipating further interest rate rises
that have so far not materialised. Cash accounts for 11% of the average AUA (2018: 10%). At the start of the year the Bank of England base
rate was 0.50% before being increased to 0.75% in August 2018. With the majority of clients' SIPP money placed onrolling 13 month term
deposits, and non-SIPP money on terms of up to 95 days, the fullimpact of the rate rise takes over a year to flow through. We anticipate the
cashinterest margin for the 2020 financial year will be in the range of 70bps to 80bps, although given the yield curve has fallen back recently
we expect margins in the first half of the year to be higher than the second half as higher rate deposits roll off and are replaced at a lower
rate. Cash AUA at the end of 2019 was £10.7 billion (2018: £9.6bn).

HL Funds consist of 10 Multi-Manager funds, on which the management fee is 75bps per annum, and three Select equity funds, the most
recent of which launchedin May 2019, where the management fee is 60bps. Revenue from these funds has grown by 2% this year to £68.3
million (2018: £67.2m) thanks to a slightly higher average value of the funds across the year. These fees are collected on a daily basis
whereas the Group calculates average AUM on a month end basis, resulting in a headline margin for the period of 74bps (2018: 74bps).
Recent growthin the HL Multi-Manager funds has been subdued and we expect this to remain a feature of 2020 flows, especially given
anumber of these funds have holdings in the Woodford Equity Income Fund. Note that the platform fees on these assets are included
inthe Fundsline and hence total average AUA of £92.8 billion (2018: £85.5bn) excludes HL Funds AUM to avoid double-counting. HL Funds
AUM at the end of 2019 was £9.4 billion (2018: £9.6bn).

Assets held within Active Savings on the platform and the related revenue are not yet broken out into a separate category in the table
above. In September 2018, we increased the level of marketing and promotional activity for Active Savings, believingitis strategically
imperative to capture the scale advantage of being a first mover. Consequently our focus has been and continues to be on growing AUA
at present. Our chosen route for achieving this in the current low interest rate environment is via reducing our revenue margins to ensure
the rates offered on Active Savings are highly competitive. This will attract new clients and assets into the service that we need to
capitalise on the opportunity. As at 30 June 2019, the AUA was £986 million. The associated revenue is included in the category of "Other”
such that the total revenue reconciles back to the income statement.

Other revenues are made up of advisory fees, our Funds Library data services, Active Savings and ancillary services such as annuity
broking, distribution of VCTs and the Hargreaves Lansdown Currency and Market Services. These revenues are largely transactional and
declined by 8%. Early in the year we stopped taking box profits on the buying and selling of units of our own funds leading to a reduction
inrevenue of £1.3 million. In addition, following the implementation of IFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers), cash incentives
givento clients that were previously shown as marketing costs are now considered to be a reductionin revenue and the charge was £1.1
millioninthe year.

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Recurring revenue 387.3 3449
Transactional revenue 84.3 94.0
Other revenue 8.9 8.6
Totalrevenue 480.5 4475
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The Group's revenues are largely recurring in nature, as shown in the table above, with the proportion of recurring revenues increasing to
81% (2018: 77%). Recurring revenue is primarily comprised of platform fees, Hargreaves Lansdown fund management fees, interest on
client money, equity holding charges and ongoing advisory fees. It grew by 12% to £387.3 million (2018: £344.9m) due to increased average
AUA from continued net new business and higher interest rates earned on client money. Recurring revenues provide greater profit
resilience and hence we believe they are of higher quality than non-recurring revenues.

Transactional revenue is primarily made up of stockbroking commission and advisory event-driven fees. This declined by 10% to
£84.3 million (2018: £94.0m) with a 5% decrease in client driven equity deal volumes being the key driver. The removal of box profits and the
implementation of IFRS 15 were also factors in the revenue reduction.

Other revenue is derived from the provision of funds data services and research to external parties through Funds Library. This was
up 3% from £8.6 million to £8.9 million, driven by new MiFID Il services and some targeted price increases which more than offset some
lost contracts.

Operating costs

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Staff costs 97.2 874
Marketing and distribution costs 12.7 16.3
Depreciation, amortisation & financial costs 12.4 10.3
Other costs 50.3 41.2
172.6 155.2

Total FSCS levy 6.8 35
Total operating costs 179.4 158.7

Operating costs increased by 13% to £179.4 million (2018: £158.7m) to support higher client activity levels, maintain client service and invest
in the significant growth opportunities we see ahead for Hargreaves Lansdown.

As highlighted previously, we consciously and significantly increased our investment in people, digital marketing and technology during

the 2017 and 2018 financial years as we believe the Group's focus on client service is core to our success and necessary to capture the
structural growth opportunity in the UK savings and investments market. This investment has been validated by net new business flows,
net new clients, increased market shares, high client retention rates and continued development of our product set and growth capabilities
during the period. Having gone through this period of investment catch up the growth rate in costs, excluding the FSCSlevy, has slowed to
11% for the year with cost growth of just 5% in the second half of the year versus the equivalent period in 2018. Looking forward we would
anticipate that costs will grow more in line with the growth of client numbers.

Staff costs remain our largest expense and rose by 11% to £97.2 million (2018: £87.4m). Average staff numbers increased by 13% from 1,398
in 2018 to 1,574 in 2019 with the key increases being in Technology, on the Helpdesk and in Operations, inline with higher client activity
levels, and Marketing. Hargreaves Lansdown is a growing business and higher client numbers and associated activity levels will continue to
require investmentin our servicing functions as we look forward. Technology and efficiency programmes improve our scalability, thereby
allowing us to invest productivity gains into extending our proposition and our platform functionality. We believe this reinvestment cycle
underpins our future growth.

Marketing and distribution costs decreased by 22% to £12.7 million (2018: £16.3m). Although we continued to invest in our digital marketing
presence and targeted marketing campaigns for Active Savings, our Retirement Services and transfer mailing cash backincentives, a
change inthe accounting for the latter has led to a reductionin the overall charge. In line with IFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with
Customers), cashincentives given to clients are now considered to be a reduction in revenue, whereas previously these incentives were
considered a marketing cost. As aresult, £2.0 million of cash incentive payments are nolonger charged as a cost and instead are being
offset against revenue and spread over a 12-month period, that being the minimum period for which clients must remain on the platform
following a cashincentive payment. These costs will be deducted from otherincome to maintain consistency with assets and margin
disclosure data. In the year to 30 June 2019, £1.1 million has been deducted from other income.

Use of mobile and digital media remains a key strategic focus of how we engage with existing and potential new clients. We have worked
hard at gaining a deeper understanding of our client segmentation and have invested in our use of data analytics and the addition of
specialist content writers. Although there is much more to do, we are already seeingimproved effectiveness on our marketing spend as
more tailored content is now delivering better conversion rates on marketing campaigns. We will continue to invest in marketing despite
investor uncertainty as communication at times like these is valued by existing clients and will put us at the forefront of the minds of
potential new clients.
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Operating and Financial review continued

Depreciation, amortisation and financial costs increased by £2.1 million to £12.4 million as a result of higher capital spendin recent years,
primarily on our core in-house IT systems, hardware and software for increased employee numbers and the Active Savings platform.

Total capitalised expenditure was £17.1 million this year (2018: £16.1m). This expenditure was from cyclical replacement of IT hardware, the
continuing project to enhance the capacity and capability of our key administration systems and the ongoing development of the Active
Savings platform.

Other costs rose by £9.1 million to £50.3 million (2018: £41.2m). The key drivers of this were increased computer maintenance and office
costs driven by higher employee numbers and additional office space, increased professional fees andirrecoverable VAT on non-staff
expenses.

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) levy rebased upwards by £3.3 million or 94% to £6.8 million. This was caused by

a combination of a restructure of the fee blocks leading to pension and product providers like us bearing a higher proportion of the
amounts being raised and our fee growth being above the wider market. The FSCSis the compensation fund of last resort for customers
of authorised financial services firms. Allauthorised firms are required to contribute to the running of the scheme and the levy reflects
the cost of compensation payments paid by the industry in proportion to the amount of each participant's relevant eligible income.

Profit before tax
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Operating profit 303.3 2911
Financeincome 2.8 15
Finance costs (0.3) (0.2)
Profit before tax 305.8 292.4
Tax (58.2) (55.7)
Profit after tax 247.6 236.7

The Group has grown profit before tax by 5% to £305.8 million (2018: £292.4m) and profits after tax also grew by 5% to £247.6 million as the
headline statutory corporation tax rate remained unchanged at 19.0%.

Tax
The effective tax rate for the year was 19.0% (2018: 19.0%), in line with the standard rate of UK corporation tax. The Group's tax strategy
is published on our website at www.hl.co.uk.

EPS
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Profit after tax 247.6 236.7
Diluted share capital (million) 475.8 475.4
Diluted EPS (pence per share) 52.0 496

Diluted EPS increased by 5% from 49.6 pence to 52.0 pence, reflecting the Group's growth in profit after tax. The Group's Basic EPS
was 52.1 pence compared with 49.7 pence in 2018.

Liquidity and capital management

Hargreaves Lansdown looks to create long-term value for shareholders by balancing our desire to deliver profit growth, capital
appreciation and an attractive dividend stream to shareholders with the need to maintain a market-leading offering and high service
standards for our clients.

The Group seeks to maintain a strong net cash position and a robust balance sheet with sufficient capital and liquidity to fund ongoing
trading and future growth, in line with our strategy of offering a lifelong, secure home for people's savings and investments. The Group has
a high conversion rate of operating profits to cash andits net cash position at 30 June 2019 was £394.0 million (2018: £343.5m) as cash
generated through trading offset the payments of the 2018 final dividend and the 2019 interim dividend. This includes cash on longer-term
deposit andis before funding the 2019 final dividend of £110.9 million and special dividend of £39.2 million.

The Group has a Revolving Credit Facility agreement with Barclays Bank to provide access to a further £75 million of liquidity. This is currently
undrawn and was putin place to further strengthen the Group's liquidity position and increase our cash management flexibility. The Group
also funds a share purchase programme to ensure we avoid any dilution from operating our share-based compensation schemes.
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The healthy net cash position provides both a source of competitive advantage and support to our client offering. It provides security to
our clients, giving them confidence to manage their money through us over many years, and allows us to provide them with an excellent
service, for example through using surplus liquidity to allow same day switching between products that have mismatched settlement dates.

Capital
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Shareholder funds 458 404
Less: goodwill, intangibles and other deductions (24) (24)
Tangible capital 434 380
Less: provision for dividend (150) (142)
Qualifying regulatory capital 284 238
Less: estimated capital requirement (186) (159)
Surplus capital 98 79

Total attributable shareholders' equity, as at 30 June 2019, made up of share capital, share premium, retained earnings and other reserves
increased to £457.8 million (2018: £404.0m) as continued profitability more than offset payment of the 2018 final and special dividends and
the 2019 interim dividend. Having made appropriate deductions as shown in the table above, surplus capitalamounts to £98 million.

The Group has three subsidiary companies authorised and regulated by the FCA and one subsidiary authorised by the FCA under the
Payment Services Regulations 2017. These firms have capital resources at a level which satisfies both their regulatory capital requirements
and their working capital requirements and, as a group, we maintain a robust balance sheet retaining a capital base over and above
regulatory capital requirements. Further disclosures are publishedin the Pillar 3 document on the Group's website at www.hl.co.uk.

Dividend policy and 2019 declarations

Hargreaves Lansdown has a progressive ordinary dividend policy. The Board considers the dividend on a total basis, with the intention

of maintaining the ordinary dividend payout ratio at around 65% across the market cycle and looking to return excess cash to shareholders
inthe form of a special dividend after the year end. Any such return will be determined according to market conditions and after taking
account of the Group's growth, investment and regulatory capital requirements at the time.

Dividend (pence per share)

2019 2018
Interim dividend paid 10.3p 10.1p
Final dividend declared 23.4p 221p
Total ordinary dividend 33.7p 32.2p
Special dividend 8.3p 7.8p
Total dividend 42.0p 40.0p

Reflecting this policy, the Board has declared a 2019 total ordinary dividend of 33.7 pence per share (2018: 32.2p), 5% ahead of last year. This
isinline with EPS growth and maintains the ordinary dividend payout ratio at 65%. In addition, the Board has declared a special dividend of
8.3 pence per share (2018:7.8p). The 2019 total dividend of 42.0 pence per share (2018: 40.0p) is up 5% and results in a total dividend payout
ratio of 80.6% (2018: 80.6%). Subject to shareholder approval of the final dividend at the 2019 AGM, the final and special dividends will be
paid on 18 October 2019 to all shareholders on the register at the close of business on 27 September 2019.

The Boardis confident that Hargreaves Lansdown has sufficiently strong financial, liquidity and capital positions to execute its strategy
without constraints and can operate a sustainable and progressive ordinary dividend policy going forward. The Board remains committed
to paying special dividends in future years should sufficient excess cash and capital exist after taking account of market conditions and
the Group's growth, investment and regulatory capital requirements at the time.

Philip Johnson
Chief Financial Officer

7 August 2019
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Non-financial information statement

As a FTSE 100-listed business, we have animportant
responsibility to contribute to the communities
around us and the wider economy.

We focus on driving high levels of corporate  This section of the Strategic Report
responsibility, governance and sustainability — constitutes the Group's Non-Financial

and look to engage with a wide range of Information Statement for the purposes
stakeholders in order to help create value of sections 414CA and 414CB of the
forall. Companies Act 2006. The information

listedisincorporated by reference.

Policies and standards which govern Due diligence, outcomes and
Reporting requirement ourapproach additional information Page
Environmental matters We are committedto beinga The environment, sustainability 46-47
sustainable business that takes and climate change

responsibility for how we manage
theimpact we have on the
environment and climate change.

Employees Our people strategy Corporate social responsibility 40-47
Culture, values and behaviours Employees 42-45
at Hargreaves Lansdown ) )

Board diversity 59
Annual discretionary bonus policy )
Remuneration report 68-87
Health and safety policy
Gender pay gap 42 and 69
Policy on Board Diversity
Diversity and inclusion strategy
Internal HR policies include:
Equal opportunities and
harassment (dignity at work)
policy, flexible working policy,
compassionate and family
leave policies and an employee
assistance programme.
Social Corporate social Corporate social responsibility 40-47
ibility strat
responsibility strategy Community 4546
Volunteering polic
. rngpelcy Tax Strategy 48
Tax strategy

Respect for humanrights Human Rights policy Human rights 45
Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking policy

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery Anti-Bribery policy Corporate social responsibility 45
Whistleblowing policy Anti-bribery and corruption 41
Gifts and hospitality policy

1 Certainpolicies and standards are not published externally.

Additional information Page

Description of principal risks and impact Principal risks and uncertainties, conduct risk (client outcomes) 29and 30

of business activity and operationalrisk (financial crime)

Description of the business model Business model 12-13

Non-financial key performance indicators Strategy and KPIs 20-22
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FINANGIAL ADVICE
FOR A BETTER FUTURE

Our financial advisers help thousands of clients each year to make the right investment
decisions to meet their financial objectives. Whether you're an active investor, a diligent
saver or your financial situation has taken a sudden change, HL Financial Advice will help you
geta clear view on the present and a strong plan. We might discover you don't need advice,
if that's the case we'll support you with free information to help you get on track.

We're empowering people to save and invest with confidence.
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Corporate social responsibility

We are committed to Corporate social responsibility
and want it to be embedded into our policies and
practices to the benefit of stakeholders and the wider

community with long-term sustainable outcomes for all.

Our approach to corporate citizenship is based on four pillars

7

Clients

(

Environment

Community

Our purpose is to empower people to save and invest with confidence.
Achieving this will help them to make more of their money throughout their
lifetime. Our values are rootedin placing the client at the heart of what we do.
We believe that doing the right thing makes great business sense. We work
for the long-term, looking beyond immediate success.

This year we have relaunched our Corporate social responsibility (CSR) strategy
with three core aspirations:

« Toreduce the UK Savings Gap;

« Tosupport Bristol as a city where everyone can thrive; and

» Toactresponsibly, ensuring we are a good corporate citizen.

We approach these core aspirations by formulating our approach and activity
around four pillars:

Clients Community Environment
Page 41 Page 42 Page 45 Page 46
40 = Contents

Our success is founded on delivering
incredible client service through the skills
and passion of our people who bring our
values tolife across the business. We take
the responsibility of looking after clients'
investments extremely seriously. Only
from creating trust and true client focus,
through our embedded values, can we build
long-term relationships and deliver on our
strategy to the benefit of both clients

and shareholders.

- We put theclient first—fromthe
day-to-day exceptional client experience,
to the constantimprovement of our
services, we use client feedback to shape
future development. It's their future in our
hands.

« We go the extra mile —for our clients
and for each other. We focus on what
we need to do, then do it well, taking
every opportunity to delight, inspire
andreassure.

« Wedo theright thing—We're fair, honest
and upfront and do the best for our clients.
We focus on the long-term. It's why they
trust us, and how we earn their loyalty.

« We makeit easy - Savings and
investments should be easy to access,
understand and do. We make things
simple which gives our clients confidence
to make important decisions at the
right time.

« Wedoitbetter—energetically innovating
andimproving. When things aren't
working well, we fix them.
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g Clients

66 Looking after clients to ensure
they are empowered financially.

Putting clients first

Ensuring that our clients are happy with

our products and services, trusting us to
keep theirinterests at heart, and listening to
their concerns is paramount to empowering
people financially. To achieve this, we actively
seek our clients’ views and feedback
through surveys and focus groups and use
this insight to shape our services, products
and features.

We recognise that sometimes we make
mistakes. If clients ever feelthe need to
complain, our client services team carefully
investigate our client's complaint and
endeavours to provide them with a fair
outcome and timely resolution. We learn
from these experiences.

We benchmark our performance in treating
clients fairly against statistics published
annually by the Financial Ombudsman
Service for the industry. The results for the
2019 financial year compared to the last
figures published by the Ombudsman show
that Hargreaves Lansdown is both fair and
responsive in such circumstances.

Going the extra mile

We understand that clients have differing
financial needs and goals. Ensuring that
we can service these different needs and
exceed expectations wherever we canis
important to us. Our broad offering means
we can assist clients throughout their
financial lifetime. Listening, finding solutions
and treating our clients as individuals
ensures we provide them with an
exceptional personal experience.

We believe that when clients are faced with
an exceptional experience, they willhave the
trust and confidence to engage with their
finances. To help, over the year we've kept
our Helpdesk open on Sundays and late into
the night during the ever busy tax year end.

Doing theright thing

We pride ourselves on our integrity inall our
dealings and decisions as a business with
the aim of being clear, fair and transparent.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

We want to do the right thing by our clients
and we are committed to providing an
exceptional service to all of our clients and
offering the support they need. Our clients
cover adiverse range of backgrounds and
we want to ensure that all clients are treated
fairly, regardless of their circumstances.
We have undertaken workinto how better
to support our vulnerable clients. We have
a partnership with Dementia UK to ensure
that we can support vulnerable clients and
train colleagues to ensure we are doing the
right thing for vulnerable clients.

We recognise that the views and experience
of our colleagues are important and
through our Whistleblowing Policy we
encourage our people to raise any concerns
about malpractice or wrongdoing within the
workplace. All concerns are treated with the
utmost confidence andin full compliance
with the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.
All colleagues undergo annual training
whichincludes anti-money laundering,
protecting client money, spotting market
abuse, data protection, information security
and fraud prevention.

Making it easy

To empower more people to engage with
their finances and make good long-term
decisions, we aim to make dealing with us
as easy and efficient as possible. We aim to
educate and empower people to make the
right choices for them through the tools,
guides andresearch we provide.

Our clients range from first time investors,
to the highly experienced with different
levels of confidence, time and willingness
to engage with their finances. The ongoing
challengeis to create an experience that
will suit these individual needs and maintain
abroad appeal to anyone who wants to
engage in saving and investing.

Our client experience team is dedicated
to making things easier for people. They
monitor feedback, frequent problems and
pinch-points on clientjourneys and use
theseinsights to streamline client
interactions.

The outcomeis that clients are able to
conduct their business with as little hassle
as possible. Information on our website

is easy to find and targeted for different
needs; application processes are
streamlined and only ask for the information
we really need; and if you contact us by
telephone you will be put through directly
toaknowledgeable personrather thanan
automated telephone system.
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Doingitbetter

We continually challenge ourselves to
deliver a better, more innovative service for
our clients. We launched our Active Savings
service to provide clients with the same
experience with their cash savings as they
have with theirinvestments —making it
simple and easy to move money from one
account to another to get better rates on
their cash.

Through our relaunched Wealth 50, our
Active Savings service, improved mobile
experience and our HL Select funds, we
demonstrate our constant desire to deliver
new ways to help clients with their savings
andinvestments in a way that suits them.

Our Workplace Solutions team deliver
financial education to our corporate clients
helping people to understand and engage
with their finances.

Campaigning on behalf of UK investors
We always endeavour to do the right thing
for our clients and other stakeholders. We
actively seek to lobby via public consultation
and with policymakers where we believe
thatinvestorsinthe UK willbenefit.
Examplesinclude:

» Leadinganindustryinitiative to improve
the transfer of investors' money between
companies;

» Lobbyingthe DWP to give employees
more control over their workplace
pensions and improved access to
pensions for the self-employed;

+ Working with trade associations and
HMRC to simplify Child Trust Fund and
ISArules;

+ Challenging HMRC on the 'discount tax'.
In March 2018, Hargreaves Lansdown
won the 'discount tax' HMRC challenge
which would mean the return of around
£15 million to our clients. However, HMRC
has decided to appeal theinitial ruling
and we now expect aresolution before
the end of 2019;

» Working with HM Treasury to support the
new ban on cold calling to reduce the risk
of pension fraud; and

« Lobbyingindustry and the DWP on the
importance of engaging people with their
workplace pension.
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Employees

e6 Engaging our people by
creating an inclusive, diverse
and healthy workforce with
equal opportunities for all.

We are committed to attracting, developing
and retaining talented people who put our
clients at the heart of everything we do.
Our people are proud of what they achieve
together, and have a strong sense of
belonging to Hargreaves Lansdown and
everyone recognises the crucial role that
they play.

Our people strategy

The strength of our people is pivotal to our
business and we aim to motivate and inspire
them to achieve greatness through:

« Attracting, developing and retaining
outstanding people;

« Embeddinga client centric culture where
we live our values;

- Buildinga strongtalent pipeline to enable
the long-term success of the Group; and

» Supporting our people to deliver our
strategic goals and lead change at pace.

Building diversity and inclusion

Diversity is a broad issue encompassing
variations in experience, skills, age and
background, as well as more traditional
diversity factors such as ethnic origin,
disability, religious beliefs, sexual orientation
and gender. We believe in building a culture
and environment that attracts, values and
retains people fromall backgrounds, life
experiences, preferences and beliefs —
ensuring they are recognised and respected
as individuals and valued for the different
perspectives they bring.

Chris Hill, CEOQ, is the Executive Committee
member responsible for our diversity and
inclusion programme, which ensures we
have the appropriate level of focus in this
area to back up our commitment with
meaningful action and positive change.

More details can be found at
www.hl.co.uk/about-us/diversity
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We have human resource policies in place
to attract a diverse workforce and our
people can expectto developinan
environment thatis free from discrimination
and harassment.

We give full consideration to applications
for employment from disabled persons.

If colleagues become disabled the Group
always strives to continue employment,
either in the same or an alternative position,
with appropriate retraining being given

if necessary. A fullassessment of any
disabled employee's needs is undertaken
and reasonable adjustments are made to
the work environment or practices in order
to assist them.

Our HL colleague networks aim to help
support diversity andinclusion. They
continue to grow their membership,
activities andinfluence and include:

« Genderdiversity group;
« Cultural diversity group;
« Kaleidoscope (LGBT+);
« Mentalfitness group;

« Sports and social group;

« Environment, sustainability
and climate change group; and

« Community engagement.

Gender pay gap

In early 2019 we published our second
gender pay gap report. Chris Hill, CEO
commented "Diversity and inclusion are
extremely important to me. | believein
building a culture and environment that
attracts, values and retains people fromall
walks of life, regardless of background and
beliefs. The diversity of thought, experience
and creativity will help us to understand
and serve our increasingly diverse range
of clients.”

Although our gender pay gapis not yet
where we want it to be we are making
progress against our action plantoincrease
the proportion of womenin senior roles.
We expect the gender pay gap to reduce
over time and we are committed to making
improvements and supportingall
colleagues who wish to progress their
careers regardless of gender or
background. Progress to date includes:

« Aclear commitment from the Board and
senior leadership to fairness, equality,
diversity and inclusion;
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+ TheBoard has afemale Chair and three
other female members giving female
representation of 44%;

+ The Chair and Chief Executive Officer are
members of the 30% Club and HL has
signed the Womenin Finance Charter,
both committing to increase the number
of women in senior positions;

« Fourthin FTSE 100 ranking of
Women on Boards and in Leadership —
Hampton-Alexander Review; and

» Greater support for colleagues who take
career breaks, through improved parental
and returner programmes and flexible
working.

Q Full details of our Gender Pay Gap
report can be found at www.hl.co.
uk/about-us/gender-pay-gap

Attracting andretaining

outstanding people

Hargreaves Lansdownis an employer of
choice for talented people. We use our
Talent Acquisition Strategy and our Reward
Strategy to ensure we attract and retain
the right people to meet our short, medium
andlong-term business needs.

Our Talent Acquisition strategy aims to:

« Bringnewtalentandideas to the
business toincrease equality, diversity
and inclusion;

» Support parents with flexible working
options, part-time opportunities and
returning to work programmes;

» Create stronger links with local schools,
colleges, universities and our local
communities;

« Expand our apprenticeship schemes;

+ Improve brand awareness among young
talent and millennials; and

» Support future recruitment needs.

Key to attracting and retaining the best
peopleis our approach toreward. We use
independently benchmarked pay and
benefits data to ensure we pay our
colleagues fairly for the work they do.

To complement our pay, we include the
majority of our colleaguesin a bonus
schemelinked to the success of Hargreaves
Lansdown and individual performance.
The'how'is justasimportant to us as the
‘what'and colleagues are assessed on the
delivery of their objectives, the behaviours
they display and how they've demonstrated
our values.
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Our workforce

2019 total workforce FTE =1,586
2018 total workforce FTE =1,499

As at 30 June 2019
Board of Other senior Total employees
directors management’ (FTE)
Female 4 (44%) 7 (18%) 516 (33%)
Male 5 (56%) 33(83%) 1,070 (67%)

1 Othersenior managementis defined as an employee who has responsibility for planning,

direction or controlling the activities of the Group, or a strategically significant part of the

Group, other than the Board of Directors.

We believe that our employees should be
able to share in the success of our business
and all colleagues are eligible to sign up to
our Save as You Earn (SAYE) scheme. As at
30 June 2019, 58% of eligible employees
werein at least one SAYE scheme.

To complement the direct financial rewards,

we provide pension contributions which
includes a double matching scheme to
encourage our colleagues to save for their
retirement and extended life insurance
protection. HL Rewards, our flexible
benefits scheme, includes health checks,
extended holiday entitlements, medical
health cover, a health cash plan, discount
cards, a cycle to work scheme and child
care vouchers.

Developing people and building
a talent pipeline

We have developed arange of schemes

to widen our recruitment pool, improve
diversity, and grow the skills and capabilities
of our people including:

« Apprenticeships;
« Internships;

« Placements;

« Graduate scheme;
« Mentoring; and

« Secondments.

We offer two types of apprenticeship:
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Our New Specialist Apprenticeship (NSA)
is an opportunity for someone who wants
tomove into a particular profession, but
doesn't have the previous experience or
qualifications to move into that specialism.
Thisis often someone that hasjust
completed school or college. However,
thisis aninclusive opportunity and we
consider applicants of any age.

The Career Development Apprenticeship
(CDA)is an apprenticeship for colleagues
who are already working at HL in a specialist
role and would benefit from developing
their skills through completing arecognised
qualification.

Inthe yearto 30 June 2019, there were 12
people on the apprenticeship scheme and
we added three more to this programmein
the summer 2019 intake.

We offer Internships of 6-12 weeks paid
work experience which attract students
on their summer break. HL first piloted
the scheme in 2016 and interns complete
various administrative tasks and mini
project work. Our aimis to implement

a structured scheme where students
can gain valuable experience and provide
short-term resource for the business.
We hope that the interns will return to HL
on other youth training schemes, for
example the Apprenticeship Scheme or
Industrial Placement Scheme. There were
sixinternsin the year to 30 June 2019.
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33%
Female

32%
Female

Our Industrial Placement Schemeis
designed to give nine students a preview
of working life over a 12-month period and
gain hands on experience of our working
and social life. Doing everythingin-house
plays to their advantage, as we offer
placementsin a variety of business areas as
well as plenty of additional projects in which
to getinvolved. As part of the programme,
placement students work on alive client-
focused project whichis presented back

to our CEO.

Our graduate training scheme looks to
develop future leaders on our bespoke
two-year programme with rotations

across key departments before choosing

a specialism. Graduates are coached

by senior managers and directors, and
mentored by previous graduates. At the
end of the programme, the graduates finda
role at HL that matches their personal skills
and ambitions. We had three new graduates
start the scheme this year, and expect four
to startin September 2019. We welcome
applicants from a broad range of
backgrounds and we don't target specific
universities or courses.
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Learning and developmentis a key
component of our People Strategy, and
it'simportant to us that all colleagues have
the opportunity to develop their skills
regardless of experience, age, background,
orrole. We recognise the importance of
building a pipeline of skilled and motivated
talent for future leadership roles and have
developed arobust talent framework to
ensure we deliver this pipeline and retain
those in business critical roles. We also
believe in the need to encourage and
support diversity through the pipeline and
are committed to ensuring all colleagues
are provided with equal opportunities for
development and feel confident about
progressing their careers. The Hargreaves
Lansdown Learning Academy is used to
house our new starterinduction
programme, career development
programmes, manager training and team
building events.

We have created a career development
path for both specialist and managerial
career streams, recognising the differences
in skills required. We use this to help
colleagues understand where they can
develop. We use the 70:20:10 model to
support our colleagues in their continuing
personal and professional learning and
development. Colleagues obtain 70 percent
of theirknowledge and development from
job-related experiences, 20 percent from
interactions with others, and 10 percent
from formal educational events or exams.

Following research into diversity and
inclusion at Hargreaves Lansdown, we
launched the HL Career Confidence
mentoring scheme in the year to 30 June
2019. The purpose of the scheme is to build
confidence and support people from all
backgrounds to achieve their career
aspirations. Available to all colleagues, the
first cohort consisted of 65 mentees.
Mentoring has been shown to be helpful to
improve both confidence and diversity and
we willbe expanding this scheme.
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We also launched the South West
Mentoring Awards to recognise people for
their contribution to supporting diversity
through mentoring and have developed the
South West Mentoring Network to ensure
that best practice is developed across
organisations inthe South West.

Employee engagement

Itis widely recognised that an organisation
whose employees are engaged with its
purpose, values and culture will perform
better than others, and create value for
clients and shareholders. Thisis because
engaged employees feela strong
connection with their employer and believe
their workis important.

Itis crucial therefore that we communicate
with our people ensuring they understand
our purpose, vision and priorities and how
they each play their partin the development
of our business. We do this via a coordinated
internal communications programme which
includes presentations by the CEO, senior
management insight talks, monthly CEO
updates, weekly and monthly newsletters
for all colleagues. Celebrating success and
our achievements, also serve as a great
means of engagement.

We believeitisimportant to listen and
understand our colleagues' views and
motivation; their honest feedback is crucial
in evolving our colleague engagement
programme. Our most recent annual
colleague engagement survey received a
strong response rate of 72% and our overall
engagement score remained stable at 61%.
Areas of particular strength included
“colleagues who would recommend

HL's products or services to a friend”

(90% favourable) and "colleagues who
believe the Company provides a high quality
client experience (84% favourable).

Areas forimprovementinclude "colleagues
who receive high quality support from
other business areas" (35% favourable)

and "colleagues who believe pay is fair
compared to similar work in other
companies” (35% favourable).

= Contents

Supporting wellbeing

Our people are central to delivering our
vision and strategy; ensuring their well-
beingis of key importance to us. We do this
through our excellent rewards package and
awider curriculum of activities and support,
ensuring there is something for everybody.

As part of our colleague wellbeing
programme, over the last year we have
introduced a new Employee Assistance
Programme, a mental health app,

made mental health training available

to managers, increased the numbers of
qualified first aiders and have introduced
Well-Being Champions, all supported by our
HL Mental Fitness network group. We also
participatedin the Mind Wellbeing Index
and survey for the first year and were
commended with a 'Silver'award which
demonstrates the importance of colleague
wellbeing to us.

Sportisanimportant part of daily life and
away of engaging and evolving different
community groups. HL has various
colleague sports teams, and runs mixed
sports and social events on a regular basis,
and our HL Sports and Social network helps
to coordinate events. Many colleagues also
do avariety of sporting activities to raise
money for our HL Foundation. Other
initiatives include Personal Development,
Community Matters and Healthy Mind
weeks where arange of workshops and
classes are runtoraise awareness and
promote a healthy working environment for
colleagues.
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Human Rights

Hargreaves Lansdown has a zero tolerance
approach to slavery and human trafficking
of any kind within our business operations
and supply chains. We are committed to
acting ethically and with integrity in all our
business dealings and relationships and
toimplementing and enforcing effective
systems and controls to ensure slavery is
not taking place anywhere in our business,
orinany of our supply chains. We recognise
thisis a serious global issue and are
committed toimproving our practices

and playing our partin combatting slavery
and human trafficking.

This year we introduced a Human Rights
policy and we are fully compliant with our
obligations under the Modern Slavery Act
2015. One of our core valuesis to do the
right thing, whichincludes treating people
fairly whether they are our clients,
colleagues, contractors or people working
in our supply chain.

We all have aresponsibility to be alert to

the risks of modern slavery, however small.
We continue to take further steps to ensure
we have the right training and controls

in place to combat slavery and human
trafficking, andin our statement we explain
how we are doing this.

Please visit our website —
www.hl.co.uk/__data/assets/
pdf_file/0009/11399832/Modern-
Slavery-Act.pdf

Anti-bribery and corruption

Hargreaves Lansdown maintains a full suite
of policies and procedures to guard against
bribery and corruption. This includes an
Anti-Bribery Policy, outlining the offences,
responsibilities of all staff members and
clear reporting procedures; a Whistleblowing
policy and process; Fraud, Anti-money
laundering and Market Abuse; policies and
procedures for dealing with making and
accepting gifts and hospitality; on-line
guidance and a suite of bespoke training
programmes for raising staff awareness.
Colleagues can access policy and guidance
statements via the Groupintranet and
these procedures are reviewed and updated
on a periodic basis by the Senior Managers
responsible for them.
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@ Community

66 Playing a positive, supportive
and leading role in our local
community.

We work to support ourlocal schools,
colleges, universities and communities
through:

+ Ourvolunteering scheme

+ Actively engaging with Bristol City
Council to support our community

 Fundraising for charitable causes
« Promoting financial inclusion

Bristol and the local community
Hargreaves Lansdown s a true Bristol
success story being one of only two

FTSE 100 companies basedin the city and
one of the largest employersin the region.
Proud of our Bristol heritage, we support
local projects and plans which aim to
improve the lives of the people who live
andworkinthe city.

Our colleagues are dedicated to doing the
right thing and giving up their time to help
charities and good causes. During the year
we introduced the HL Volunteering Scheme
giving people a chance to volunteer by
having two days (or 16 hours) of the calendar
year to offer their time, skills and experience
to good causes. Initiatives run as part of our
new volunteering scheme include working
with Bristol Sport Foundation to support
disadvantaged children, and providing
volunteers to read to primary school
children as part of the Bristol as a Learning
City project. We want to ensure that we
support children to ensure they have the
beststartinlife to enable themtoseta
strong foundation for later years. Our
volunteering scheme exceeded 500 hours
volunteeredin the first six months.

We were a founding signatory of the

Bristol Equality Charter —a pledge by the
signatories to take actions relevant to
them, toimprove equality and diversity
across the city. We are a founder member
of the Bristol Equality Network, and we have
signed the Womenin Business Charter.
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We continue to be active participants,
through our involvement with the Bristol
City Office, in the ongoing development

of the Bristol One City Plan, aninitiative

to develop a shared vision for Bristol which
brings together participants from business,
public sector, voluntary organisations and
local communities to help identify and
address key challenges facing the city.

We were sponsoring partners of Bristol
Pride and collected donations for the
Easton Food Bank, East Bristol Foodbank
and the Red Box (period poverty) Project.

We have continued to support the Stepping
Up mentoring scheme and a project which
mentors a group of students at alocal
Bristol school helping students at risk of
disengaging with school systems to build
confidence and aspirations, and promote
different work opportunities within Bristol.

We take our responsibility to deliver financial
inclusion and education seriously. We want
to continue raising awareness about the
importance of investing for your future,

and saving from an early age.

Our service educates other organisations
oninvesting and pensions and this is
something we want to do more with schools
and universities. Our financial inclusion
group educates university students
because itisimportant to build good
financial habits early. Topics include:
budgeting, savings and their future options.

45

ddUBUIDA0D

SjuBWale]s [eIduURUL

uo[3eW IO IBYIO



Corporate social responsibility continued

The HL Charitable Foundation

The HL Charitable Foundationis the
charitable arm of Hargreaves Lansdown.
The Foundation's missionis to utilise
the skills and time of our workforce and
partners to make a positive, sustainable
difference in the world around us.

At Hargreaves Lansdown we want to do
more than empower people to save and

invest. We want to help the next generation,

we want to supportlocal communities,
improve people’'s health and wellbeing and
change people's lives for the better. The HL
foundation enables us to raise money for
charities who do all these things and more.

The charities supported are nominated and
selected by employees and are as below.

Inits second full year, the Foundation
distributed £110,000 between the five
charities. Fundraising activities by
colleaguesinclude the ever-popular
payday lottery, bike rides, cake and other
food sales, and sports tournaments.

All of the legal and administration costs
are met by the Group so 100% of the
money raised goes to the employee
nominated charities.

< ! More details can be found on the
website www.hl.co.uk/about-us/
hl-foundation

Next generation
The Prince's Trust

Youth
Adventure
Trust

-
S

Youth Adventure Trust R“\i\:\f'ﬂ?&“
Prince’s Trust voung| eg
Well-being ey
Cancer Research UK "(% gé\sl\:-:i%%H
bl UK
Improvinglives GUIDE
Guide Dogs for the Blind DOGS
N
Communities
Great Western Air Ambulance
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@ The Environment,
sustainability and climate
change

e6 Building a lifelong, sustainable
and responsible business.

We take our responsibilities toward the
environment and climate change seriously
and continue to promote energy efficiency
and the avoidance of waste throughout our
operations. Our business is fundamentally
based onintellectual capital and conducts
the majority of client transactions online
and undertakes no industrial activities.
Therefore we do not have the environmental
impact of many businesses of a similar size.

Running and maintaining our IT
infrastructure at our head office and data
centres comprises the main source of
our environmentalimpact. This supports
our award winning platformwhichis
fundamental to the success of our
business. Our programme of cyclical
replacement of hardware and software
aims to reduce energy usage and cost.
HL Tech, our new Warsaw technology hub,
operatesin asimilar way, inabrand new,
environmentally friendly building, where
the impactis also low.
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Doing it better for our clients:

Our objective of reducing waste and
minimising the environmentalimpact of
our business is aligned with our objectives
of protecting client data, reducing costs
andimproving efficiency. Itis our aimto
deal with clients and other businesses
electronically wherever possible, not only
to speed up information transfer, but also
to reduce the amount of paper we use.
We have invested heavily in providing a
user-friendly, comprehensive website,
amobile app and automated links to banks
and fund providers. As aresult, 78% of our
clients now use our paperless service.

The benefits willgrow as more people and
businesses choose to transact business,
and receive information, online. We aim
toincrease the take-up of online and
paperless services over time but but saw
no increase during the year.

30June 30June

2019 2018 Change
Vantage clients
registered as 78% 78% -
paperless
Vantage client
equity deals 98% 98% -
placed online
Clients
registeredto 90% 90% =

use ouronline
services

Where we do send out paper, such as our
flagship magazine the "Investment Times”,
we try to use sustainable resources and
minimise our use of plastic. The Investment
Timesis now sentinrecyclable paper
envelopes rather than degradable plastic.
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We recognise that sustainability and
ethical behaviour is increasingly important
to our clients and we provide investment
information, research and guides on ethical
investing to support our clients, in addition
to the inclusion of an ethical fund in our
Wealth 50.

Doing it better for our colleagues:

We shred and recycle confidential waste,
recycle 100% of our general waste, plus
run educational talks to promote recycling.
We donate old office and IT equipment

to schools and charities where appropriate
or dispose of via specialist third parties.

We encourage colleagues to walk or cycle
to work. We promote our ‘cycle to work
scheme'and offer bike storage and
showering facilities. The secure bike park
at our HQ enables up to 180 staff to cycle
to work. We do not provide company cars
to managers or to our network of advisers.
Advisers are spread throughout the UK
which minimises travel time and carbon
emissions. We provide a telephone advice
service where a face-to-face meetingis
not required. More colleagues are now able
to work fromhome using laptops, which,
as wellas consuming less power than
desktop computers, reduces the need
forwork related travel.

Colleagues are passionate about working
togetherto doit better and have formedan
environmental, sustainability and climate
change networking group, which aims to
educate and promote initiatives to reduce
our carbon footprint through talks, events
and written articles for staff.

= Contents

Doingit better for the wider community:
HL islisted onthe FTSE4Good index series,
demonstrating our strong environmental,
social and governance principles, having
beenindependently assessed according to
the FTSE4Good criteria. The FTSE4Good
index measures the performance of
companies that meet globally recognised
standards on corporate social responsibility.
Tobeincluded, companies must support
human rights, have good relationships with
various stakeholders, be making progress
to become environmentally sustainable,
ensure good labour standards (not only for
their own company but for companies that
supply them) and seek to address bribery
and corruption.

v

FTSE4Good

HL is part of a network of organisations
that has pledged to work towards a
sustainable city with a high-quality of life
forall, by signing up to the Bristol Green
Capital Partnership. To support creating
a sustainable city, we source 100% of our
energy from renewable sources

HL colleagues have the opportunity to
volunteer in projects which have a positive
impact on the environment, such as

"One Tree Per Child" and the" Incredible
Edible" project.
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Greenhouse gas emissions

Since 1 October 2013, the Companies Act
2006 (Strategic Report and Directors'
Report) Regulations 2013 has required all
UK gquoted companies to report on their
greenhouse gas emissions as part of their
annual Directors' Report. We have reported
on all of the emission sources required
under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors' Report) Regulations
2013. We also support the Carbon
Disclosure project by reporting our

CO2 emissions.

We do not have responsibility for any
emission sources that are notincludedin
our consolidated statement. Our emissions
are calculatedin line with the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol using the 2018 emission
factors provided by DEFRA. The Group's
Scope 1and 2 emissions for the year to

30 June 2019 are set outin the table below.
Scope 1emissions relate to the Group's
fugitive emissions from the combustion

of fuel and operating activities and Scope 2
emissions relate to the Group's electricity
usage.

In order to provide an intensity ratio for our
emissions disclosure, we have calculated
our greenhouse emissions per employee.
The Directors believe that the number of
employees is the best indicator for a Group
of this size and nature for the purposes of
this disclosure. The number of employees
usedis the average number of full-time
equivalent employees over the
measurement period. For the year ending
30 June 2019 our emissions per employee
decreased by 23%.
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Tax strategy

Integrity and good conduct are central
to our culture and this means we aim
to comply with both the spirit and the
letter of the law and are committed to
conducting our tax affairsin a clear,
fairand transparent way.

Taxes provide public revenues for
government to meet economic and social
objectives. Paying and collecting taxes is
animportant part of our role as a business
responsibly operating within and
contributing to society.

We aim to comply with all our tax filing,

tax reporting and tax payment obligations.
We seek to maintain an open, honest and
positive working relationship with tax
authorities and we do not undertake
aggressive tax planning. Our corporation
taxand employer's National Insurance paid
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2019
was £59.5 million (2018: £64.0 million). The
reduction was due to overpayments of
corporation taxin prior years. In addition,
we pay other taxes such as VAT, stamp duty
and business rates.

Our full tax strategy is available at
www.hl.co.uk/about-us/tax-
strategy.

Tonnes of CO2e
Current
reporting Comparison
year year

Emissions from: 2018-2019 2017-2018 Change
Scope 1-Combustion of fuel
and operation of facilities 992.1 1,285.0 -23%
Scope 2—-Purchased energy
for own use 1,009.6 1,036.9 -3%
Tonnes of CO e per average
full-time equivalent employee 1.27 1.66 -23%
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Chair’'s introduction

Retaining focus on our values when formulating and
implementing our strategy and operating plans will help us
to ensure that we continue to deliver sustainable growth.

Dear Shareholder

lam pleased to introduce our corporate
governance report, which provides

an overview of the Group's governance
structure and the activities of your Board,
along with confirmation of how we have
complied with the requirements of the
UK Corporate Governance Code during
the yearto 30 June 2019.

Boardrole

The primary role of the Board s to provide
leadership to the Group and ensure its
long-term, sustainable success. It does

so by setting and overseeing the Group's
long-term strategic objectives withina
framework of robust corporate governance
and risk management practices. Since
ljoined the Boardin February 2018,
significant work has been carried out on
articulating and embedding the Group's
culture and core values. [ firmly believe

that retaining focus on our values when
formulating and implementing our strategy
and operating plans, and enhancing our
risk management framework, will help us

to ensure that we continue to deliver
sustainable growth for our shareholders,
our clients and our employees.

Concerns over Brexit and overarching
macroeconomic uncertainty have made
this a challenging year. However, the Board
is proud to have overseen the continued
execution of our strategy. Our strong
growth, resilience in the face of volatile
market conditions, and increase in market
share during the year is underpinned by our
relentless focus on our clients.

This focus came to the fore andis illustrated
by our response to the recent suspension of
tradingin the high profile Woodford Equity
Income Fund, which was a key consideration
for the Board andits committees. The
Group's top priority has been helping our
clients through this difficult period. The
Board has fully supported the swift and
decisive action taken by the Group's
management inresponse to thisissue, and
will continue to oversee and provide
support and guidance until the situationis
resolved.

Board effectiveness and

governance framework

During 2018, the Board carried out an
externally facilitated Board evaluation and
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effectiveness review, further details of
which canbe found on page 56 of The
corporate governance report. As a result of
arecommendationin this review,  have
overseen anin-depth review of the Group's
governance structure. This hasincluded a
review of the roles and responsibilities of
the Board committees and the Group's
other committees, and how they interact
with the Board, the Group's management
and its subsidiary boards. This review is
being carried out in parallel with the ongoing
implementation of the requirements of the
Senior Managers and Certification Regime
(SMCR) to ensure alignment and adherence
to governance best practice.

Board changes

The Board welcomed Dan Olley as a new
Non-Executive Director during the year
under review. Dan was formally appointed
on1June 2019 and brings valuable
experience in information technology to
the Board. Further information about Dan's
appointment can be found on page 89

of the Nomination Committee report. His
biography, along with those of the other
Directors, can be found on pages 51to 53.

We also welcomed Alison Zobel as

Group Company Secretary and General
Counsel. Alison joined us as General
Counselin September 2018 and was
formally appointed as Company Secretary
in January 2019. Alison has been closely
involvedin the review of the Group's
governance structure and will play a key
role inimplementing changes and
supporting the Board and its committees
going forward.
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Stakeholder engagement

The Board pays close attention to the
impact of its decisions and activities on all
of the Group's stakeholders. Further details
of how we engage with stakeholders can

be found on pages 14 to 15 of the Report
and Financial Statements.

Akey step already taken in anticipation of
the application of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code is the creation of the HL
Colleague Forum. This aims to strengthen
the voice and engagement of our people
and assist the Board in making more
informed decisions in the interests of

the Group andits stakeholders.

We look forward to welcoming shareholders
to our AGM on 10 October 2019.

Compliance with the Code

| am pleased to report that, having
considered the provisions of the 2016 UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Board
is satisfied that the Company has fully
complied with them throughout the year
ended 30 June 2019.

The Code sets out the standards of good
practice in relation to how a company should
be directed and governed. Itis published

by the FRC and further information can

be found onits website at frc.org.uk.

Furtherinformation on the Company's
compliance with the Code and preparations
for the application of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code for the next financial year
canbe foundinthe corporate governance
report.

Deanna Oppenheimer
Chair

7 August 2019
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The Board of Directors

Chair

Executive Directors

Deanna Oppenheimer Chris Hill Philip Johnson
Chairand Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board Appointed to the Board Appointed to the Board

February 2018 April 2017 (Chief Financial Officer (CFO) April 2017

Skills and experience

Deanna currently has roles as Senior
Independent Director of Tesco plc
and Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Remuneration Committee of
Whitbread plc.

Deanna has extensive board level
governance and leadership experiencein
both public and private financial services
business having worked in the industry for
35 years at Executive and Non-Executive

level. Her rich executive experience includes,

among other things, the transformation of
the retail banking division at Barclays.
Deannais founder of CameoWorks,

a consumer focused boutique advisory
firm which works with fintech businesses
and other technology disrupters. Deanna
isamember of the 30% Club.

Committee membership
Nomination Committee (Chair)
Remuneration Committee

Other current appointments
Senior Independent Director of Tesco plc

Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Remuneration Committee
of Whitbread plc.
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from February 2016 to September 2016
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
from October 2016 to April 2017)

Skills and experience

Chris has considerable strategic, leadership
and operational skills and experience
fromanumber of business sectors.

He has extensive finance and accounting
experience havingjoined the Group initially
as CFO and then movingin quick
succession to the position of CEO where

he is also responsible for developing culture,

risk management and governance. Prior
tojoining Hargreaves Lansdown he was
CFO at G Group Holdings plc and prior to
that CFO at Travelex. Chris qualified as a
chartered accountant at Arthur Andersen
andis an associate member of the
Association of Corporate Treasurers.
Heis amember of the 30% Club and the
FCA Practitioner Panel.

Committee membership
None

Other current appointments
None.

= Contents

Skills and experience

Philip is an experienced financial services
CFO. He has awealth of experience in
capitalmanagement, risk and controls

and has a good track recordin strategic
operational execution. Philip was previously
CFO of Jupiter Fund Management plc for
seven years and prior to that Group Finance
Director of M&G Limited for over five years.
Philip qualified as a chartered accountant
with Coopers & Lybrand.

Committee membership
Investment Committee

Other current appointments
None.

51

podasdibajens

sjuBWale]s [eIduRUl

uo[3eW IO IBYIO



The Board of Directors continued

Non-Executive Directors

Shirley Garrood
Senior Independent
Director

Fiona Clutterbuck
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Roger Perkin
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board
October 2013

Skills and experience

Shirley has extensive and relevant Executive
and Non-Executive financial services
experience. A chartered accountant, she
served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer at Henderson Group plc
and as an Executive Director at Morley Fund
Management (Aviva). She also has broad
experience as a Non-Executive Director,
chairing committees of a listed company,
and a G15 housing association.

Committee membership
Risk Committee (Chair)
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee

Other current appointments
Deputy Chair and Senior
Independent Director of esure Group plc.

Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit and Risk Committee of the
BBC Board.
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Appointed to the Board
September 2017

Skills and experience

Fionais a qualified barrister with extensive
corporate finance experience. During her
career, Fiona has held the positions of Head
of Strategy and Corporate Development
at Phoenix Group, Managing Director and
Head of Financial Institutions Advisory at
ABN AMRO Investment Bank, Managing
Director and Global Co-Head of Financial
Institutions Group at HSBC Investment
Bank and was a Director at Hill Samuel Bank
Limited. She was also a Non-Executive
Director at W.S Atkins untilits acquisition

in July 2017.

Committee membership
Remuneration Committee (Chair)
Audit Committee

Nomination Committee

Risk Committee

Other current appointments

Chair of the Nomination Committee and
Non-Executive Director of Paragon Banking
Groupplc,

Non-Executive Director of Sampo plc.
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Appointed to the Board
September 2017

Skills and experience

Rogeris a qualified accountant with
extensive financial services experience.
Heis aformer partner of Ernst & Young,
and has previously been a Non-Executive
Director at Evolution Group plc, Friends Life
Ltd, Nationwide Building Society and Electra
Private Equity plc. Roger has served on
anumber of different Board Committees,
including chairing the Audit Committee

at Evolution Group plc and Nationwide
Building Society, where he also served

as the Senior Independent Director.

Committee membership
Audit Committee (Chair)
Nomination Committee
Risk Committee

Other current appointments
Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee at TP ICAP plc.

Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee at AIB Group (UK) plc.

Trustee of three charities, Chiddingstone
Castle, The Conservation Volunteers
and the Charities Aid Foundation.
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Jayne Styles
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Stephen Robertson
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Dan Olley
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board
October 2015

Skills and experience

Jayne brings a wealth of relevant financial
services knowledge. Until 30 March 2019,
she was Chief Investment Officer at

MS Amlin, where she was responsible

for running their global multi-asset,
multi-manager portfolios and was Chief
Executive Officer of MS Amlin Investment
Management Limited. At the end of
March, Jayne also stepped down from
the Corporation of Lloyd's Investment
Committee. Jayne has an Executive MBA
from Cranfield School of Management
and holds a number of professional
qualifications, including Associate of the
CFA Society of the UK and Fellow of the
Chartered Banking Institute. She is also

a qualified business coach.

Committee membership
Investment Committee (Chair)
Audit Committee

Nomination Committee

Risk Committee

Other current appointments
None.
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Appointed to the Board
October 2011

Skills and experience

Stephen has broad marketing and digital
skills and experience derived from a career
inthe retail sector, serving 15 years on

the boards of major UK retailers and then
as Director General of the British Retall
Consortium. Stephen has a keeninterest
inthe client experience and has well-honed
people skills.

Committee membership
Audit Committee
Investment Committee
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee
Risk Committee

Other current appointments
Non-Executive Director of
Timpson Group plc

Senior Independent Director of Clipper
Logistics plc

Chair of Bristol Energy Ltd.

= Contents

Appointed to the Board
June 2019

Skills and experience

Danis a seasoned senior technology
leader with a track record of driving digital
transformations in established businesses,
including financial services, insurance,
business information solutions, research
and healthcare. He brings a problem
solving and analytical skill set, along with
experience of successfully implementing
advanced technologies to drive both
revenue growth and operational process
efficiency and optimisation.

Committee membership
Risk Committee

Other current appointments

Executive Vice President and CTO

at Elsevier, a division of RELX, the FTSE 100
information-based analytics company.
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The corporate governance report

Hargreaves Lansdown plc Board

Audit Committee
« Overseesthe Group's

financial reporting

Investment
Committee
+ Overseesand

Nomination
Committee

Monitors the

Remuneration
Committee

Determines the

Risk Committee
+ Reviewsthe design

and implementation

) challenges the composition of the remuneration policy ofthe Group's
Monitors the iyl . ) )
Group'sinvestment Boardtoensure it for the Executive Risk Management
adequacy and busi ) ) ; )

) usiness remains appropriate Directors, Chair Framework
effectiveness of the )

. . . and other Material _
Group'sinternal « Monitors risks « Recommends Risk Takers Oversees and advises
controls that support associated with the appointments the Board on the
the integrity ofits Group'sinvestment to the Boardand « Approvesthe currentrisk exposures
financial reporting business its Committees annual performance of the Group and

objectives for the future risk strate
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into account when
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Chief Executive Officer
Responsible for managing the Group's business in accordance
with the strategy approved by the Board.

Executive Committee
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the segregation of management activity products and services regulatory framework
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periodic regulatory USSR
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Leadership

The Boardis responsible for providing
leadership and challenge to the Group.
[tis responsible for setting and monitoring

the Group's long-term strategic objectives,

culture and values, and for developing
robust corporate governance and risk
management practices.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for
ensuring the Group is managed effectively
andinthe bestinterests of the Company's
shareholders and other stakeholders,
including the Group's clients, employees
and regulators. The Board operates within
aformal schedule of matters reserved,
whichis reviewed and updated on a regular
basis and can be summarised as follows:

« Establishing the Group's strategic
aims and objectives;

« Oversight of the Group's operations;
« Settingthe Group's culture and values;

« Overseeing the Group's financial
reporting and controls;

« Approving changes to the Group's
capitaland governance structure;

« Approving the Company's dividend
policy and dividend payments;

« Oversight of regulatory compliance
andinternal control;

» Oversight of the Group's
governance structure;

« Determiningthe Group's
remuneration policy;

« Approval of communications
to shareholders;

« Monitoring Board membership
and succession planning; and

« Approving Group policies.

Board and Executive Committees
The Board delegates responsibility
for certain matters toits Committees.
The outputs from each Committee
meeting are reported to the Board

by each Committee's respective Chair
to maintain the necessary oversight.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

AllCommittees have access to
independent expert advice and the services
of the Company Secretary. The constitution
andterms of reference of each Committee
are reviewed annually to ensure that it is
operating effectively and any changes

or updates required are recommended

to the Board for approval.

The Board delegates day-to-day
management responsibility for the Group
to the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief
Executive Officer has established an
Executive Committee, which has
responsibility for developing the Group's
business, delivering against the strategy
approved by the Board, ensuring the
effective management of day-to-day
operations, and its risk and internal control
mechanisms.

The Executive Committee has established
four Executive Sub-committees to assist
itin managing the Group's business.

Each of the Executive Sub-committees
operates under defined terms of reference
with clear responsibilities.

Group entity governance

The Company has three subsidiaries that
are authorised and regulated by the FCA.
These are Hargreaves Lansdown Asset
Management Limited, Hargreaves
Lansdown Advisory Services Limited and
Hargreaves Lansdown Fund Managers Ltd.
In addition, Hargreaves Lansdown Savings
Limitedis authorised by the FCA under
the Payment Services Regulations 2017.
Between them, these four subsidiaries
carry out the Group's financial services
business of providing regulated products
and services. Hargreaves Lansdown
Stockbrokers Limited ceased to be
authorised andregulated by the FCAinthe
year to 30 June 2019, having transferred its
business to Hargreaves Lansdown Asset
Management Limited on 1 February 2017.
The Executive Directors and various
members of the Executive Committee
currently serve as Directors of these
subsidiaries.
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Board composition

Thereis anappropriate combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
onthe Board such that noindividual or
small group of individuals can dominate
Board decision-making. As at 30 June 2019,
there were nine members of the Board;
the Non-Executive Chair, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and six
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Composition of the Board

6 1
Independent Chair
Non-Executive
Directors
2
Executive
Directors

Board changes

The Company welcomed Dan Olley to the
Board on1June 2019 as a Non-Executive
Director. He also became a member of the
Risk Committee on 6 August 2019. There
have been no other changes to the
composition of the Board during the year to
30 June 2019.

The Nomination Committee leads the
process for Board appointments and makes
recommendations to the Board for approval.
Onjoining the Board, Non-Executive
Directors receive a formal appointment
letter, which sets out the time commitments
expected of them. Executive Directors’
service agreements and the Non-Executive
Directors'appointment letters are available
forinspection during business hours at the
Company's registered office.
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The corporate governance report continued

Board experience

The composition, skills and experience

of the Board are kept under constant review
by the Nomination Committee. The
Non-Executive Directors have strongand
relevant experience across all aspects of
financial services and the Board as a whole
is considered to have an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The Board
ensures a diverse pool of candidates is
considered for any vacancy which arises and
any appointments are made based on merit,
having regard to the skills, competencies
and experience of the candidate.

Sector experience (number of Directors)

7 9

Technology and Company
digital focus knowledge
6
Operational
management

9
_— Industry
7 knowledge
Strategy

and business

development / \

7 9
Investment Audit and Risk
management management

Meetings, attendance and information
provided to the Board

The Board holds meetings at regular
intervals, at which the Group's financial
and business performance is reviewed,

along with risk, compliance, IT, human
resources, culture and strategic matters.

A comprehensive Board pack and agenda

is circulated prior to meetings to give
Directors the opportunity to consider
theissues to be discussed, and detailed
minutes and any actions are documented.
Regular meetings are scheduledupto a
yearin advance, and if any Directoris unable
to attend then they may provide comments
onthe papers to the Chair before the
meeting. Meetings are structured so that
an appropriate amount of time is devoted
to eachagendaitem. In addition to regular,
scheduled meetings, ad hoc Board
meetings may be held outside the
scheduled cycle where circumstances
require. For example, meetings may be

held to approve appointments to the Board,
any material transactions, the signing of
the financial report and accounts, or the
approval of regulatory submissions.
Meeting attendance records for the year

to 30 June 2019 are set out below.

Each member of the Board has access
toallrelevant information relating to the
Group, the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and, as required,
external advice at the expense of the
Group. The Board receives detailed reports
from management on the performance
of the Group at its Board meetings and
otherinformation as necessary. Updates
are also provided onrelevant legal,
corporate governance and financial
reporting developments.

Board attendance
Director Position Eligible meetings Attended meetings
Deanna Oppenheimer  Chair

Fiona Clutterbuck

Shirley Garrood Non-Executive Director
Chris Hill Executive Director

Philip Johnson Executive Director

Dan Olley* Non-Executive Director
Roger Perkin Non-Executive Director
Stephen Robertson Non-Executive Director
Jayne Styles Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

OO~ OO0 OO
[e2BNe)INe) NN e) o) e BNe) BNe)}

1 Appointedon1June 2019

Board activities for the year to 30 June 2019

Topic

Aug Oct Dec Jan Apr Jun

Business performance and strategy

(including deep dives) ¢ ‘ ¢ ¢ ¢
Finance, reporting and audit . o . . .
Risk, governance and regulatory ° o o . . .
IT and cyber security . o o
ICAAP o
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Board effectiveness

Inline with the requirements of the Code
and under the direction of the Chair, the
Board carried out an externally facilitated
Board evaluation and effectiveness
review during 2018, the results of which
were presented to the Boardin October
2018. The process was facilitated by an
external consultancy with no connection
to the Group, Boardroom Review
Limited, and involved separate
interviews with each Director, Board and
Committee observation, paper review
and open Board discussion on the
findings. The review covered a number
of topics including governance, Board
composition, Board skills, diversity,
dynamics and operation, succession
planning and Committee composition
and effectiveness.

Akey objective of the evaluationis to
recognise strengths and address areas
of perceived weakness to enable the
Board toimprove its operation and
efficiency so thatitis best placed to
support the Group in achieving its future
strategic aims.

The Board evaluation process found
that the Board had significant strengths
on which to build. Of particular note is
the strong leadership from the Chair
and Chief Executive Officer, the
development of a value-adding, open
and supportive Board environment,

the presence of a strong and positive
corporate culture, and the healthy
relationship with the Group's regulator.

The key areas identified for increased
focus and development included the
continued development of the Group's
governance framework with a particular
emphasis on risk management and
culture, optimising the Board's use of
time through improved information
flows and agenda planning, and
embedding a continuous strategic
process to promote in-depth discussion
on strategic priorities. The Board has
taken steps toimplement the
recommended actions from the
evaluation and will continue to do so
over the course of the coming year.

In line with the Code, the Board isin the
process of carrying out aninternally run
evaluation of its effectiveness and that
of its Committees for the current year.
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A key recommendation of the 2018
Board effectiveness evaluation was

to carry out areview of the Group's
governance framework. A number of
changes to the Group's decision-making
structures and Committees have been
approved as a result of this review. This
includes streamlining responsibilities
and reporting lines to promote more
efficient and effective decision-making
processes, and reassigning the
responsibilities of the Investment
Committee. The finalisation and
implementation of these changes is
anticipated to take place in the year
ending 30 June 2020. Further details
will be provided in next year's report.

Board allocation of time

During the year to 30 June 2019, the Board
has devoted significant time to considering
the Group's:

« Business and financial performance
including a review of the three-year
operating plan;

« Strategy;

» Risk management framework and
corporate governance;

« Capital and liquidity adequacy;

« Regulatory obligations, in particular
the upcomingimplementation of the
Senior Managers and Certification
Regime (SMCR);

« Values and culture;

« Technology and cyber requirements;

» Control environment; and

« ProjectsandIT investment.

The Board also spent a significant amount
of time at the end of the year under review
considering the implications of, and the
Group's response to, the suspension of
tradingin the Woodford Equity Income
Fund on 3 June 2019. The Group's priority
has been to support our clients who have
been affected by the suspensionand to
keep them informed of developments.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

The Board supported the quick and decisive
response by the Group's management

to communicate the suspension to clients,
waive its platform administration fee on
direct holdingsin the fund, and ensure

that the Helpdesk and other client facing
teams were properly resourced to answer
clients' questions.

The Board continues to encourage the
Group's active engagement with external
stakeholders, such as Link, Woodford
Investment Management and the FCA,

and will receive regular updates and provide
guidance onthe Group's response until

the situationis resolved.

The Board is determined to understand
and learn from the events that contributed
to the situation being faced by many of

our clients and willensure that any changes
to the Group's governance structure
deemed desirable as aresult of the events
that occurred are implemented as
appropriate.

Overview of activities during the
financial year (% of time spent)

5%

ICAAP
28%

Business
8% \ performance
IT and cyber and strategy
security
10%
General
procedural
22% 27%
Finance, reporting Risk, governance
and audit and regulatory

= Contents

Roles and responsibilities

Chair and Chief Executive Officer
Theroles of the Chair and the Chief
Executive Officer are separate, are clearly
defined in writing and have been approved
by the Board.

Therole of the Chair

The Chair, Deanna Oppenheimer, is
responsible for the leadership of the Board
and the effective discharge of its duties.
Thisincludes setting the Board agenda,
ensuring that sufficient time is available

for adequate discussion of allagendaitems,
and facilitating diverse debate by
encouraginginput fromall Board members.
Sheis also responsible for ensuring the
effective governance of the Group and the
maintenance of strong and positive links
between the Board, senior management
andthe Company's shareholders.

The key responsibilities of the Chair are:

« Chair the Board and the Nomination
committee;

+ Leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectivenessinall aspects of its role
and settingits agenda;

« Ensurethatthe Directorsreceive
accurate, timely and clear information;

« Ensure thereis effective communication
with the Company's shareholders and
other stakeholders;

« Facilitate the effective contribution
of Non-Executive Directors and ensure
constructive relations between the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors;

« Promote the Group's culture and values;

« With the assistance of the Company
Secretary, facilitate the annual review
of the Board's effectiveness; and

« Actontheresults of the Board
performance evaluation by recognising
the strengths and addressing the
weaknesses of the Board and, where
appropriate, proposing the appointment
or resignation of Directors.
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The corporate governance report continued

The role of the Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer, Chris Hill,

is the Executive Director responsible for the
day-to-day running of the Group's business
andis accountable to the Board forits
operational and financial performance.

The key responsibilities of the Chief
Executive Officer are:

+ Leadthe senior management teamin
the day-to-day running of the Group's
business in accordance with Board
approved strategic objectives;

« Chair the Executive Committee
and communicate its decisions and
recommendations to the Board;

« Review the operational performance
and strategic direction of the Group's
business;

« Ensure thatappropriate systems of
internal controls and risk management
arein place and operatingin accordance
with the Group's risk profile as approved
by the Board; and

« Together with the Chair, provide coherent
leadership of the Group and promote
adherence toits culture and values.

Senior Independent Director

The Senior Independent Director, Shirley
Garrood, provides a sounding board for
the Chair and serves as anintermediary
between the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors when necessary. Sheis available
to the Company's shareholders if they
have concerns which the normal channels
of Chair, Chief Executive Officer or Chief
Financial Officer have failed to resolve,

or for which such contactis inappropriate.

The key responsibilities of the Senior
Independent Director are:

« Actasanintermediary between the
Chair and the other Directors and the
Company's shareholders;

« Actasasoundingboard for the Chair;

+ Chair the Nomination Committee when
considering the succession of the Chair;
and

« Meet with other Non-Executive Directors
to appraise the Chair's performance.
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Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are all
independent of management and bring
valuable skills, experience and an external
perspective to the business conducted
by the Board. They are considered by the
Board to be free from any business or other
relationships which could compromise
theirindependence. Theirrole is to advise
and challenge management, and monitor
its success in delivering against the
approved strategy within the risk appetite
and control framework set by the Board.
They are also responsible for determining
appropriate levels of remuneration for the
Executive Directors.

Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the services

of the Company Secretary inrelation to

the discharge of their duties. The Company
Secretary is responsible for working with
the Chair to develop Board and Committee
agendas and to ensure that all Board
procedures are complied with. She also
advises the Board on corporate governance
matters and applicable rules and
regulations. In addition, she supports the
Chairinthe design and delivery of the
Non-Executive Director induction and
ongoing training programmes.

The Company Secretaryis also the
secretary for the Committees. The removal
and appointment of the Company Secretary
is amatter reserved for the Board.

Board balance, independence

and time commitment

The Board comprises individuals with wide
business skills and experience. The balance
of skills and experience is considered
appropriate for the requirements of the
Group's business. The Board considers
that the balance between Executive and
Non-Executive Directors allows it to
exercise objectivity in decision-making and
proper control of the Group's business.
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The Board regularly reviews its structure,
size and composition (as well as its balance
of skills, knowledge and experience) to
ensure that the balance between Executive
and Non-Executive Directors reflects the
changing needs of the Group's business.
The membership of the Committees

and the expected time commitments are
also kept under constant review, asis the
Group's policy for the appointment of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Onher appointment as Chair, Deanna
Oppenheimer, satisfied the independence
criteria as set outin the Code.

The Board has reviewed the independence
of each of the Non-Executive Directors that
have served on the Board during the year

to 30 June 2019 and concluded that Fiona
Clutterbuck, Shirley Garrood, Dan Olley,
Roger Perkin, Stephen Robertsonand Jayne
Styles are independent. The Board has
therefore satisfied the Code requirement
that at least half the Board, excluding the
Chair, should comprise Non-Executive
Directors determined by the Board to be
independent. The Non-Executive Directors
are considered to be of sufficient calibre
and experience to bring significant
influence to bear on the decision-

making process.

The terms of appointment of the
Non-Executive Directors specify the
amount of time they are expected to
devote to the Company's business.

They are currently required to commit

to 25 days per annum whichis calculated
based on the time required to prepare for
and attend Board and Committee
meetings, meetings with management, the
Company's shareholders and training.
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Conflicts of interest

All Directors have a duty to avoid situations
that may give rise to a conflict of interest.
Formal procedures are in place to deal

with any conflict of interest. Directors are
responsible for notifying the Chair and

the Company Secretary as soon as they
become aware of any actual or potential
conflict of interest for discussion by the
members of the Board. The Board s
required to approve any actual or potential
conflicts of interest and they are recorded
ina central register. The Board will take into
account the circumstances of the conflict
when deciding whether or not to grant such
approval and whether to impose conditions
on the Director in the interests of the
Company. Directors are also required,

on anannual basis, to confirm that they

are not aware of any circumstances which
may affect their fitness and propriety and
therefore their ability to continue to serve
onthe Board.

Induction and professional development
Onappointment, allnew Directors receive
acomprehensive and tailored induction,
having regard to their previous experience
both professionally and as a director

(of a public company or otherwise).

An ongoing programme of training is
available to allmembers of the Board.
During the year to 30 June 2019, this has
included internal online training and bespoke
Board training on relevant topics such as
cyber security, the Code, relevant regulatory
developments and the products and
services provided by the Group. Directors
are also encouraged to devote an element
of their time to self-development.

Board diversity

Diversity and inclusion are key priorities
for the Group. Information on the Group's
approach to diversity and inclusion and
Board appointments can be foundin the
Nomination Committee reportand the
Strategic report. The Board is currently
composed of five male and four female
members, and gender balance (among
other diversity metrics such as ethnicity)
is taken into account when planning future
appointments to the Board.
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Succession planning

The Board conducts succession planning
toensure thatit has the necessary skills,
knowledge and expertise in place

to deliver the Group's strategy and
effectively discharge its responsibilities.
The recruitment of new Directors is based
upon merit against objective criteria.

The Nomination Committee has specific
responsibility for the recruitment of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
and recommends candidates to the Board
for approval. It also regularly reviews the
structure, size and composition of the
Board to ensure it remains appropriate
forthe Group's needs, and makes
recommendations to the Board where

it considers changes are required.

More information can be foundin the
Nomination Committee report.

Length of tenure of Non-Executive

Directors and Chair
1 1
6-9 years 0-1year

3

3-6years

1 3
2-3years 1-2 years
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Director election and re-election

All Directors appointed by the Board are
required by the Company's Articles of
Association and the Code to be elected

by shareholders at the first AGM following
their appointment. Having been appointed
tothe Board on1June 2019, Dan Olley

will be seeking election at the 2019 AGM.
The Company's Articles of Association and
the Code also require all other Directors to
seek re-election at each AGM. Each of the
other Directors will therefore be seeking
re-election at the 2019 AGM. The Board
explains the reasons why it believes each
Director should be elected or re-elected
inthe Notice of Meeting for the AGM.

The Board believes thatit continues to

be effective and that the election and
re-election of the Directors is consistent
with its evaluation of the appropriateness
of the size, structure and composition

of the Board.

Engagement with stakeholders

The Board considers active engagement
withits key stakeholders to be fundamental
to the success of the Group's business.
The Strategic report sets outin more detail
how the Board engages with the Group's
key stakeholdersincludingits clients,
employees, shareholders and society.

The Board recognises the importance of
maintaining good communication with the
Company's shareholders. The Company
has a programme of communication based
onthe financial reporting calendar which
includes the interim and annual reports,
trading updates, the AGM and the Investor
Relations section of the Group's website
at www.hl.co.uk. The Report and Financial
Statements are animportant medium

for communicating with shareholders.
Detailed reviews of the Group's business
andits future developments are set outin
the Chair's statement, the Chief Executive
Officer's review and the other sections of
the Strategic report.
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The corporate governance report continued

In addition to the programme of
communication to the Company's
shareholders, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer meet with
private and institutional investors after
results announcements, uponrequest or
on anad hocbasis during the year, including
attendance atinvestor conferences.

They, together with the Chair, Senior
Independent Director, Company Secretary
and Head of Investor Relations, provide

a point of contact for investors who wish

to raise guestions, queries or concerns.

The Chair, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer ensure that the
Boardis fully briefed on shareholders' views
such that anyissues or concerns are fully
understood and considered. Analyst and
broker briefings are regularly provided

to the Board.

Inaddition, the Group's brokers sought
feedback frominvestors following the
2018 finaland 2019 interim results, and
this feedback was reported to the Board.

Relationship with major shareholder
Thereis arelationship agreementin

place between Peter Hargreaves and the
Company to ensure that the independence
provisions set outin the Listing Rules

are complied with. The terms of the
agreement have been complied with during
the year to 30 June 2019.

Internal controls

The Boardis responsible for the Group's
system of internal controls and for
reviewingits effectiveness. The internal
control environmentis designed to mitigate
but not eliminate risk and is reviewed during
the course of the year by the Internal Audit
function. The methods for reviewing the
effectiveness of the control environment
provide the Group with assurance against
losses and material errors.

The Group'sinternal control framework
follows the 'three lines of defence' model.
Risk managementis the responsibility of
the operational teams which constitute
thefirstline. Oversight and guidance is
provided by the secondline through the
Risk and Compliance functions as well as
from the Financial Promotions, Compliance
Monitoring, Client Protection, Financial
Crime and Data Protection teams.
Independent oversight of the internal
controls of the business is the responsibility
of the third line, the Internal Audit function.
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To ensureitsindependence, the Internal
Audit function reports to the Audit

Committee andis subject to an external
effectiveness review on a periodic basis.

Both the Internal Audit function and the
Compliance Monitoring team perform a
number of audits and reviews during the
year covering the adequacy of controls and
compliance with regulation. The results of
these audits are reported to the Executive
Committee and the Board and are shared
with the relevant operational teams so that
recommended actions can be implemented
andidentified risks mitigated. The progress
against actions is monitored and reported
on by the Internal Audit function and
Compliance Monitoring team respectively.

The Board considers acceptance of
appropriate risks to be anintegral part of
business and unacceptable levels of risk
are avoided or reduced. Where the Group
outsources activities to third parties,

it recognises that it retains responsibility
forits business risks, which are managed
throughrobust outsourced activity
oversight processes. The Board carries
outareview of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal
control environment and these reviews
are supported on an ongoing basis by the
work of the Audit and Risk Committees.
The Chief Risk Officer also prepares
areportonthe design and operating
effectiveness of the system of internal
controls and thisis presented to both

the Risk and Audit Committees annually.

The Board believes that the ongoing
process foridentifying, evaluating and
managing principal risks enables the
Group to achieve its strategic objectives
effectively. The process wasin place for
the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to
the date of approval of the Report and
Financial Statements.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group's
control framework is adequate and has
continued to be improved through the

period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.
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Firstline
of defence -
Operational

teams

Secondline
of defence -
Compliance &Risk

Thirdline
of defence—
Internal Audit

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The version of the Code published by the
FRCin April 2016 applied to the Company
forits financial year ended 30 June 2019.
Further details can be found onthe FRC's
website at www.frc.org.uk.

The Directors consider that the Company
has beenin compliance with the provisions
of the Code throughout the financial year
ended 30 June 2019.

Arevised version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code was published by the
FRCin July 2018 and will apply to the
Company from 1 July 2019. The Board is
aware of the changes beingimplemented
by the revised Code, and has taken steps to
prepare forits application. This has included
the creation of the HL Colleague Forumto
strengthen the voice and engagement of
the Group's workforce, and a continued
emphasis on the Group's culture through an
increased focus onits core values and
behaviours.

[tisthe Board's belief that the Report

and Financial Statements taken as a whole
are fair, balanced and understandable

and provide the information necessary
forthe Company's shareholders to assess
the Group's position and performance,
business modeland strategy.
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Audit committee report

¢6Dear Shareholder

The Audit Committee continues to the potentialimpact of Brexit on the

support the Board on matters related Group's financial performance.

::]Er;igftl.al reporting, internal controls The Committee has engaged in continued
oversight of the adequacy of the Group's

During the year, the Committee has CASS controls and progress on planned

scrutinised the financial disclosures improvements toits internal control

made in the Report and Financial environment. It has also continued to work

Statements and interim statements, closely with the Head of Internal Audit to

and considered the significance of oversee further enhancements to the

accountingjudgements including the Group's Internal Audit regime and ensure

Group's income recognition, changes itis adequately resourced.

to the accounting standards applicable
to the Group (notably the application

of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, and preparations
for the adoption of IFRS 16) and the
continued capitalisation of development
costs for Active Savings. The Committee
also oversaw an informal audit of HL Tech Roger Perkin

ahead of its first full statutory audit for Chair of the Audit Committee
the year under review, and considered

As Chair of the Audit Committee, lam
pleased to present this report and | will
be available at the AGM to answer any
questions about our work throughout
the year.

Attendance at Committee meetings during the year to 30 June 2019

Member Position Eligible meetings Attended meetings
Roger Perkin Chair XXX ececee
Fiona Clutterbuck Non-Executive Director XXX cccece
Stephen Robertson Non-Executive Director cecee cecoe
Jayne Styles Non-Executive Director XXX secoe

Key Committee activities for the year to 30 June 2019

Topic Aug Oct Jan Apr Jun
Internal Audit . . . . .
Financial reportingincluding year end and ARA ° . . . .
CASS and other internal controls . . . . .
External Audit . . . . .
Routine . . . . .
Compliance including whistleblowing o o . .
Operations control framework o
Conflicts .

Tax strategy .
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< FIND OUT MORE

The Terms of Reference for the
Committee are available on the Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary.

Role of the Audit Committee

Therole of the Committeeis to assist the
Boardin dischargingits duties and
responsibilities for financial reporting,
corporate governance and internal control.
The Committee s also primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the
Boardin relation to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the
External Auditor, and the External Auditor's
remuneration and terms of engagement.
The Committee's duties include keeping
under review the scope and results

of the External Auditor's work, its cost
effectiveness and the independence

and objectivity of the External Auditor.

The Committee also monitors the volume
and nature of non-audit services provided
by the External Auditor.

The Committee's responsibilities are set
outinitsterms of reference, which are
available from the Investor Relations pages
of the Group's website at www.hl.co.uk.

The Committee's key responsibilities are:

» Monitoring the financial reporting
process including the integrity of the
Report and Financial Statements, interim
financial statements, trading updates and
any other formalannouncements relating
to the Group's financial performance;

» Reviewingthe consistency and
continuing appropriateness of the
Group's accounting policies;

+ Ensuring that the Report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable, and
provide the Company's shareholders
with the information necessary to assess
the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy;

» Reviewing and making recommendations
to the Boardregarding the Group's
viability statement;

Reviewing the Group's internal financial
controls anditsinternal control systems
generally;
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Audit committee report continued

» Reviewing the statements to be included
inthe Report and Financial Statements
concerninginternal controls;

« Monitoringandreviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's Internal
Audit function;

» Reviewing and monitoring the External
Auditor's independence and objectivity
andthe effectiveness of the audit
process, takinginto account applicable
professional and regulatory
requirements;

» Making recommendations to the
Board for resolutions to be put to the
Company's shareholders at a general
meeting to approve the appointment
or removal of the external auditor along
with its remuneration and terms of
engagement; and

« Overseeingthe Group's procedures
for publicinterest disclosure
(whistleblowing).

Details of how the Committee has
discharged these responsibilities in the
year to 30 June 2019 are set out below.

Audit Committee membership

and meeting attendance

Roger Perkin (as Chair), Fiona Clutterbuck,
Stephen Robertsonand Jayne Styles

each served on the Committee throughout
the year to 30 June 2019. Allmembers

of the Committee are Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The Board considers that the Committee
has an effective balance of skills and
experience to performits responsibilities.
Each of Roger Perkin, Fiona Clutterbuck
and Jayne Styles have significant
experience of the asset management
sector and wider financial services industry.
The Code requires at least one member
to have recent and relevant financial
experience. This requirement was and
continues to be fulfilled by the current
Committee Chair, Roger Perkin.
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Ongoing trainingis provided to help
Committee members perform their duties.
This may include attendance at formal
conferences, briefings by specialist
employees and briefings by external
speakers (such as accountancy firms).

The Committee has access to the services
of the Company Secretary andis authorised
to obtainindependent professional advice
where it considers it necessary.

Committee appointments are made for
athree-year period and can be extended
for no more than two additional three-year
periods. Membership of the Committee

is regularly reviewed by the Committee
Chair, who makes any recommendations
for appointments to the Nomination
Committee for consideration prior

to Board approval.

The Committee meets at least five times
eachyear. The attendance record for each
Committee memberis set outinthe table
onpage 61. Otherindividuals attend at

the request of the Committee Chair and
will usually include the Chair of the Board,
Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal
Audit. The External Auditor also attended
allmeetings. The Committee also meets
privately with the Head of Internal Audit and
the External Audit team at least once a year.
The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to the Committee.

Time spent on key areas of responsibility
Overview of activities during the
financial year

3%

Operations
control
framework
27%
9%, Internal audit
Routine
matters /|
11%
External
audit / /lo00
19%
12% Financial
Compliance including reporting
whistleblowing
16%
CASS and other

internal controls
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Key areas of focus during the year

to 30 June 2019

Financial reporting

Financial statements

The Committee has reviewed and
discussed the financial disclosures made
inthe Report and Financial Statements
and interim statements published by

the Company, together with any related
management letters, letters of
representation and reports fromthe
External Auditor. Significant financial
reportingissues and judgements were
considered, as were the Group's accounting
policies and any significant changes
proposed to them. The Committee's
review of the Group's financial statements
has included:

Monitoring their integrity and reviewing
significant accounting policies;

Reviewing and reporting to the Board
on significant financial issues and
judgements (as further detailed below)
and challenging management where
necessary on those issues
andjudgements;

Reviewing the Report and Financial
Statements and advising the Board
whether, taken as awhole, they are
fair, balanced and understandable
(as further detailed below); and

Assessing and challenging the going
concern and viability assessment
undertaken by management

(as further detailed below).

Accounting judgements

and significantissues

Inreviewing the Report and Financial
statements, the Committee has concluded
that there are no significant financial
judgements. As part of its review, the
Committee considered the following areas:
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Income recognition

The Group's revenue stream continues
to be non-complex, mainly consisting

of high-volume, low-value transactions.
The Committee has been provided with
and considered a range of management
information and details regarding
reconciliations carried out on cash, stock,
client money and client assets through
oversight of the Group's CASS controls,
which have provided confidencein the
revenue calculation. Further confidence
has been provided by the External Auditor
fromits approach to fully recalculating
the Group's significant revenue streams.
Sample-based testingis also conducted
for those revenue streams not

fully recalculated.

Accounting standards

The Committee has considered the impact
of IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) and IFRS 15
(Revenue from Contracts with Customers),
which have been applied for the first time
inthe Report and Financial Statements

and interim statements published by

the Company in the year to 30 June 2019.
IFRS 16 (Leases) will be adopted by the
Groupin the financial period commencing
1July 2019. During the period, the
Committee has reviewed and approved
the calculation methodology that willbe
applied, and details of the quantitative
impact can be found on page 127.

Capitalisation of intangible assets

The Group continues toinvestin the Active
Savings proposition, which launchedin
December 2017. The Group expects there
to be along-term economic benefit and,

as such, the Committee has reviewed

and agreed the appropriate accounting
treatment for capitalising development
costsincurred. For the year to 30 June 2019,
£2.3 million (2018: £4.3 million) has been
capitalised in respect of the Active Savings
platform.Inline with the Group's
capitalisation policy, development costs
relating to updates and improvements to
the Group's core systems have also been
capitalised for the year to 30 June 2019.
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Goodwill

The statement of the Group's financial
position shows £1.3 million of goodwill
relating to the acquisition of shares in
Hargreaves Lansdown Pensions Direct
Limited (now called Hargreaves Lansdown
Advisory Services Limited). In accordance
with IAS 36, an annual test of impairment
of goodwill was undertaken and the
Committee reviewed the results which
demonstrated that noimpairment

was required.

Assessment of viability statement

The Committee has assessed the viability
of the Group over the three-year period
to 30 June 2022 on behalf of the Board.

It has also reviewed the statements made
inthe Report and Financial Statements

to ensure they comply with disclosure
requirements. Details of the assessment
can be found accompanying the viability
statement on page 26 of the Strategic
report.

Tax administration

The Committee has considered how the
Group administers the taxation of assets
held by its non-UK clients. The Committee
has also been kept informed on progress
of HMRC's 'know your customer' review
and considered the potential implications
of HMRC's appeal of the tax tribunal’s
decision on the taxation of loyalty bonuses.

Share-based payments

The Committee reviewed the key
assumptions used for the valuation of
options granted under the Company's
share-based incentive schemes and the
performance period over which fair values
are amortised. It also ensured these were
allappropriately accounted forin the

2019 Report and Financial Statements.

HL Tech

Ahead of its first full statutory audit for the
year ended 30 June 2019, a non-statutory
audit of HL Tech was carried out by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) during
the period. The Committee reviewed

the outcome of the audit, and all findings
were resolved prior to 30 June 2019.

= Contents

Tax strategy

The Committee has reviewed and approved
the Group's tax strategy noting the Group's
low appetite for tax risk and planningin
accordance with the Finance Act 2016.

This has been made publicly available
onthe Group's website at www.hl.co.uk/
about-us/tax-strategy.

Brexit

The Committee has considered the
potentialimpact of Brexit on the Group's
financial performance. Until certainty

is reached, Brexit will continue to impact
markets and consumer confidence.
However, the Committee considers

Brexit to be a short-term trading risk rather
thanalonger-termthreat to the Group's
business model.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Committee has considered on behalf
of the Board whether the Report and
Financial Statements for the year ended
30 June 2019, taken as awhole, are fair,
balanced and understandable, and whether
appropriate disclosures have been made
with respect to any developments during
theyear.Incarryingoutits assessment,
the Committee has considered the

robust procedures around the preparation,
review and challenge of the Report, the
consistency of the narrative sections with
the Financial Statements, and whether
thereis an appropriate balance between
challenges and weaknesses, successes
and strengths. Each section of the Report
is drafted by the senior manager with overall
governance and coordinated by the Chief
Financial Officer. Assurances are sought
by the Committee on each section of the
Reportinadvance of the final sign off by
the Committee and ultimately the Board.

Followingits assessment, the Committee

is satisfied that the Report and Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and
understandable, and provide the information
necessary for the Company's shareholders
and other stakeholders to assess the
Group's position and performance,

and has advised the Board accordingly.
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Audit committee report continued

Internal controls and risk management
Together with the Risk Committee, the
Audit Committee provides independent
and objective assurance to the Board on
the Group's risks and controls. The Group's
system of internal control and risk
management is designed to manage rather
than eliminate risk in order to achieve the
Group's objectives. Its objectiveis to
provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance against material misstatement
orloss.

In satisfying the requirements to ensure
that the Group has adequate systems of
control and risk management, and taking
into account the assurance provided

by the Risk and Internal Audit functions,
the Committee has:

» Reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls,
financial reporting and risk management;

« Reviewed management responsiveness
to addressing control weaknesses;

» Reviewed and approved the internal
control and risk management
statementsin the Report and Financial
Statements;

» Reviewed the adequacy of the CASS
controls and assurance reports provided
by Finance, the CASS Oversight team, the
Internal Audit function and the External
Auditor. The Committee challenged key
management personnel on the content
and veracity of those reports; and

» Receivedreports onthe effectiveness
of the Group's operations control
framework and compliance monitoring.

Overall, the Committee is satisfied that
there are appropriate arrangements,
actions or mitigating controlsin place.
On behalf of the Board, the Committee
confirms that, through discharging its
responsibilities under its terms of reference
and undertaking regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's system of
internal control, itis able to confirm that
necessary actions have been or are being
taken to remedy any significant failings
or material weaknesses identified.
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Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit function’'s work is
focused onthe areas of greatest risk to the
Group, as determined by a structured risk
assessment process involving Executive
Directors and senior management. The role
of the Internal Audit function and the scope
of its work continues to evolve taking into
account changes within the Group's
business and emerging best practice.

The Head of Internal Audit attends the
Committee meetings and meets at least
annually with the Committee without
executive management present.

In satisfyingits duties to monitor and review
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit
function, the Committee has reviewed and
approvedits terms of reference as set outin
the Internal Audit Charter, the annual audit
plan and the internal audit methodology,
and has monitored progress against the
plan during the year. The Internal Audit
function carried out a significant number

of audits during the year of varying size

and complexity. Audit reports are circulated
to the Committee members prior to each
scheduled meeting and the Committee
monitors progress against actions
identified in the reports and the External
Auditors’management letter. The
Committee monitors and reviews the
Internal Audit function's effectiveness by
obtaining feedback from the Board and
senior management. The Committee also
assesses annually the resources the
Internal Audit function requires to satisfy its
remit and, where necessary, puts co-source
arrangementsin place enabling the Internal
Audit function to commission the support
of subject matter and technical experts
where needed. The Internal Audit function
has unrestricted access to Group
documentation, premises, functions

and employees as required to enable it

to performits duties. The appointment

and removal of the Head of Internal Audit

is the responsibility of the Committee.

The Committee has assessed the
effectiveness of the Internal Audit function
andis satisfied with its performance,
progress and effectiveness during the
year to 30 June 2019.
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External Audit

The Committee has responsibility for
overseeing the relationship with the
External Auditors and has done so
throughout the year to 30 June 2019.

In satisfyingits duties the Committee has:

« Approved the External Auditors'
engagement letter, audit fee and audit
plan (including levels of materiality);

» Approvedthe External Auditors'
management letter;

» Receivedregular detailed reports
from the External Auditors, including
aformalwrittenreport dealing with the
audit objectives; the External Auditors'
qualifications, expertise and resources;
the effectiveness of the audit process;
the procedures and policies for
maintaining independence; and
compliance with the ethical standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board;

+ Reviewed the findings of the External
Auditors and considered the response
of the Group's management;

» Monitored and confirmed the objectivity
and independence of the External
Auditors;

« Met with the External Auditors without
the Group's executive management
present;

+ Monitored the latest ethical guidance
regarding rotation of audit partners; and

» Agreed the policy for the provision
of non-audit services.

The Committee also assessed the
effectiveness of the External Auditors
and the audit process. This appointment
included seeking the views of Committee
members, the Executive Directors and
senior managers, and concluded that
the external audit process was effective.
The Committee is satisfied with the
performance of the External Auditors
during the year and the policies and
procedures in place to maintain their
objectivity and independence, and has
recommended that they be re-appointed
at the upcoming AGM.
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Non-audit fees

The External Auditors provide certain
non-audit services to the Group, primarily
in the provision of regulatory assurance
and advice. In order to ensure that auditor
objectivity and independence are
safeguarded, the following controls have
beenimplemented:

« Aformalpolicy onthe use of the External
Auditors for non-audit work has been
agreed by the Committee. In accordance
with the policy, the External Auditors
will usually only be engagedto carry out
non-audit work for the Group when,
by virtue of their knowledge, skills or
experience, they are clearly preferred
to alternative suppliers;

« The Committee receives and reviews
an analysis of all non-audit work awarded
to the External Auditors over the financial
period; and

« The Committee receives areport
from the External Auditors detailing
any matters it considers could affect
itsindependence and which need to
be disclosed to the Committee.

The Committee confirms that the
proportion of non-audit to audit fees for
the year was 32% (2018: 63%), which
remains within the limits setin the Group's
policy for external auditor independence,
which can be found on the Group's website
at www.hl.co.uk/investor-relations/
board-of-directors/corporate-
governance.

Atotal of £216,854 of non-audit fees were
incurred during the year to 30 June 2019
(2018:£239,862). £150,383 of this amount
related to the FCA-mandated assurance
reporting of subsidiaries regulated under
the CASS rules (2018:£174,148), which are
excluded from the calculationin the
paragraph above relating to the proportion
of non-audit to audit fees. £34,600 related
to the profit-verification work to enable
payment of dividends in line with the
established timetable (2018: £34,000) and
£26,500 related to the interim review (2018:
£26,000). £5,305 related to fees for the
non-statutory audits of the two HL trusts
(2018: £5,150). There were no additional
services providedin the period (2018:
£12,000). Fees for the statutory audit for
2019 were £210,700 (2018: £135,599). This
includes fees for the statutory audit of HL
Tech of £10,700 (2018: £9,311 for a non-
statutory audit).
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Tenure of the External Auditor

The Group appointed PwC as its External
Auditors following a tender processin 2013.
In line with the EU audit regulation
requirements, the Company will be required
toundertake a formal tender process by
2023, being 10 years from the date of PwC's
appointment. In addition, the Senior
Engagement Partner of the External
Auditorsis required to be replaced every
five years. The current lead audit partner,
Alex Bertolotti, was the lead audit partner
throughout the year to 30 June 2019 and
has held the position for four years. The
Committee will oversee the process for
appointing a new lead audit partner during
the next financial year to ensure a smooth
transition when Alex Bertolotti's tenurein
the position comes to an end following
completion of the audit for the year ending
30 June 2020. The Group has complied with
the provisions of the Competition Markets
Authority Order 2014 throughout the

year to 30 June 2019 and as at the date

of thisreport. The Committee has
therefore recommended to the Board

that aresolutionis put to the Company's
shareholders recommending PwC's
reappointment, along with their terms

of engagement and remuneration, at the
AGM. The appointment and reappointment
of the External Auditors will continue to be
assessed on an annual basis. The External
Auditors will be asked to attend the AGM
and will be available to answer shareholders'
questions about the audit and their report.

Whistleblowing

The Group is committed to creating

a culture of openness, integrity and
accountability. A formal whistleblowing
policy and procedure isin place to
encourage employees to raise issues
regarding possible improprieties, whether
relating to financial reporting or otherwise.

The Committeeis responsible for
monitoring the effectiveness of the
Group's whistleblowing procedures and

any notifications made. Itis also responsible
for ensuring that employees are able to
raise any concerns in confidence, and that
such concerns are properly investigated
and acted uponwhere necessary.

Inaddition to the internal avenues open

to employees to report any concerns, the
Group has an alternative reporting channel
whereby any perceived wrongdoing can

be reported via telephone to a third party.
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Audit Committee Evaluation

The Board carried out a comprehensive
externally facilitated Board evaluation

and effectiveness review during the year
to 30 June 2018, which included a review
of the performance of the Committee.
The results were presented to the Board
in October 2018. The Board has taken steps
toimplement recommended actions as
they apply to the Committee. This has
included commencing preparations for an
external evaluation of the Group's Internal
Audit function, whichis expected to take
place during 2020.

The Boardisinthe process of carrying
outaninternally run evaluation of its
effectiveness, including the Committee,
forthe currentyear.

Audit Committee priorities for 2019/20
Looking ahead to the year ended 30 June
2020, in addition toits duties in relation
to the audit and reporting schedule,

the Committee will be focusing on:

« Thedeployment ofthe Group's
enterprise resource planning solution;

» Theimpact of Brexit on the Group's
financial statements and HL Tech's
operationsin Poland;

Continued planning for the application
of IFRS 16; and

» Theimpact of changes to the political
environmentin the UK and the broader
macroeconomic situation.

Signed onbehalf of the Audit Committee

Roger Perkin
Chair of the Audit Committee

7 August 2019
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Investment committee report

¢¢Dear Shareholder

As Chair of the Investment Committee reviewed, as have the implications of

| am pleased to present the Committee's regulatory changes, such as the Financial
report for the year to 30 June 2019. Reporting Council Stewardship Code.

During the period the HL Select Global
Growth Shares fund was launched and
segregated mandates were introduced
into the multi-manager funds. The
Committee has also focused on asset
allocation, the investment process,
management of conflicts of interest and
the impact of the suspension of tradingin
Over the period the Committee received,  the Woodford Equity Income Fund.
considered and, where appropriate,
challenged information from the business
regarding the performance of the

Throughout the period, the Committee
has continued to provide independent
challenge and oversight to the executive
team on allaspects of the Group's
investment activities, including the
investment research process and the
outcomes of its product offerings.

I will be available at the AGM to answer
any questions about the work of the

C ittee.
investment product range, as well as risk ommittee
and compliance reports. Investment Jayne Styles
related governance documents, such as Chair of the Investment Committee

the risk management process, have been

Attendance at Committee meetings during the year to 30 June 2019

Member Position Eligible meetings Attended meetings
Jayne Styles Chair coce coce
Stephen Robertson Non-Executive Director ccee coece
Phl‘lp Johnson CFO ecoe eooe

< FIND OUT MORE

The Terms of Reference for the
Committee are available onthe Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary.

Role of the Investment Committee
Therole of the Committeeis to provide
challenge and oversight to the Group's
investment business, including the
investment decision making process,

the Group's compliance with the Alternative
Investment Fund Management Directive
(AIFMD), policies and outcomes relating

to Hargreaves Lansdown Multi-Manager
funds, HL Select funds, Portfolio
Management Service (PMS), HL Portfolio+,
Wealth 50 (previously Wealth 150), Master
Portfolios and Foundation Portfolios

and the marketing of third party funds.

In providing independent challenge,

the Committee assists the Board with

its Multi-Manager fund AIFMD oversight
requirements relating to asset allocation,
investment strategy and performance,
together with oversight of the investment
risk management process.

The Committee's responsibilities are set
outinits terms of reference, which are
available from the Investor Relations pages
of the Group's website at www.hl.co.uk.

Investment Committee membership
and meeting attendance

Jayne Styles (as Chair), Philip Johnson and
Stephen Robertson each served onthe
Committee throughout the year to 30 June
2019. Membership of the Committeeis
regularly reviewed by the Committee Chair,
who makes recommendations for new
appointments to the Nomination
Committee for onward recommendation
tothe Board.
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The Committee meets at least four
times a year and there were four scheduled

meetings during the period. The attendance

record for each Committee memberis set
outinthe table opposite. Otherindividuals
attend at the request of the Committee
Chair. During the period, the Chair of the
Board, Chief Investment Officer, Research
Director, the Head of Client Proposition
and Service and the Group Risk and
Compliance Director attended meetings.
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to the Committee.

After every meeting the Committee
reports to the Board advising them of their
discussions.

Overview of activities during the
financial year

5% / 4%

Product governance

Conflicts of interest

—-as
7%

Policies

Key areas of focus during the year
to 30 June 2019

In discharging its responsibilities the
Committee focused on:

+ Reviewing the regular risk and
compliance reporting fromthe Group's
second line of defence, including
monitoring liquidity, conflicts of interest,
and the communication process to
clientsinrespect of the Group's
investment products;

+ Challenging fund benchmarking and
investment-related policies and
processes, such as the risk management
process. The Committee has also
overseen the introduction of segregated
mandates for the HL Multi-Manager
funds and considered its responsibilities
inlight of the FCA Asset Management
Market Study;

Reviewing the Chief Investment
Officer's updates, which cover
information about the performance of

Investment Committee evaluation
The Board carried out a comprehensive
externally facilitated evaluation and
effectiveness review during the year

to 30 June 2018, whichincluded a review
of the performance of the Committee.
The results were presented to the Board
in October 2018. The Board has taken
steps toimplement recommended
actions as they apply to the Committee,
whichincludes areview of the Group's
governance structure.

Future role of the Committee
Following the outcome of the FCA's Asset

Management Market Study and the detailed

review of the Group's governance structure
that took place during the course of the
year to 30 June 2019, the decision has been
taken toreassign the responsibilities of the
Committee. Itis anticipated that this will
take place over the course of the next
financial year.

Signed onbehalf of the Investment

podasdibajens

P — mmi .
3% 61% Co ttee
Investment
team update
(including
Woodford)

the HL Multi-Manager funds, HL Select
funds, PMS, HL Portfolio+, Wealth 50
(previously Wealth 150), Master Portfolios
and Foundation Portfolios, as well as

Routine
matters

Jayne Styles
Chair of the Investment Committee

15%
Risk and
compliance

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

market information;

» Considering theimpact onthe Group's
investment business of the suspension
of tradingin the Woodford Equity Income
Fund. In particular, this has included
the consideration of fund pricing
methodologies, the potentialimpact on
the Multi-Manager funds and how the
Group's clients might be impacted when
the suspensionislifted. The Committee
has also discussed the performance of
other third party funds having a material
impact onthe Group'sinvestment
business and reviewed analysis of the
flows of business into and out of its
investment offerings. This information
has been used to inform discussions
around the continued inclusion of such
funds in the Wealth 50.
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Annual statement by the
Chair of the Remuneration committee

66 Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased
to present my first full year report as
Remuneration Committee Chair.

I have set out below an overview of our
remuneration policy and philosophy which
is aligned to our values and is designed

to encourage client-centric sustainable
business performance. During this
financial year, the Committee's main focus
was on ensuring appropriate remuneration
outcomes based on 2019 business
performance, improving gender pay and
diversity, developing our response to
changesinthe Corporate Governance
Code andregulatory changes onthe
horizon, and reviewing the pay and
performance approach for our wider
workforce. Finally, | want to provide you
with details of our areas of focus for the
forthcoming year.

Encouraging client-centric sustainable
business performance

Our purpose is to empower people to save
andinvest with confidence and our pay
philosophy aligns to this and aims to:

» Attract, retain and motivate high calibre
colleagues who role model our culture
and values;

« Reward client-centric sustainable
performance aligned to our purpose
and values;

» Recognise our colleagues who deliver
exceptional client service;

» Shareinthe success of the company
and align colleagues interests with those
of shareholders;

» Encourage colleagues to save over the
long term, in line with our company
purpose; and

« Offerflexibility to meet the needs
of a diverse workforce.

68

Hargreaves Lansdown's remuneration
policies and practices are designed to
promote the long-term success of the
Group by supporting the business strategy
and delivering value to our shareholders
without paying more thanis necessary
whilst taking account of regulatory
requirements, affordability and market
conditions.

Having applied our current remuneration
policy for a second year, we consider that
we have the tools to recognise the
contribution made by our executive team
to the Group's success, and to enhance
the alignment of our Directors'interests
with those of our shareholders.

A summary of the remuneration policy
approved by our shareholders at the 2017
AGMis presented on pages 71to 72.

Business contextin 2019

As set outin our Strategic report, 2019
saw strong growth, increasing our market
share and maintaining our focus on clients.
This year was challenging externally, with
difficult market conditions, concerns over
Brexit and macro-economic uncertainty.
Despite this, net new business was resilient
and profits continued to grow, reflecting
the continued execution of our strategy
and our focus on putting the client at the
centre of all we do.

2019 net new business was £7.3 billion

and we added a further 133,000 net new
clients, taking us to over 1.2 million clients
by the end of the financial year. AUA has
also continued to grow, to almost £100
billion as at 30 June 2019. The second half
of our financial year was particularly strong,
driven by improved marketing
effectiveness and a number of deliberate
diversification initiatives that broaden our
accessible market. Due to these initiatives,
such as Active Savings, the launch of the
HL Select Global Growth Shares fund and
back book transfers from Witan, Baillie
Gifford and JP Morgan, we have continued
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to gain market share. Latest figures show
our share of the direct to consumer
platform marketincreased to 40.5%!'and
our share of the execution only
stockbroking market grew from 31.3%? to
34.1%°.

In early June 2019, the team had to deal
with the consequences of the LF Woodford
Equity Income Fund suspension. This was
disappointing and frustrating for us all but
the business responded quickly and
responsibly. This decisive and client-
focused response has seen business flows
and service levels hold up well since. Our
priority remains to support our clients,
keep theminformed and ensure that the
Woodford Equity Income Fund reopens as
soon as s practicable, whilst protecting
theinterests of allinvestors.

In recognition of the financial and personal
impact the suspension of the Woodford
Equity Income Fund has had on our clients
and, given Hargreaves Lansdown's client
focused culture, the Executive Directors
informed the Committee that they do not
wish to take any bonus for the 2019
performance year. The Committee
accepted their decision.

| would also like to remind shareholders
that, with the introduction of the Sustained
Performance Planin 2017, vesting of long
termincentives has extended from three
tofive years and, as aresult, no awards
vest this year. Further details on how
bonuses have been determined for the
2019 performance year are set outin the
Annual report on remuneration.

Our response to governance
andregulatory changes

The Board and executive team
recognise the importance of being able
to demonstrate to our shareholders and
regulators that our remuneration policy
encourages the right behaviours to
deliver long-term sustainable business
performance and good client outcomes.
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As such, although significantly aligned
already, we welcome the opportunity
toimprove our policy to meet the
requirements of the new 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code and we aim
toimplement changes at the next policy
review to be brought to shareholders at the
2020 AGM. At this time we will also seek to
comply with required regulatory changes
under the new Investment Firm Directive.

I would like to highlight the following:

+ We arereporting our CEO pay ratio
this year ahead of the required date
for disclosure;

« Our pension policy s fully aligned to
the wider workforce — Directors receive
the same percentage contribution as all
HL colleagues;

» Through existing shareholding
requirements, bonus deferral and the
five-year vesting requirements under
the Sustained Performance Plan,
Directors willinevitably hold HL plc
shares after ceasing employment.
However, we are reviewing the
shareholding requirementsin the
context of the Code and willintroduce
additional policy requirements as
appropriate at the next policy reviewin
2020;

« We willalso review the relationship
between target and maximum
bonus opportunities in light of
stakeholder views; and

« Finally, we will review the requirements
under the Investment Firm Directive
and incorporate any changes required
to deferral, malus/clawback and share
retention periods as necessary.

Areas of focus for the forthcoming year
No changes are proposed to the operation
of the remuneration policy in respect of
the 2020 financial year. However, we will
spend time considering the impact of any
required policy changes to apply for
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2020/21 as discussed above.

We have also awarded a 2.9% salary
increase to Executive Directors, against
an overall budget for base salary increases
of 3.1% across the organisation.

Looking forward, we continue to monitor
remuneration developments within the
asset managementindustry. During the
year commencing 1 July 2019, we intend to
build on the review of our remuneration
approach throughout the organisation to
ensure we remain compliant with our
governance and regulatory requirements
andthat we are clear, fair and transparent
in how we assess and recognise the
contribution of all our colleagues aligned to
our culture and values.

The Terms of Reference for the
Committee are available onthe Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary.

Gender pay and diversity

We are committed to building a culture
and environment that attracts, values
and retains a diverse workforce.

Our Chair and Chief Executive Officer are
members of the 30% Club and we have
signed up to the Womenin Finance
Charter and we were one of the first
signatories of the Bristol Equality Charter.
Furthermore, we are within our target
range of the HM Treasury's Womenin
Fanance initiative - 26.6% of senior
colleagues are women.

Over the year we have focused on building
awareness and understanding of the
importance of equality, diversity and
inclusion (ED&I), gaining the commitment
from senior leadership to effect change,
improving our processes, policies and
practices, and improving our training and
support for colleagues.

Although our median gender pay gap
(GPG)increased from 18.3% last year to
20.4%, our mean GPG has improved from
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The Terms of Reference for the
Committee are available onthe Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary.

28.8% last year to 13.7% this year and we
have increased the number of women
receiving top quartile earnings from 17% to
21%. However, there is stillmore that we
needto do andagender pay gap action
plan has been designed to ensure that we
are targeting the key challenges and
making a tangible difference.

Highlights from the last year include:

» Establishingthe Gender Diversity,
Cultural Diversity, Financial Inclusion,
Mental Fitness, Kaleidoscope,
Environment, Sustainability and Climate
Change Groups, and the HL Foundation
Committee;

» Our Chief Executive taking the role
of accountable executive responsible
for Diversity and Inclusion;

» Reviewing our approach to pay and
performance ratings to make it clear,
fairand transparent;

« Partnering with other organisations
to encourage increased diversity
in financial services —for example
Workingmums and local schools; and

+ Launching the South West Mentoring
Awards and Network to showcase the
benefits of diversity. We are starting to
receive recognition for the
improvements we made:

+ An18% improvementin favourable
responses to the colleague survey
question "HL values and promotes
employee diversity"

» External awards including: Diversity
Champion Award — Bristol City Council
Stepping Up Awards. Organisation
Award for Gender —Bristol Diversity
Awards. Championing Disability
Inclusion Award (Highly Commended) —
Financial Adviser Diversity in Finance
Awards. Championing LGBT Inclusion
Award - Financial Adviser Diversity in
Finance Awards. Championing Race
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Annual statement by the

Chair of the Remuneration committee continued

Equality Award — Financial Adviser
Diversity in Finance Awards. Wellbeing
Champion Awards —MIND Wellbeing
awards. LGBT+ Staff Network Award —
Bristol Pride Awards.

Details of our gender pay gap for the year
to 5 April 2018 can be found in the 2019
gender pay report on our website. We are
committed to reducing this gap over time
by increasing the proportion of womenin
senior leadership roles. | will report backin
next year's directors' remuneration report
on the progress we have made during

the year.

Wider workforce

The HL Colleague Forumwas set up in
January 2019 to create a feedback channel
directly between colleagues and the
Board on matters of strategic importance.
The Forum has considered culture at HL
and pay and development.

While the Colleague Forum hasn't sought
feedback explicitly in respect of the
Directors' remuneration, it has considered
colleague views on the wider approach
toremuneration, career development
and how well our values are embedded

in these processes.

1 Source: Platforum UK D2C Market Update (July 2019).

The Forum was presented with proposed
improvements to the pay approach for
this year and sought feedback from HL
colleagues regarding the performance
and pay process. | attended the feedback
session and heard for myself how
colleagues recognised the improvements
that have been made, particularly around
embedding the values into performance
management. The Forum was also able
to assess whether the proposed
improvements would improve transparency,
clarity and fairness in the pay process.

Feedback to date evidences that changes
made this year have addressed many

of the concerns raised by colleagues.
Despite significantimprovements this
year, we recognise there is more to do,
particularly with respect to our gender pay
gap and our focus on developing female
senior leadersin HL. [ look forward to
furtherinsights from the Forum as we
progress our plans this year.

Contents of this report
On the following pages we set out:

« Asummary of the Directors'
remuneration policy which was approved
atthe 2017 AGM on 11 October 2017; and

« The annual report on remuneration.
This will be subject to an advisory vote
at the AGM where | will be available
to answer any questions.

Fiona Clutterbuck
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

2 Source: Compeer Limited XO Quarterly Benchmarking Report Quarter 12019
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Directors’ remuneration policy (summary)

The Directors' remuneration policy was
subject to a binding vote and approved

by shareholders at our 2017 AGM held on
11 October 2017. It is intended that it should
apply for three years, until our 2020 AGM.

Executive Directors

The full Directors' remuneration policy
can be found on pages 58 to 63 of the
2017 Report and Financial Statements,
whichis available to view on our website at
www.hl.co.uk/investor-relations. The
tables below summarise the key elements
of pay for Executive and Non-Executive
Directors.

Component/purpose
and link to strategy Operation and performance measures Maximum opportunity
Base salary Base salaries are reviewed annually, with any increase usually effective from 1 July. No prescribed

Reflects the individual's
responsibilities,
experience and
contribution. Supports
the recruitment and
retention of the calibre
ofindividuals required
tolead the Company.

Base salaries are set taking into account a range of factors including external
remuneration levels and remuneration levels within the Group, as well as an
individual's responsibilities, experience and contribution.

Base salary will ordinarily increase by no more than the average of relevant staff

increases. Any increase beyond this would only be made in exceptional
circumstances, which would be explained by the Remuneration Committee.

maximum increase.

Annual

Performance Bonus
Rewards achievement
of the Group's business
plan, key performance
indicators and the
personal contribution
of Directors.

Aligns the interests of

Directors with those
of shareholders

The level of Annual Performance Bonus payable is linked to key financial metrics
as wellas corporate and individual performance against objectives.

The on-target bonus for each Director as a percentage of base salary will be
disclosed in advance in the Annual report on remuneration for each year.

Performance will be assessed against a combination of financial/growth,
non-financial and individual measures over a one-year period. Thereis no
prescribed weighting of particular metrics, but financial performance is central
to the decision-making process.

In assessing the overall performance outcome, the Remuneration Committee
willuseitsjudgement to consider:

+ The extent to which market movements, investor sentiment, interest rates and
regulation, all of which are beyond the control of the Directors, have impacted the
performance. This may result in either reductions orincreases in the rewards that
would otherwise have been granted;

» The extent to which management has operated within the agreed risk
parameters; and

« The extent to which the bonus outcome reflects the overall performance of the
business in the context of shareholder experience.

40% of the Annual Performance Bonus is subject to compulsory deferral into nil
cost options over HL plc shares for a period of three years. Dividend alternatives
willaccrue on deferred awards and will be paid at the time of vesting.

Any unvested deferred awards are subject to a formal malus mechanism. The
non-deferred element of bonus awards are subject to clawback for three years
from the date of award

The maximum bonus
opportunity for
Directors under the
policyis three and a half
times base salaryin
respect of the relevant
financial year.

The aggregate value

of bonuses payable

to allmembers of the
Executive Committee
(including the Directors)
is capped at 5% of profit
before tax for that year.

Sustained
Performance Plan
Aligns theinterests

of Directors with those
of shareholders and
rewards long-term
stewardship of

the Company.

Annual awards of nil-cost options over HL plc shares will vest over a five-year
period, subject to the achievement of underpinning performance conditions over
the vesting period.

The grant of awards will be subject to satisfactory personal performance of each
Director in the period prior to grant. The underpinning performance conditions
applicable for each award will be disclosed up frontin the Remuneration report.

Dividend alternatives will accrue on unvested awards and will be paid at the time of
vesting.

Any unvested awards will be subject to a formal malus mechanism.

The maximum award
eachyearunder the
policy is half times
base salary.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019
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Directors' remuneration policy (summary) continued

Component/purpose
and link to strategy

Operation and performance measures

Maximum opportunity

Shareholding Guideline
Aligns the interests

of management and
shareholders to the
success of the Group

Directors have six years from appointment to the Board to achieve a shareholding
with a minimum value of three times base salary.

Vested but unexercised nil cost options under the annual performance bonus are
includedin the calculation of a Director's shareholding. Unvested nil cost options
under the Sustained Performance Plan and previous LTIP are not included.

Not applicable.

Pension

Provides adequate
pension saving
arrangements for
Directors and staff.

Pension provision is provided in line with the pension provision for all staff.
Any changes made to the staff arrangements will be carried across to the Directors.

The Committee may amend the form of any Director's pension arrangements in
response to changing pension legislation or similar developments, solong as any
amendment does not increase the cost to the Company of a Director's pension
provision by any greater percentage than the increase to the provision for all
other staff.

All staff and Directors may waive an element of their Annual Performance Bonus
inreturn for a corresponding employer's contribution into their pension.
The Company will pay a cash allowance in place of an employer pension contribution

where a Director has reached the Lifetime Allowance or would exceed the annual
limit or has opted out where they have elected to protect their Lifetime Allowance.

A defined contribution
pension arrangement
is provided for all
employees, with a
matched employer
contribution of 5%

of base salary.

Where employees make
additional contributions
of over 5% of salary,
these willbe double
matched by the
Companyuptoa
maximum value of a
further 6% of salary.
Maximum employer
contributionis therefore
11% of salary.

Any contribution paid
as a result of waiver of
the cash element of

an Annual Performance
Bonus willnot be
counted towards

these maxima and
willnot attract
matched funding.

Benefits

Anacross the board
benefits package is
available both to staff
and Directors alike.

All eligible staff and Directors may take up arange of benefits.

Where costs are necessarily incurred in the performance of duties on behalf of
the Company, those costs will be reimbursed in full, e.g. travel, accommodation,
subsistence, relocation, and any tax and social costs arising.

Provision of tax efficient benefits such as pension contributions, additional
holiday, childcare vouchers and workplace parkingis available through a salary
sacrifice mechanism.

Group lifeinsurance and Group income protectionis provided to all staff with
greater than three months' continuous service.

All eligible staff (as defined by the scheme rules and which includes Executive
Directors) may participate in the Save As You Earn scheme.

Appropriate Director insurance and indemnity cover is provided by the Company.

Some Company services are provided at a reduced cost on the same basis as for
all other employees.

The maximum value of
benefits will depend on
the cost of the provision
of those benefits.

There are anumber of
variables and unknowns
impacting the maximum
payable inthe event of
relocation; however,

the Committee would
approve no more than

is necessary in such
situations.
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lllustration of application

of remuneration policy

The Committee discloses each yearinthe
Group's Report and Financial Statements
abar chart that models the potential
remuneration for each of the Executive
Directors for the forthcoming year using
arange of assumptions. The chart shows
the potential value of the current
Executive Directors' remuneration for
the forthcoming year for three scenarios:
minimum, maximum and mid-point
scenario as follows:

« The minimum amount represents
the unconditional component of the
remuneration package: salary, pension
and employee benefits;

« The mid-pointamountis the amount
the Executive Director will receive if they
achieve an on-target bonus level and
awards under the Sustained Performance
Plan vestin full. It willinclude both fixed
and variable components of
remuneration; and

« The maximum levelis the maximum
amount of remuneration each Executive
Director can be awardedin the year.

The maximumiis subject to remuneration
caps that have been established for
each component.

Chris Hill-Remuneration

opportunity for 2019/2020 (£'000s)
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500
100%
0

Minimum Mid-point  Maximum

W SPP B Annual bonus M Fixed

Philip Johnson —Remuneration
opportunity for 2019/2020 (£'000s)

2,500
2,000
1,500

1,000

Minimum Mid-point  Maximum

W SPP B Annual bonus M Fixed
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Directors' remuneration policy (summary) continued

Non-Executive Directors

Component/purpose and link to strategy

Operation and performance measures

Basic fee

Supports the attraction and retention of
high performing individuals, considering
both the market value of the position
and the individual's skills, experience
and performance.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors' basic fees are reviewed annually
by those responsible.

Feeincreases, if applicable, are normally effective from 1 July.

AllNon-Executive Director's fees including those below are paidin cash ona quarterly
basis.

The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for bonuses, pension or to participate
inany Group employee share plan.

Committee Chair fees

Recognises the additional time commitment

and responsibility involved in chairing a
Committee of the Board.

Each Non-Executive Director receives an additional fee for each Committee for which
they are Chair.

The Committee Chair fees reflect the additional time and responsibility in chairing
acommittee of the Board, including time spent liaising with management, and preparing
foracommittee of the Board.

Senior Independent Director (SID) fee

Recognises the additional time commitment

andresponsibility involved in holding the role
of the SID.

The SID receives an additional fee for his or her role.

The feereflects the additional time and responsibility in fulfilling the role of Senior
Independent Director.

Benefits and expenses

To appropriately reimburse the Chair and
Non-Executive Directors for out-of-pocket
expenses incurredin the fulfilment of their
responsibilities and any tax and social

costs arising.

Expenses may be claimed by the Chair and Non-Executive Directors inline with the
Company's expenses policy.
Appropriate Directorinsurance and indemnity cover is provided by the Company.

Some Group services are provided at a reduced cost, on the same basis as for all
other employees.

No other benefits are made available to Non-Executive Directors.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association, the maximum aggregate ordinary remuneration for the Non-Executive

Directorsis £1,500,000 per annum.

General

External Board appointments

The Company recognises that external
Non-Executive Directorships are beneficial
to both the Director and the Company and
thatits Executive Directors may be invited
to become Non-Executive Directors of
other companies. Such non-executive
duties can broaden experience and
knowledge which can benefit the Company.
Subject to approval by the Board, Executive
Directors are allowed to accept a maximum
of two non-executive appointments and
retain the fees received, provided that
appointments are not likely tolead to
conflicts of interest.

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee recognises that Director
remuneration is an area of particular
interest to our shareholders andin setting
and considering changes to remuneration,
itis critical that we listen to, and take into
account, their views.
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The Committee considers shareholder
feedback received inrelation to the AGM
each year atits first meeting following
the AGM. This feedback, as well as any
additional feedback received during any
other meetings with shareholders, is then
considered as part of the Company's
annual review of the remuneration policy.
We also regularly engage with our largest
shareholders to ensure we understand
the range of views which exist on
remunerationissues. When any material
changes are made to the policy, the
Committee will discuss these in advance
with our major shareholders wherever
practical. The Committee will also consult
with professional advisers to ensure we
consider regulatory requirements and
current market and industry practices,
where appropriate.
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Annual report on remuneration

Annual report on Remuneration

This reporthas been preparedin
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and the Large and
Medium-Sized Companies and Groups
Regulations 2013. It also meets the
requirements of the UK Listing Authority's
Listing Rules and the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules. The Committee
confirms that throughout the financial year
the Company has complied with these
governance rules and best practice
provisions.

Role of the Remuneration Committee
The Board remains ultimately accountable
for executive remuneration but has
delegated this responsibility to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Committee is therefore responsible for
determining the remuneration policy for the
remuneration of the Executive Directors of
the Company and of the subsidiary
companies, the Chair, other members of
executive management and all other staff
who are deemed to be Material Risk Takers
or ldentified Staff. The policy is determined
with due regard to the interests of the
Company, the shareholders

and the Group, with the objective of being
able to attract, retain and motivate
executive management of the quality
required to runthe Group successfully
without paying more thanis necessary.

The performance measurement of the
Executive Directors and key members of
senior management and the determination
of their annual remuneration packages

is also undertaken by the Committee.
Individual remuneration outcomes for
employees below the Executive Committee
are reviewed by the Reward Governance
Committee, comprising the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief People
Officer and Group Risk and Compliance
Director, whichreports to the Committee
onits decisions.

The Committee also ensures that the
remuneration relationship between the
Executive Directors and senior employees
of the Groupis appropriate and that the
remuneration policy complies with the
relevant FCA Remuneration Codes. Any
exceptional remuneration arrangements
for senior employees are advised to

the Committee.

Meetings during the year

There were five scheduled meetings during
the year and additional ad hoc meetings
where required. Allmeetings were chaired
by Fiona Clutterbuck. Other members were
Deanna Oppenheimer, Shirley Garrood and
Stephen Robertson.

None of the Committee members has any
personal financial interest (other than as
shareholders), conflicts of interests arising
from cross-directorships or day-to-day
involvementinrunning the business.

Member Position Eligible meetings Attended meetings
Fiona Clutterbuck Chair cccoe cecee
Shirley Garrood Non-Executive Director secoe ccecoe
Deanna Oppenheimer Non-Executive Director cecee cccee
Stephen Robertson Non-Executive Director eccee cecee
= Contents 75
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Activities during the year included:

« Consideration of the Directors'
Remuneration Reportinthe 2018
Report and Financial Statements, and
considering all of the feedback received
frominstitutional shareholders;

« Considering a formal assessment of risk
performanceinrelation to remuneration;

+ Reviewingand agreeing performance
bonuses for the Executive Directors
as well as other Material Risk Takers;

» Reviewing and approving Executive
Directors' objectives and performance
measures;

« Reviewingthe approachto
proportionality and the approach for
the identification of Material Risk Takers
(MRTs)under CRD IV, AIFMD and
UCITSV;

» Reviewing the remuneration policy for the
wider workforce, includingimprovements
inthe approach to the year end pay and
bonus to improve consistency and
transparency for colleagues;

« Approving the annual Save As You Earn
scheme invitation and terms

» Receivingreports and overseeing
decisions and recommendations made
by the Reward Governance Committee;

« Reviewingand approving the required
Remuneration Code disclosures;

» Reviewingand agreeing the approach
toimproving the colleague voice via
the HL Colleague Forum;

« Reviewingthe gender pay gap reporting
covering the snapshot date of 5 April 2018
and noting management's action plan
toaddress the gender pay gap; and

« Reviewingand approving updated Terms
of Reference for this Committee.
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Advice to the Committee

The Committeeis supported by the
Company Secretary, the Chief People
Officer, the Head of Performance and
Reward, and the Chief Executive Officer
who areinvited to attend Committee
meetings to provide further background
information and context to assist the
Committeeinits duties. No Director
was involved in discussions regarding the
determination of their own remuneration.

Throughout the year, the Committee

has been advised by Deloitte LLP, whichis a
signatory to the Remuneration Consultants
Group's Code of Conduct for the provision
ofindependent remuneration advice. The
advisers review all committee papers and
provide input on matters directly to the
Committee as well as attending all
committee meetings. As such, the
Committee is satisfied that the advice it has
received was objective and independent.
The fees payable to Deloitte for this advice
were based on services provided against a
scope of services approved by the
Committee and amountedto £158,000 plus
VAT. Other services provided to Hargreaves
Lansdown by Deloitte LLP during the year
consisted of risk advisory, taxand HR
consulting services.

Consultation with employees

The HL Colleague Forumwas setupin
January 2019 to create a feedback channel
directly between colleagues and the Board
on matters of strategicimportance. The
Forum has considered culture at HL, pay
and development and corporate strategy.

While the Forum hasn't sought feedback
explicitly in respect of the Directors’
remuneration to date, we expect to seek
the views of colleagues as part of the
Directors' remuneration policy review
process.

The Committee also considers the wider
salaryincrease, remuneration arrangements
and employment conditions across

the wider employee population when
considering Directors' pay and awards.
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Implementation of the remuneration policy in 2019/20 — Executive Directors

Salary

The Executive Directors' base salaries were reviewed in August 2019. In reviewing base salaries the Committee takesinto account salaries
paid elsewhere across the Group, relevant market data and information on remuneration practices in peer companies in the financial
services sector. Based on this information, the Committee agreed to award a 2.9% increase to the Executive Directors against an overall
budget for base salary increases of 3.1% across the organisation.

Salaryasat Salaryasat
Name of Director 1July 2019 (£) 1July 2018 (£) % increase
Chris Hill 630,000 612,000 29
Philip Johnson 446,000 433,500 29

Annual bonus

For 2020, awards will be subject to performance assessment against a combination of financial/growth, client and strategic measures,

as well as personal performance assessed against the Hargreaves Lansdown values. Risk and compliance considerations will also be taken
into account at both Company and individual levels.

The Company performance assessment will include the following measures:

Financial/growth Client Strategic

» Netnew business + Clientadvocacy* « Strategic delivery?

« Netnew clients + Client retention « Effective risk management®
» Profit before tax + Client service* « Colleague advocacy®

1 Client Advocacy: measuresinclude NPS, net ease and client satisfaction

2 Strategic Delivery: measures include delivery of key initiatives that support growth, efficiency and scalability

3 Effective Risk Management: measures include regulatory compliance, open audit actions, breaches and errors
4 Client Service: measuresinclude client satisfaction, client numbers and complaints

5 Colleague Advocacy: measures include engagement, leadership and culture indices

Thetargets setinrelation to these measures are considered to be commercially sensitive, but will be disclosed in next year's report.

In making an assessment of performance, the Committee will give due consideration to market movements, investor sentiment,

interest rates and the impact of regulation, all of which are beyond the control of the Executive Directors. They will also consider the extent
to which management has operated within the agreed risk parameters and the extent to which the bonus outcome reflects the overall
performance of the business in the context of client and shareholder experience. Details of the Committee's assessment will be given
inthe remuneration report next year.

Individual performance will be assessed against the following objectives:

Individual objectives for Chris Hill Individual objectives for Philip Johnson

» Define and shape the business to deliver strategic growth » Shape a sustainable business model that deliverslong-term
whilst maintaining market leading client service financial results

« Fosteradiverse andinnovative, results-oriented culture that « Provide leadership and direction to evolve and communicate
operates within an effective risk framework and well governed the strategy within an effective risk framework
organisation - Balance resources and service levels to improve capability

« Proactively manage the reputation of the Group across and delivery across functional areas

all stakeholders

In addition, each Executive Director's performance will be assessed against how they have demonstrated behaviours aligned to our values:
Put the client first, Go the extra mile, Make it easy, Do the right thing, Do it better.

In line with the existing remuneration policy, the following on-target and maximum bonus opportunities will apply, which are the same as for
2019:

On-target bonus opportunity (% of base salary) Maximum bonus opportunity (% of base salary)
Chris Hill 225% 350%
Philip Johnson 156% 350%

The total value of bonuses paid to members of the Executive Committee, which includes the Executive Directors, inany performance
year willremain capped at 5% of profit before tax. In line with the approved policy, 60% of any bonus awarded to each Executive Director
will be payable in cash following the end of the financial year and 40% of any bonus will be deferred into nil-cost options over HL plc shares
foraperiod of three years, subject to continued employment.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Dividend alternatives will accrue on the deferred share element of bonuses up to the time of vesting and will be paid at exercise.

Bonus awards are subject to clawback for three years from the date of award and unvested deferred awards are subject to a formal malus
mechanism until the vesting date. The Committee can defer a decision to award bonuses or award and suspend payment of bonuses for
any individual in scope of an investigation into their conduct or responsibility, accountability or knowledge and/or influence over any
material risk eventidentified during or after the performance year. For further details of the relevant malus/clawback triggers, please see
page 82.

Sustained Performance Plan (SPP)
Each Executive Director will receive an award of nil-cost options over HL plc shares with a face value of 50% of base salary, subject to

satisfactory personal performance in the period prior to grant. Awards will vest after five years, subject to the achievement of the following
underpinning performance conditions:

« Arequirement for average AUA for the last complete financial year prior to vesting to be above the average AUA for the last complete
financial year prior to award;

« Maintenance of a satisfactory risk, compliance and internal control environment across the plan period; and
« Satisfactory personal performance throughout the plan period.

The Board will review performance against these underpinning conditions in the round, giving due consideration to market movements,
investor sentiment, interest rates and the impact of regulation, all of which are beyond the control of the Executive Directors. They will
also consider the extent to which management has operated within the agreed risk parameters in assessing the extent to which awards
should vest.

Dividend alternatives will accrue on nil-cost options up to the time of vesting and will be paid at exercise.
Any unvested awards will be subject to a formal malus mechanism.

Under HL's variable pay plans, the Committee can defer a decision to award bonuses or award and suspend payment of bonuses or
suspend vesting of deferred bonuses or SPP awards for any individual in scope of an investigation into their conduct or responsibility,
accountability or knowledge and/or influence over any material risk event identified during or after the performance year. For further
details of the relevant triggers, please see page 82.

Executive Director remuneration for 2019
Remuneration payable for the 2019 financial year (1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019) (Audited)
The remuneration received by Executive Directors in relation to performance in 2019 is set out below:

Employer

Gross Other taxable Cash Deferred element pension
Basic salary benefits? bonus ofbonus-shares LTIP/SPP?  contribution? Totals
Name of Director Year £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chris Hill 2019 612 6 - - - 31 648
2018 600 23 1,020 680 120 11 2,454
Philip Johnson 2019 434 1 - - - 22 457
2018 425 20 598 399 - - 1,442

1 Thisincludes Medical, PMland SAYE discount value.
2 Sustained Performance Plan (SPP) is our Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), introduced in 2016/2017 and subject to performance conditions. These will first start to vestin 2022.
3 Thisincludes employer pension contributions and any pension allowance paid in lieu of pension contributions.

Other than SAYE options (which are available to Directors on the same basis as all employees and included in other taxable benefits),
and the awards made to Chris Hill on joining, no share options without performance criteria have been granted to Executive Directors
since 7 March 2012.

Where eligible, benefitsin kind are available to Directors on the same basis as other employees. For 2019, benefits include Life Insurance,
Income Protection, Private Medical Insurance, Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme, reduced platform fees for holding assetsin HL, and
reduced dealing charges for self and connected persons and access to arange of voluntary benefits such as Critical lliness cover.

No Director has a prospective entitlement to a defined benefit pension by reference to their length of qualifying service.

Assessment of annual performance for the 2019 financial year (1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019) (Audited)
The value of any bonuses payable to Executive Directors was determined by the Committee based on:

» Anassessment of the performance of the Group against a number of financial/growth, client service and strategic measures,
and an assessment of risk performance and risk events as detailed below, and

« Eachindividual's performance, including progress against the specific objectives set for them as well as an assessment of risk
management and compliance and their behaviours aligned to HL's values.
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There were no specific weightings assigned to performance, and the determination was undertaken, taking all factors into account
and using all relevant information. For each Executive Director, their overall bonus was determined by reference to the following target
and maximum levels, as disclosedin the 2018 Report & Financial Statements:

On-target bonus opportunity Maximum bonus opportunity
(% of base salary) (% of base salary)

Chris Hill 225% 350%

Philip Johnson 156% 350%

The totalvalue of any bonuses payable to both Executive Directors and other members of the Executive Committee is subject to a cap
of 5% of profit before tax, in line with the Directors' remuneration policy.

Group performance has been considered in relation to the following measures:

Financial/growth Client service Strategic

« Netnewbusiness « Clientretention « Developingclient service

« Netnewclients » Clientservice « Developing capability (including risk management)
« Profit before tax » Net promoter score + Maintaining the business

Details of performance in each of these areas is set out below:

Growth measures

Operating
plantarget  Actual Lastyear Commentary
Net new business £8.5bn £7.3bn £7.6bn Net new business fell short of an ambitious plan set assuming market

growth andis below last year's record but the Committee recognised
a strong performance given the wider context of market volatility,
record low investor confidence and a prolonged period of retail fund
outflows in the market. The Committee also noted the level of net
new business during the best ever tax year end.

Assets under Administration grew by 8% to £99.3bn.

Net new clients 147,872 133,000 137,000 Despite falling short of plan, the Committee noted strong growth in
net new clients considering market conditions and compared to
peers.

During the year our market share improved from 39.1% to 40.5% in the
platform market and from 31.3% to 34.1% in the UK execution only
stockbroking.

Profit before tax £3279m  £305.8m  £2924m  The Committee reviewed strong performance delivering a 5%
increase in profit with adverse market movement during the year and
noted the very positive impact of management action to contain
costs.

Summary: Strong performance in a challenging year
The Committee recognised that the Group has delivered a strong financial performance in challenging market conditions with
growthin market share and a record tax year end underpinned by strong cost discipline.

Client service

Actual Lastyear Commentary

Client retention 93.6% 94.3% The Committee noted that client retention has been broadly stable
compared to last year. This is considered to be a strong result given
that the Group has also welcomed a net 133,000 new clients at the
sametime.

Client service 228 239 The client service measure consists of a combination of
net promoter scores (across each of the three product areas: SIPP,
ISA, and Fund and Share Account), and client retention.

The score of 228 is lower than last year. However, operational
volumes are higher than last year and a number of metrics
demonstrate significantimprovements in Operations and on the
Helpdesk.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Actual Last year Commentary

Net promoter score 48.7% 50.3% As part of the overall assessment of client service, the Committee
reviewed the NPS level which declined from 50.3 to 48.7. Inlight of
low investor confidence, investment performance and the impacts
of regulatory work such as MiFID, the score compares favourably
within the financial services sector.

Summary: On-target performance

The Committee concluded that on balance the Group performance in Client Service was on-target overall. Despite a small decline
inNPS, client retention has been stable with anincrease of 133,000 new clients to 1,224,000 with a steady improvement in
Operations and on the Helpdesk.

Strategic delivery
The Committee reviewed progress against the strategic plan and assessed them under the following groupings:

Developing our client service Developing our capabilities Maintaining the business

» Launch of Select Global Fund, Wealth50  « Improved governance andrisk oversight ~ « Enhanced systems for clientidentity
and Active Savings, Easy Access . Delivery of technology and training to ma_nagemerjt providing a more secure

- Launch of segregated mandates into Operations and Helpdesk teams driving digital experience
MultiManager Funds significantincreases in performance « Increasedlogin speeds for clients

- Rollout out of client analytics and and productivity - Introduced automation into the cash ISA
segmentationinto Marketing teams « Implementation of software that transfer process

. Improvement to transfer times continuously helps our agents become

more knowledgeable

« Improved colleague engagement and
focus on corporate social responsibility

Summary: Very strong performance

The Committee recognised significant delivery of key strategic projects including the launch of the Select Global Fund and the Wealth 50.
Notable improvements can be seenin the development of our capabilities including governance, risk oversight and colleague engagement
through corporate social responsibility activity. Additionally, we noted improved operational processes and system upgrades delivering
faster and more efficient service for clients.

Assessment of individual performance for the 2019 financial year (1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019) (Audited)
The Committee assessed each Executive Director's performance during the financial year, including against their personal objectives,
as follows:

Chris Hill
Objective Committee’s assessment
Maintain and develop relationships with key stakeholders Strong performance in this area, including positive influence

of the industry via membership of the FCA Practitioner Panel.

Develop the organisation andits risk culture to execute the strategy ~ Strong progressin strengthening the governance and risk
to the benefit of all stakeholders culture across the business and developing the skills of his
leadership team.

Evolve the client strategy Very strong performance by acting swiftly to implement strategic
changes to create a competitive advantage —launch of
Select Global Fund and Wealth 50 and adding Easy Access
to Active Savings.

Maintain client satisfaction in the context of the accelerating Very strong performance in this area by improving the client
digitallandscape experience through enhanced technology and improving
processes that had become points of pain for clients.

Summary:

The Committee concluded that this was a strong performance from the Chief Executive Officer supported by the leadership team. He
made a significant contribution to performance throughout the year and, in delivering against his personal objectives, demonstrated a
strong set of values, vision and talent in an extremely challenging environment.

80 = Contents Hargreaves Lansdown / Reportand Financial Statements 2019



Philip Johnson

Objective

Committee’s assessment

Provide financial leadership in determining strategic direction

Very strong financial leadership of strategy and robust focus
on costs to deliver strong financial results.

Deliver financial results in a risk controlled environment

Strong performance with continued improvement in capital
and liquidity management.

Communicate the strategy to investors

Investment story is well articulated and investor relationships
are managed well.

Balance capabilities, talent, costs and service levels to fulfil
functional core responsibilities efficiently

Sustainable improvements made in operations and functional
capabilities improved significantly.

Improve strategic and financial delivery

Strong performance inimproving the quality and timeliness
of financial delivery to support the strategic plan.

Summary:

The Committee determined that Philip Johnson has made a significant contribution to the financial success of the business through
financial leadership and a robust focus on costs. Through achievement of his personal objectives, capital and liquidity remains strong

to support an ambitious business strategy.

Overall assessment and bonuses awarded for the financial year (1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019) (Audited)
The Committee considered all of the above in making their bonus determination for Chris Hill and Philip Johnson for the 2019 financial year.

In addition, it also considered the extent to which performance (both Group and individual) has been achieved within the agreed risk
parameters, based on an assessment from the Chief Risk Officer, and the extent to which the bonus outcome reflects the overall
performance of the business in the context of the shareholder experience.

The Committee concluded that the bonus outcomes for Chris Hilland Philip Johnson should reflect the strong levels of Company
performance during the year as well as the highlevels of leadership shown by both, including their performance against individual

objectives and Company values.

However, to recognise the financial and personalimpact the suspension of the Woodford Equity Income Fund has had on our clients and,
given Hargreaves Lansdown's client focused culture, the Executive Directors informed the Committee that they do not wish to take any

bonus for the 2019 performance year. The Committee accepted their decision.

The resulting bonuses for the year ending 30 June 2019 are set out below together with prior year numbers for comparison:

Cash Deferred Total % of % of
£'000 £'000 £'000 on-target maximum
Chris Hill2019 - - - - -
Chris Hill 2018 1,020 680 1,700 126 81
Philip Johnson 2019 - - - - -
Philip Johnson 2018 598 399 997 150 67

Deferral of annual performance bonuses

40% of the annual performance bonuses is subject to compulsory deferral into nil-cost options for a period of three years. Dividend

alternatives willaccrue on the deferred shares element of bonuses up to the time of vesting and will be paid at exercise. Individuals have a

right to exercise deferred awards that vest after three years provided they remain employed by the Group at exercise.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Malus and clawback

Bonus awards are subject to clawback until three years from the date of award and unvested deferred nil-cost options are subject to

a formal malus mechanism until the vesting date. The Committee can defer a decision to award bonuses or award and suspend payment of
bonuses and/or vesting of deferred bonus SPP awards for any individual in scope of an investigation into their conduct or responsibility,
accountability or knowledge and/or influence over any material risk event identified during or after the performance year.

The triggers that apply to malus and clawback under all share plans are as follows:
« Amaterial misstatement of the financial results of any Group Company;
« A material failure of risk management in any Group Company or a relevant business unit;

« Serious reputational damage to any Group Company or a relevant business unit attributable to the conduct of, or an act of omission by,
the Award Holder or an Employee for which the Award Holder is or was responsible;

« Afailure by the participant to identify any serious risks relating to any Group Company;
« Afailure by the participant to implement appropriate controls for any serious risks relating to any Group Company; and
« Anerrorin the calculation of the award holder's performance bonus in respect of which the award was made.

Prior year comparison
For additionalinformation, the history of the performance measures and the total value of Executive Committee bonuses for the last
five yearsis:

Measure 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Profit before tax £305.8m £292.4m £265.8m £218.9m £199.0m
Net new business £7.3bn £7.6bn £6.9bn £6.0bn £6.1bn
Net new clients 133,000 137,000 118,000 100,000 84,000
Net operating margin (on net revenue) 63.1% 65.0% 67.7% 66.8% 67.3%
Client service measure 228 239 272 249 240
Total value of Executive Committee 0.59% 1.97% 1.93% 1.83% 1.78%

bonuses as % of PBT

Share awards made during the year ending 30 June 2019 (audited)

Market value Number of

of maximum Shareprice sharesover Fair value % of face

award at Exercise onday of whichthe Face value of atdate of value that
date of grant price grant award was award! grant? wouldvest Performance
Name of director  Type ofaward (£) (£) (£) granted (£) (€) atthreshold period
Chris Hill SPP? 305,980 Nil-cost 2215 13,814 305,980 305,980 n/a 1July 2018 to
option 30 June 2023

Chris Hill Deferred Bonus 679,983 1.00* 2215 30,699 679,983 679,982 n/a
Philip Johnson  SPP? 216,738 Nil-cost 2215 9,785 216,738 216,738 n/a 1July 2018 to
option 30June 2023

Philip Johnson  Deferred Bonus 398,789 1.004 22.15 18,004 398,789 398,788 n/a

1 Facevalueis calculated as the share price at the date of grant multiplied by the number of options granted.

Fair value is calculated as the difference between market value and the exercise price at the date of grant.

Awards under the SPP were granted at 50% of base salary subject to the achievement of underpinning performance conditions and will vest over five years.

The underpinning performance conditions are:

« Arequirementfor average AUA for the last complete financial year prior to vesting to be above the average AUA for the last complete financial year prior to award;
« Maintenance of a satisfactory risk, compliance and internal control environment across the plan period; and

« Satisfactory personal performance throughout the plan period.

4 The aggregate exercise price for awards under the deferred bonus scheme is £1and were granted on 19 September 2018.

W N
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All-employee share plans

The Company operates a SAYE share option scheme on the same terms for all employees. Allemployees are encouraged to become
shareholders, both through direct ownership or through participationin the share scheme. At the end of the latest financial year,

28% of HL employees owned shares in the Company.

Sourcing shares

The Investment Association guidelines on sourcing shares have been followed and, in line with the scheme rules, the Company

has notissued shares under all employee schemes which, when aggregated with awards under all of the Company's other schemes,
exceed 10% of the issued ordinary share capital in any rolling 10-year period. The Company has also notissued new shares under
executive (discretionary) schemes which exceed 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company in any rolling 10-year period.

Executive Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
The guideline for Executive Directors to accumulate minimum personal holdings in Hargreaves Lansdown plc shares amounts to a value
of three times base salary within six years of appointment to the Board.

Current shareholdings are summarised in the following table:

Outstanding

subject to Share-

performance holding

Outstanding conditions asa

subject to and continued multiple

continued employment Number Share- ofbase

Beneficially Beneficially Outstanding employment arising from of share holding salary

ownedat ownedat subject to arising from Sustained options guideline  achievedat

30 June 30 June continued deferred Performance exercisedin (multiple of 30 June

Name of director 2018 2019 employment bonus Plan theyear basesalary) 2019

Chris Hill? 20,419 24,503 1,300 81,975 32,771 21,4307 Three 0.77*
times

Philip Johnson?® 30,612 30,612 1,702 29,520 23,213 - Three 1.36!
times

1 Theshareholding as a percentage of salary is based on the closing share price as at 28 June 2019 of £19.19.
2 Options exercisedinclude 1,750 SAYE options granted under 2016 SAYE scheme and 19,680 options granted under 2015 LTIP (after performance adjustment).
3 There has beenno subsequent changein Directors' shareholding and share interests since 30 June 2019.

Pension
No Directors or employees participate in a defined benefit pension scheme.

The Group operates its own Group Self Invested Personal Pension (the GSIPP) which applies to Directors and employees. The Company
requires a minimum employee contribution of 5% of reference salary andin exchange the Company will contribute 5%. Employees are able
to contribute up to 3% more than the 5% on a double matching basis. This means that for an 8% employee contribution the Company
contribution can be up to 11%.

Employees wishing to make personal contributions to the GSIPP can do so via salary exchange or bonus waiver ensuring that they benefit
from the maximum, immediate relief from income tax and National Insurance. Employees, Senior Management and Executive Directors
may opt out of the scheme should they wish. Where an individual has reduced the level of their contribution to the GSIPP due to exceeding,
or being due to exceed, the Lifetime Allowance or Annual Contribution, or has opted out where they have elected to protect their Lifetime
Allowance, the Group willmake an additional monthly payment equivalent to the employer’s pension contribution amount forsaken up to a
maximum of 5% of reference salary. The Committee confirms that no excess retirement benefits have been paid to current or past
Directors.

Payments to third parties
The Committee confirms that no amounts have been paid to third parties in respect of Directors' services.

Payments to past Directors (audited)
The Committee confirms that no payments have been made to past Directors during the year.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
The Committee confirms that no payments have been made for loss of office during the year.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Remunerationin context
Total shareholder return
The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by total shareholder return (TSR), which is the capital growth
and dividends paid. This is compared with the performance of the FTSE 350 Financial Services Index for the last 10 years.

This chart shows the value of £100 invested in the Company on 1 July 2009 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 350
Financial Services Index for each of our financial year ends to 30 June 2019. We have chosen the FTSE 350 Financial Services Index
as we believeitis the most appropriate comparator for benchmarking our corporate performance over the 10-year period.
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Chief Executive Officer remuneration for the past 10 years

FTSE 350 Financial Services Index

Hargreaves Lansdown

2019

Annualbonusasa

Sharesvestingasa

CEO Total remuneration percentage of maximum percentage of maximum®
2010 Peter Hargreaves £405,917 nil nil
Peter Hargreaves!/
2011 lan Gorham? £85,123/£1,034,167 (£73,333)°/(£666,667) nil/nil
2012 lan Gorham £1,640,895 (£1,250,000)° nil
2013 lan Gorham £6,751,557 (£1,500,000)° 100%
60%
2014 lan Gorham £10,608,359 (£1,350,000) 100%
52%
2015 lan Gorham £2,058,642 (£1,170,000) nil
78%
2016 lan Gorham £2,070,861 (£1,550,000) nil
43%/81%
2017 lan Gorham?/Chris Hill* £1,167,549/£1,035,211 (£600,000/£790,625) 66%
81%
2018 Chris Hill £2,454,048 (£1,700,000) 39%
0%
2019 Chris Hill £648,278 nil nil

Emoluments for Peter Hargreaves for 2011 are shown for the two months prior to the date of his resignation from the role as Chief Executive Officer.
Emoluments for lan Gorham for 2011 are shown for the 10 months following his appointment to the Board as a Director.

1

2

3 Emoluments for lan Gorham for 2017 are shown for the period to 9 February 2017 when he stepped down as Chief Executive Officer.

4 Emoluments for Chris Hill for 2017 reflect his emoluments for the period from 9 February 2017, and exclude his earnings as Chief Financial Officer and Deputy Chief Executive
Officer prior to that date.

Prior to 2014, there was no individual cap on annualbonus payable, other than the overallbonus pool cap as a percentage of profit before tax. Bonus figures shown

are gross of any sacrifice into pension and before any compulsory deferral.

Options vestingin 2014 and 2013 pre-dated the LTIP and therefore had no performance criteria.

o

()}
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Chief Executive Officer’'s remuneration ratios and percentage change
The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration of the Director undertaking the role of Chief Executive Officer and the
Company's employees as a whole between the year ended 30 June 2018 and the year ended 30 June 2019.

Base salary Annual bonus
Chief Executive Officer % change 2% -100%
Employee % change' 6% 7%

1 Thistable showsthe changein average salary and average bonus delivered to eligible colleagues between 2018 and 2019.

Benefits are provided on the same terms to Directors and all staff alike and, as such, are not included within the table above.

We are committed to transparency in the link between executive pay and employee pay, and so we are publishing our Chief Executive
Officer pay ratio ahead of the disclosure requirements set out by BEIS which come in to effect for financial years starting on or after 1
January 2019. The table below sets out the ratio at median, lower and upper quartile of the total remuneration received by the Chief
Executive Officer for the last two years compared to the total remuneration received by our UK colleagues.

Year Lower quartile Median Upper quartile Change in median
2019 241 171 111 -757%
2018 971 70.1 46.1 -

Notes to the calculations:

1 Themedian, lower and upper percentile colleagues were determined based on calculating total annual remuneration up to and including 30 June.

2 Incalculating total remuneration for colleagues, any gains on historic options vesting within the calculation year have been excluded. The omission of this factor does not
materially affect the ratio outcomes.

3 Basic salary for part-time colleagues and new joiners within the calculation year have been convertedinto full-time annualised equivalent values for the purposes of the
calculations.

4 'Option A'was chosen from the options available in the reporting regulations since it is the most robust and statistically accurate method.

5 Benefits are provided on the same terms to Directors and all staff alike and as such are not included within the table above.

6 Setoutseparately inthe table belowis the basic salary and total remuneration figures for each of the percentilesin each year:

Year Pay element UK employee lower quartile UK employee Median UK employee upper quartile
2019 Basic Salary 21,838 28,050 46,920
Total remuneration 26,605 37,093 57,714
2018 Basic salary 21,848 30,000 43,860
Total remuneration 25,333 34,970 53,779

7 2018 calculations have beenincluded to allow for a relative comparison of the 2019 outcomes to be evaluated.

The Committee believes that our 2019 median pay ratio is consistent with the Company's wider pay, reward and progression policies
for our UKemployees.

Relative importance of the spend on remuneration

The table below shows the actual expenditure of the Group in terms of total employee remuneration, profit before tax, and total dividends
for this and the previous year together with the percentage change between the years. Profit before tax has been chosen as a metric

in this instance to demonstrate the profits generated for shareholders and the relationship between this and the overall cost of

employee remuneration.

Total dividend

Total dividend paid Profit before tax Staff costs declared

£m £m £m (pence per share)

2019 190.5 305.8 97.2 42.0
2018 144.5 292.4 87.4 40.0p
% change +32% +5% +11% +5%
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Annual report on remuneration continued

External directorships of Executive Directors in the year
None of the Executive Directors have held any external directorships during the year.

Remuneration policy for other employees

Allemployees across the Group are subject to the same process in respect of annual salary reviews. Consideration is given to the
scope of eachrole, the level of experience, responsibility, progressin role, and pay levels for similar roles in comparable companies.
The performance and potential of the individual is also considered.

All permanent employees are considered for an annual performance bonus, or equivalent, with similar metrics to those used for
the Executive Directors. All eligible employees (under the rules of the scheme) may also participate in the Group's Save As You Earn.

Chair and Non-Executive Director remuneration
Feesfor Non-Executive Directors are structured with a base fee payable to all Non-Executive Directors, with additional fees paid
for the role of Senior Independent Director and for the chairs of Board committees.

Areview of fees was undertaken during the year and the opportunity was taken to revise the fee structure to remove Committee member
fees andintroduce a flat basic fee for all Board and Committee members. These changes took effect 1 January 2019.

The fee levels are set takinginto account market data for comparable positions taking account of the time commitment required for the
role.

Feesfor Non-Executive Directors for the 2019 financial year are as follows:

Fee policy
Feesfrom Feesfrom
1July 20192 1July2018
(Ep.a.) (Ep.a)
Chair 325,000 325,000
Base fee for Non-Executives Directors 70,000 52,500
Senior Independent Director 15,000 15,000
Chair of Audit Committee 20,000 25,000
Chair of Remuneration Committee 20,000 12,500
Chair of Investment Committee 10,000 10,000
Chair of Risk Committee 20,000 12,500
Chair of Nomination Committee! 10,000 10,000
Member of Audit/Remuneration/Investment/Risk/Nomination Committee n/a 2,500
1 Under current arrangements the Chair fulfils this role for no additional fee.
2 Thesefeestook effect from1January 2019.
Remuneration payable for the 2019 financial year (1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019) (audited)
The remuneration received by Non-Executive Directorsin 2019 is set out below.
Non-Executive Directors and Chair 2019 fees (£) 2018 fees (£)
Deanna Oppenheimer, Chair 325,000 131,992
Stephen Robertson 67,500 65,000
Shirley Garrood 95,000 83,463
Jayne Styles 75,000 70,000
Fiona Clutterbuck 81,250 57,083
Roger Perkin 86,250 61,250
Dan Olley! 5,833 -

1 Appointed1June 2019
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Non-Executive Directors received no other benefits or other remuneration other than reimbursement of all reasonable and properly
documented travel, subsistence and other incidental expenses incurred in the performance of their duties and any tax and social costs
arising thereon, the benefit of officers'liability insurance and reduced fees for the use of Hargreaves Lansdown services for themselves
and connected persons, on the same basis as all other Hargreaves Lansdown staff.

The table below shows, as at 30 June 2019, the number of shares in the Company held by the Non-Executive Directors:

Non-Executive Director Shares
Deanna Oppenheimer, Chair 60,000
Stephen Robertson 9,890
Shirley Garrood nil
Jayne Styles nil
Roger Perkin nil
Fiona Clutterbuck 2,197
Dan Olley nil

1There has been no subsequent change in Non-Executive Directors' shareholdings since 30 June 2019.

Statement of voting at the AGM
At the AGM heldin 2018, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors' remunerationreport and, at the AGMin 2017,

votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors' Remuneration Policy were as follows:

Votes for
including Total votes Total votes
discretionary Votes cast excluding Votes castincluding

Resolution votes % for against % against  votes withheld withheld voteswithheld
Approve Directors Report
on Remuneration 334,521,613 98.58% 4,811,399 142% 339,333,012 263,818 339,596,830
Approve Directors
remuneration policy 397,269,387 98.69% 5,289,288 1.31% 402,558,675 1,771,890 494,330,565

Fiona Clutterbuck
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

7 August 2019
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Nomination committee report

66 Dear Shareholder

The Nomination Committee's main focus
this year has been on Board composition
and succession planning for the Executive
Committee. Following Board approval

of the Committee's recommendation
that a new Non-Executive Director with
expertise ininformation technology is
appointed to the Board, the Committee
commenced a rigorous process to find
and appoint an appropriate candidate.
That process culminated in the
appointment of Dan Olley as a
Non-Executive Director on 1 June 2019.
Dan has also now been appointed as a
member of the Risk Committee.

The Board considers that having the
appropriate range of high calibre Directors
is key to the Group achievingits strategic
objectives and providing appropriate
oversight of the regulatory matters

and other risks it faces.

In addition, ensuring the right balance of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of the Board members is key to enhancing
the Board's capabilities to deal with the
growth of the Group's business and the

ever changing regulatory environment
in which it operates, andis essential for
the Group's sustained success.

The Committee has therefore reviewed
the leadership needs of the business
and succession planning for Directors
and other senior management.

As Chair of the Nomination Committee,
lam pleased to present this report and

I will be available at the AGM to answer
any questions about our work throughout
the year.

Deanna Oppenheimer
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Attendance at Committee meetings during the year to 30 June 2019

Member Position Eligible meetings Attended meetings
Deanna Oppenheimer  Chair cee coe
Fiona Clutterbuck Non-Executive Director cee ceoe
Shirley Garrood Non-Executive Director soe )
Stephen Robertson Non-Executive Director coe coe
Jayne Styles Non-Executive Director cee )
Roger Perkin Non-Executive Director cee ceoe
88 = Contents
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The Terms of Reference for the
Committee are available onthe Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary.

Role of the Nomination Committee

The Committeeis responsible for leading
the process of making appointments to
the Board and ensuring that any such
appointments provide the skills and
experience required to enable the Board

to effectively discharge its responsibilities.
As part of this, the Committee regularly
reviews the structure, size and composition
of the Board, having regard to the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity

it requires to function effectively. The
Committee leads the process for Board
appointments, the re-election of Directors,
and succession planning for Directors.

The Chair of the Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board
concerningits composition and skills,
including proposed appointees and
membership of the Board's Committees.

The Committee's responsibilities are set
outinits terms of reference, which are
available from the Investor Relations pages
of the Group's website at www.hl.co.uk.

The Committee's key responsibilities are:

» Regularly assessing the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board
to ensure that it remains appropriate in
terms of its ability to meet the demands
and strategic objectives of the Group;

+ Reviewing the time commitment
expected of Non-Executive Directors
and assessing their other commitments
to ensure that they continue to be able to
fulfil their duties to the Group effectively;

+ Reviewing the criteria, including the skills
and capabilities, for identifying and
nominating candidates for appointment
to the Board and its Committees;

« Considering succession planning for
Directors and senior management,
takinginto account the opportunities,
challenges and future needs facing
the Group;

» Evaluating annually the independence
of the Non-Executive Directors; and

« Recommending the election and/or
re-election of Directors at the AGM.
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Nomination Committee membership
and meeting attendance

Deanna Oppenheimer (as Chair), Fiona
Clutterbuck, Shirley Garrood, Roger Perkin,
StephenRobertsonand Jayne Styles

each served on the Committee throughout
the year to 30 June 2019 with the exception
of Dan Olley.

During the period, the Committee met
three times. The attendance record

for each Committee memberis set out
inthe table opposite. Other individuals such
as the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
People Officer attend meetings at the
request of the Committee Chair.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
tothe Committee.

Key areas of focus during the year
to 30 June 2019

Overview of activities during the
financial year

4% 35%
Conflicts Non-Executive
Director

recruitment

15%

Effectiveness

15%

Routine

matters

31%

Executive succession
planning

Appointment of new Non-Executive
Director

Following Board approval of the
Committee's recommendation that a new
Non-Executive Director with expertisein
information technology is appointed to

the Board, the Committee commenced
arigorous process to find and appoint an
appropriate candidate. Anindependent
executive search agency, Russell Reynolds
Associates Limited, was appointed to
assistin compiling a shortlist of potential
candidates, and interviews were conducted
by the Chair of the Committee, the Senior
Independent Director and the Chief
Executive Officer. Having received feedback
ontheinterview process, the Committee
considered the shortlist and recommended
a candidate to the Board for appointment.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

After due consideration and following
approval of the preferred candidate by the
FCA, the Board approved the appointment
of Dan Olley with effect from 1 June 2019.
A comprehensive and structured induction
process is being provided.

Leadership and succession planning

The Committee reviewed succession
planning for both Executive and
Non-Executive Directors, takinginto
account the strategic objectives of the
Group, its future needs and Board diversity.
It also considered succession planning

for the Group's Executive Committee,

and highlighted the need to integrate
gender balance into that planning.

Board size, composition and time
commitments

As part of the Board evaluation process,
the Committee reviewed the size and
composition of the Board, in particular the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, to
ensure that the balance of skills, experience
and knowledge continued to be appropriate
for the Group's current and anticipated
future business needs. The Committee
also considered whether additional skills
and experience would be needed to
complement those already on the Board.
As aresult, the Committee recommended
the appointment of a new Independent
Non-Executive Director with expertisein
information technology, which was
achieved through the appointment of Dan
Olley.

Diversity

The Committee reviewed the Group's
Diversity Policy during the period.

The Group is committed to improving
diversity inits officers and employees and
whilst new appointments continue to be
based on skill, experience and knowledge,
careful considerationis given to diversity.
The Committee, when searching for
candidates for Board appointments, takes
into account a number of factors, including
the benefits of diversity and the balance
of the composition of the Board. The
Committee takes a pro-active approach
in seeking to improve the diversity of the
Board, includingin terms of ethnicity

and gender. The overriding requirement

is to ensure that recommendations for
appointments are based on merit against
objective criteria, and that the best
candidates are put forward for Board
appointments. As at 30 June 2019, the
Board numbered nine in total, four of whom
are female. The Boardis committed to
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ensuring it maintains a diverse workforce
atalllevels across the Group. A copy of our
full statement on Board diversity can be
foundinthe About Us pages of the Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk. Further
information on the Group's activities

in relation to diversity and inclusion
generally can be found on page 42

of the Strategic report.

Election and re-election of Directors

The Committee is satisfied that the

Board continues to be effective and

has recommended, in accordance with
provision B.7.1 of the Code, that Dan Olley
(having been appointed to the Board since
the previous AGM) should stand for election
and that each of the other Directors should
stand for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Effectiveness

The Board carried out a comprehensive
externally facilitated Board evaluation

and effectiveness review during the year
to 30 June 2018, which included a review

of the performance of the Committee.
The results were presentedto the Boardin
October 2018. Akey purpose of evaluating
the Committee's effectivenessis to ensure
thatitis able to meet the future strategic
needs of the Group. The Committee

has taken steps toimplement the
recommendations of the evaluation. This
has included encouraging the professional
development of the Non-Executive
Directors, and evaluating the Board's
existing skills and strengths to guide future
appointments, an example of the latter
being the Committee's recommendation
to appoint Dan Olley as Non-Executive
Director to address a perceived gapin the
Board's technology expertise. The Board s
inthe process of carrying out an internally
run evaluation of its effectiveness, including
the Committee, for the current year.

Signed on behalf of the Nomination
Committee.

Deanna Oppenheimer
Chair of the Nomination Committee

7 August 2019
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Risk committee report

66 Dear Shareholder

As Chair of the Risk Committee lam
pleasedto present the Committee's
report for the year to 30 June 2019.

The Committee reviews the Group's
risk environment and the adequacy

and effectiveness of its risk framework,
systems and processes (its risk
‘infrastructure’). Its aimis to ensure

that the Group achieves sustained
growth and its business objectives
within the approved risk appetite, whilst
maintaining its market competitiveness.

Over the period under review, the
Committee has had a number of
challenging and valuable discussions
onkey and emerging risks affecting the
Group's business, as well as the Group's
risk profile. It has also reviewed and
approved the Group's risk appetite
statements and overseen and monitored
the development of its risk infrastructure.

The Committee has provided input and
oversight across a wide range of issues
with a particular focus on embedding

risk management practices in the Group's
firstline of defence, Brexit, the Group's
cyber control environment and updates
to the Risk Enhancement Plan. It has also
considered and commented on requests
from the Group's regulator for information
on risk-related topics, such as updates

on progress of SREP actions.

The Committee approved and
recommended the Group's ICAAP
document, which was approved by the
Board on 20 December 2018.

| will be available at the AGM to answer
any questions about the work of
the Committee.

Shirley Garrood
Chair of the Risk Committee

Attendance at Committee meetings during the year to 30 June 2019

Member Position Eligible meetings Attended meetings
Shirley Garrood Chair eoeocoe eecoe
Fiona Clutterbuck Non-Executive Director cccoe cccece
Roger Perkin Non-Executive Director XXX XX
Stephen Robertson Non-Executive Director sccce XXX
Jayne Styles Non-Executive Director XXX secoe

Key Committee activities for the year to 30 June 2019

Topic Aug Oct Jan Apr Jun
Strategic and emerging risks . . o o .
Embedding operational risk . o o .
ICAAP o . o
Routine mattersincluding CRO report o o . . o
Risk framework, attestation, appetite o o
IT and cyber .

Conduct risk and product governance .

AML/MLRO reports o

Remuneration o

Operational effectiveness .

Risk self-assessment o
920 = Contents
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The Terms of Reference for the
Committee are available onthe Group's
website at www.hl.co.uk or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary.

Role of the Risk Committee

The Risk Committee has responsibility for
advising the Board on the Group's overall
risk appetite and strategy. The Committee
reviews the Group's risk assessment
processes and methodology andits
capability for identifying and managing

new risks, alongside advising on proposed
transactions and reviewing reports on
material breaches of approved risk limits.
The Committee is also responsible for
monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group's risk function and the Group's
capitaladequacy requirements on an
ongoing basis.

The Committee's responsibilities are set
outinits terms of reference, which are
available from the Investor Relations pages
of the Group's website at www.hl.co.uk.

The Committee's key responsibilities are:

+ Advising the Board on the Group's
overallrisk appetite, tolerance and
strategy, takinginto account the current
and prospective macroeconomic and
financial environment;

« Overseeingand advising the Board on
the current risk exposures of the Group
and future risk strategy;

+ Advising the Board on the amount of
surplus regulatory capital that the Group
should hold, such surplus capital being
commensurate with the Group's risk
profile and regulatory obligations;

« Overseeingthe delivery of the
Group's ICAAP, including: debating
and challenging the Pillar Il scenarios,
considering and recommending
appropriate stress tests, agreeing
appropriate management actions
to enhance the ICAAP, and reviewing
and recommending to the Board
the Group's ICAAP and wind down
documents and capital requirements;
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» Overseeing the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management procedures,
including those relating to anti-money
laundering, data protection, fraud,

IT security, cyberrisk and AIFMD;

» Overseeing the principal risks and
uncertainties relating to the Group and
the steps being taken to mitigate them;

« Seekingtoidentify and assess future
risks which, by virtue of their unfamiliarity,
uncertainty and deemed low probability
may not have been factored adequately
into review elsewhere within the Group's
risk framework;

« Continuously monitoring the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk
managementinfrastructure; and

« Making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee as to whether
adjustments to Executive Director
remuneration are required having regard
to the Group's risk management during
the period.

After each meeting the Committee reports
its findings to the Board, identifies matters
for which action orimprovement are
needed, and recommends appropriate
steps. The Board, however, retains

ultimate responsibility for the Group's risk
management, risk strategy and determining
an appropriate risk appetite.

Risk Committee membership

and meeting attendance

Shirley Garrood (as Chair), Fiona
Clutterbuck, Roger Perkin, Stephen
Robertson and Jayne Styles each served
on the Committee throughout the year
to 30 June 2019. Dan Olley was appointed
as amember of the Committee on

6 August 2019.

The Committee meets at least four times
each year. The attendance record for each
Committee memberis set outinthe table
opposite.

Otherindividuals attend at the request

of the Committee Chair. During the period,
the Chair of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Group Director of Risk and
Compliance and Head of Internal Audit
attended meetings to report to the
Committee on specific matters and provide
clarification and explanations where
appropriate.
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Key areas of focus for the year

to 30 June 2019

Risk reporting and risk profile

The Committee received reports fromthe
CRO at each Committee meeting as well
asreports from other areas of the Group's
business on request. Regular topics of
discussion have included conduct risk, the
Group's risk appetite and associated key risk
indicators, embedding of operational risk
inthe first line, escalation reports, learnings
andrisk dashboards. The Committee has
challenged the business where trends or
data suggest further actionis required. The
Committee believes that the management
of the Group's risk profile is given adequate
consideration. Any necessary actions
identified by the Committee have been,
orareinthe process of being, undertaken
with appropriate governance and oversight.

Emergingrisks

Emergingrisks have beenan agendaitem
at most Committee meetings during the
period. Papers have been submitted by

the Executive Risk Committee covering
avariety of emerging risks. These matters
have been discussed and challenged and
the Committee has provided guidance on
avariety of external emerging risks. Key
discussion topics have included Brexit and
the FCA's focus onliquidity. The Committee
has also considered a number of 'Dear CEO'
letters fromthe FCA.

Suspension of Woodford fund

Theimpact on the Group of the suspension
of trading in the Woodford Equity Income
Fundon 3 June 2019 was considered

at the Committee's meetingin June.

The Committee was pleased to see
thatimprovementsinthe Group's risk
management procedures had assisted

in ensuring the Group was able to respond
quickly and decisively to keep clients
informed and deal with an increased volume
of calls and emails in a timely and orderly
manner. The Committee discussed how

to mitigate the risk of a similar situation in
the future, and will oversee and challenge
proposed actions.

Fraud and cyber risk

The Committee is well aware of the
exposure to both fraud and cyber risk

of the areas in which the Group operates.
The Committee discussed these risks
on aregular basis. During the period,
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the Committee received regular updates

in this regard on client protection activity,
which were focused on enhancing existing
controls and reviewing and mitigating
emerging threats. The Committee receives
regular updates oninformation security

as part of the CRO report.

MLRO update

The MLRO reports to the Committee
onthe Group's anti-money laundering and
systems and controls. During the period,
the MLRO's continued focus has been on
maintaining a strong control environment
whilst pushing forward the developments
that willimprove the Group's operational
practices in respect of anti-money
laundering and treating clients fairly.

The Committee reviewed and improved
updates to the Group's Anti-Bribery and
Corruption policy in October 2018.

Operations update

The Committee received assurance on
the Group's operations activities primarily
through the key risk indicators and updates
included within the CRO report that is
provided at each Committee meeting.
Regular topics of discussionincluded
improvements to the control framework,
client outcomes, resource planning and
training and engagement of the Group's
operations teams. Key improvement
activity hasincluded enhancing the
culture across the operations teams and
developing a greater understanding and
appreciation of the impact and likelihood
of key risks. This has been accompanied
by continued management training and
improved managementinformation to
provide greater assurance over the design
and operating effectiveness of the control
environment and to drive future
development activities.

The Committee has receivedreports
fromboththe first and second line on
the Group's embedding risk agenda.
Secondline papers set out the approach
and provide updates on progress by
reference to the agreed Risk Enhancement
Plan. Firstline papers provide an update
onthe management of key risks linked
to aheatmap, along with details of
improvements made, benefits achieved
and further enhancements planned.
During the period, papers have been
submitted to the Committee froma
number of areas including Operations,
Advisory, IT and Active Savings.
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Risk committee report continued

ICAAP

The Committee approved and
recommended the Group's ICAAP, which
was approved by the Board on 20 December
2018. Prior to approving the ICAAP, the
Committee conducted separate challenge
and review sessions with the Board, senior
management and subject matter experts.
Understanding the ICAAP and using it as

an element of risk management challenge
to the Group's businessis anintegral part
of the Committee's work, and specific
agendaitems are dedicated to the ICAAP's
constituent elements, including operational
risk, liquidity management, reverse

stress testing, stress scenarios and

wind down plans.

Risk framework and governance

The Committee has continued to receive
evidence of the Group's improving risk
management framework, and a Risk
Enhancement Plan has been putin place
to supportthe Group in meetingits target
risk maturity level.

Remuneration schemes governance
The Committee provided support and
input to the Remuneration Committee by
reviewing areport from the CRO covering
the appropriateness and operation of
the Group's remuneration schemes,

and recommending whether risk
adjustments are required to bonus pools
orindividual remuneration, based on the
Group's risk profile.

Thisincluded risk adjustment
recommendations related to therecent
suspension of trading in the Woodford
Equity Income Fund. Further details can
be foundinthe annual statement by the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
on page 68.
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Risk effectiveness

During the period, the Committee has
overseen arange of improvementsin the
capacity, skills and experience of the risk
management team, as well as in embedding
the Group's risk management framework
into the operation of its business. The
Committee now has anincreased focus
on evidence provided from those within
the Group's first line of defence when
considering the use and adoption of risk
management by its business. Updates
are submitted to the Committee and
presented at each meeting for review,
discussion and challenge.

These measures continue toincrease

the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management activities. The Chair of the
Committee has beeninregular contact
with the CRO, the Group Director of Risk
and Compliance and the Head of Internal
Audit throughout the year. Atits meeting
in June 2019, the Committee received

and approved the annual reports on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management process, risk function,
the embedding of operational risk in various
business areas and the effectiveness of
the internal control environment.

Risk Committee Evaluation

The Board carried out a comprehensive
externally facilitated Board evaluation

and effectiveness review during the year

to 30 June 2018, whichincluded a review

of the performance of the Committee.
Theresults were presented to the Board

in October 2018. The Board has taken steps
toimplement recommended actions as
they apply to the Committee. This has
included continuing the development of the
Group's dynamic risk tools through its Risk
Enhancement Plan, and carrying out regular
reviews of specific areas of the Group's risk
appetite to ensure continued relevance.

The Boardisin the process of carrying
outaninternally run evaluation of its
effectiveness, including the Committee,
forthe currentyear.
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Risk Committee priorities for 2019/20
Looking ahead to the year ending 30 June
2020, the Committee will be focusing on:

» Continued development and embedding
of the Risk Management framework;

+ Active monitoringand management of
the risk profile and performance against
the Group's risk appetite, ensuring
alignment with the Group's strategy;

+ Overseeing the continued evolution
of the Group's ICAAP model;

+ Reviewing, challenging and approving
the Group's 2019/20 ICAAP;

« Overseeingand challenging proposed
actions to mitigate the risks to the Group
of afuture event similar to the recent
suspension of the Woodford Equity
Income Fund; and

+ Receivingand reviewingreports relating
to any significant issues that require
remedial action which arise in the period
under review.

Signed on behalf of the Risk Committee

Shirley Garrood
Chair of the Risk Committee

7 August 2019
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report on

the affairs of the Group, together with the
audited consolidated financial statements,
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Cautionary statement

The review of the business and its strategic
priorities in this Report and Financial
Statements has been prepared solely

to provide additional information to the
Company's shareholders to assess the
Group's strategies and the potential for
those strategies to succeed. It should not
be relied on by any other party for any other
purpose. Where it contains forward-looking
statements, these are made by the
Directorsin good faith based on the
information available to them at the time

of their approval of this report. Such
statements should be treated with caution
given the inherent uncertainties including
both economic and business risk factors
associated with them.

Results and dividends

Theresults of the Group are set outin
detail from page 105. The Company paid an
interim ordinary dividend during the period,
as detailed in note 3.2 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Board has
proposed a final ordinary dividend of

23.4 pence per share, to be paidinrespect
of the year ended 30 June 2019, subject

to approval at the AGM. In addition, the
Board has declared a special dividend of
8.3 pence per share. The proposal would
see these dividends paid on 18 October
2019 to all shareholders on the register

at 27 September 2019. Details of dividend
waivers are also detailedinnote 3.2 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Events after balance sheet date

Details of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year to 30 June 2019 are
set outinnote 5.5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Future developments

Details of likely future developments
inthe Group's business, along with the
Group's activities in the field of research
and development, can be foundin the
Strategic report on pages 2 to 48.

Hargreaves Lansdown / Report and Financial Statements 2019

Employee disclosures

Disclosures relating to the employment
of disabled persons by the Group, the
number of women in senior management
roles, employee engagement and policies
areincludedin the Corporate social
responsibility section of the Strategic
report on pages 42 to 44.

Corporate social responsibility
Disclosures relating to the Group's
approach to the environment and
sustainability, including details of the
Group's greenhouse gas emissions,
areincludedinthe Corporate social
responsibility section of the Strategic
report on pages 46 to 48.

Financial instruments and financial

risk management

Details of the Group's policy on risk
managementinrelation to the use of
financial instruments, and its exposure

to financial, market, liquidity and credit risk,
can be foundin note 5.7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Corporate governance

The Corporate governance report can be
found onpages 54 to 60 and, together with
this report of which it forms part, fulfils the
requirements of the corporate governance
statement for the purpose of the FCA's
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules Sourcebook.

Share capital

The Company's ordinary shares are listed
on the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange. Details of the Company's share
capital, including changes to the issued
share capital during the year can be found
in note 3.1to the consolidated financial
statements. The ordinary shares rank
paripassuin allrespects. The holders

of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share

at general meetings of the Company.
There are norestrictions on voting rights
attachingto, or on the transfer of,

the Company's ordinary shares.
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The Company was granted authority at the
AGMin 2018 to purchase its own shares up
toanaggregate nominal value of 10% of its
issued ordinary share capital. No shares
were purchased under this authority in the
year to 30 June 2019. This authority expires
at this year's AGM, at which a special
resolution will be proposed for its renewal.

If passed, the resolution will give the
Directors authority to make market
purchases of up to 47,431,862 ordinary
shares. This represents approximately 10%
of the Company's issued ordinary share
capitalas at 7 August 2019.

The Directors do not have any present
intention to exercise this authority, which
will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM
after the passing of the proposed
resolution.

The Directors were granted authority at the
AGMin 2018 to allot new ordinary shares up
to anaggregate nominalamount of
£632,424.80, representing approximately
one third of the Company's issued ordinary
share capital. This authority expires at this
year's AGM, at which a resolution willbe
proposed forits renewal. If passed,the
resolution will grant the Directors authority
to allot new ordinary shares up toan
aggregate nominal amount of £632,424.80,
representing approximately one third of the
Company'sissued ordinary share capital as
at 7 August 2019.

The Directors do not have any present
intention of exercising this authority which,
if granted, will expire at the conclusion of
the next AGM after the passing of the
proposed resolution.

The resolutions referred to above seek
authorities which are in accordance with the
current guidelinesissued by the Investment
Committees of the Association of British
Insurers and the Pensions and Lifetime
Savings Association.

Articles of association

The Company's articles of association
may only be amended by special resolution
ata general meeting of its shareholders.
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Directors' report continued

Directors and their interests

Deanna Oppenheimer, Chris Hill, Philip
Johnson, Fiona Clutterbuck, Shirley
Garrood, Roger Perkin, Stephen Robertson
and Jayne Styles all served as Directors

for the full period covered by this report.
Dan Olley joined the Board on 1 June 2019
as a Non-Executive Director.

Q Find out more
Theinterests of the Directors

inthe Company's shares are included
inthe Directors' remuneration report
on pages 83 and 87.

During the period covered by this report,
no Director had any materialinterestin

a contract to which the Company or any
of its subsidiary undertakings was a party
(other than their own service contract)
that required disclosure pursuant to the
Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Company's articles of
association, the Directors have the benefit
of anindemnity whichis a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision as defined
by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006.
The indemnity was introduced in August
2014 and remains in force. The Company
has maintained throughout the financial
year directors'and officers' liability
insurance cover for up to £60 million to
protect the Directors from loss resulting
from claims made against theminrelation
to the discharge of their duties. This cover
remains in force at the date of this report.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had been
advisedin accordance withthe DTR or
otherwise made aware of the following
shareholdings amounting to more than 3%
of theissued share capital of the Company:

Number and % of

Interested party ordinary shares

Peter Hargreaves 152,557,448 (32.16%)

Lindsell Train

Limited 52,354,597 (11.04%)
Stephen
Lansdown 41,140,000 (9.31%)

BlackRock, Inc. 32,343,003 (6.81%)

Baillie Gifford 23,888,812 (5.04%)
APG Asset
Management NV 14,388,351 (3.03%)

Between 30 June 2019 and 7 August 2019
(the latest practicable date forinclusionin
this report), the Company was notified that
Lindsell Train Limited had made a further
acquisition takingits interestto an
aggregate 56,923,823 ordinary shares,
representing 12.001% of the total voting
rights attached to Company'sissued
ordinary share capital as at 7 August 2019.

Thereis arelationship agreementin

place between Peter Hargreaves and the
Company to ensure that the independence
provisions set outin the Listing Rules

are complied with. The Board confirms that
for the year ended 30 June 2019, andin
accordance with the Listing Rule 9.8.4(14):

(i) The Company has complied with the
independence provisions included
inthe relationship agreement; and

(i) So far as the Company is aware,
the independence provisions included
inthe relationship agreement have
been complied with by the other parties
to the relationship agreement and
their associates.

Market Abuse Regulations

The Company has its own internal dealing
rules which apply to all staff and which
encompass the requirements of the Market
Abuse Regulations.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

All shareholders are invited to attend the
AGM on 10 October 2019 and willhave the
opportunity to put questions to the Board.

Details of all resolutions to be proposed to
the Company's shareholders will be set out
inthe Notice of AGM, which willbe
circulated ahead of the meeting.

Table of cross references required for Listing Rule 9.8.4 of the UK Listing Rules
Listing Rule 9.8.4 of the Financial Conduct Authority's Listing Rules require us to make
certain disclosures. The table below highlights each disclosure and where it can be found

withinthe Report and Financial Statements:

Listing Rule 9.8.4 Required Disclosure

Locationin the Report and Financial Statements

(12) Current Year Dividend Waiver
Agreements

Note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements
provides information on employee benefit trusts

that have waived dividends

(13) Future Dividend Waiver
Agreements

Note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements
provides information on employee benefit trusts

that have agreed to waive future dividends

(14) Information Regarding
Controlling Shareholder

A statement regarding the controlling shareholder
is on page 94 of the Directors'report
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Going concern, longer term prospects
and viability statement

The Board has concluded that it remained
appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements as it
believes the Group will continue to bein
business, with neither the intention nor the
necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or
seeking protection from creditors pursuant
to laws or regulations for a period of at least
12 months from the date of approval of the
Group's financial statements.

podasdibajens

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Directors
have assessed the viability of the Group
over a period that exceeds the 12 months
required by the going concern provision.
Details of this assessment can be found in
the risk management and the principal risks
and uncertainties section of the Strategic
reporton page 26.

Disclosure of information to auditor
Having made the requisite enquiries,
the Directors in office on the date of this
Report and Financial Statements have
each confirmed that:

« Sofarastheyare aware, thereisno
relevant auditinformation of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and

« EachDirector has taken all the steps that Zl
he/she ought to have taken as a Director, §
in order to make himself/herself aware o
of any relevant audit information and g
to establish that the Company's auditor 3
is aware of that information. 2
This confirmationis given and should
beinterpretedinaccordance with the
provisions of Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006.
Approved by and signed by order
of the Board
Alison Zobel
Company Secretary o]
=
[0)
7 August 2019 =
g
=l
&
5
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Report and Financial
Statementsinaccordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare financial statements for

each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared both the Group
financial statements and parent company
financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give
atrue and fair view of the state of affairs

of the Group and parent company and of
the profit or loss of the Group and parent
company for that period. In preparing

the financial statements, the Directors
arerequired to:

 select suitable accounting policies
andthen apply them consistently;

» state whether applicable IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have
been followed for the Group financial
statements and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union have been followed
for the Company financial statements,
subject to any material departures
disclosed and explainedin the
financial statements;

« makejudgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis unless
itisinappropriate to presume that
the Group and parent company will
continue in business.
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The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group

and parent company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accountingrecords that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group
and parent company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group
and parent company and enable them

to ensure that the financial statements
and the Directors' remuneration report
comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,
asregards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for

the maintenance and integrity of the
parent company's website. Legislation

in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation

in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Report
and Financial Statements, takenas a
whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group and

parent company's position and performance,

business model and strategy.

= Contents

Each ofthe Directors, whose names and
functions are listed in the Governance
section, on page 51, confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge:

the parent company financial statements,
which have been preparedin accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit of the company;

the Group financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit

of the Group; and

the Directors' reportincludes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the
Group and parent company, together
with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties thatit faces.

By order of the Board

Philip Johnson
Chief Financial Officer

7 August 2019
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Hargreaves Lansdown plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Hargreaves Lansdown plc's group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the “financial statements"):

+ give atrue andfair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the group's profit and the
group's and the parent company's cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards the parent company's financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

« have been preparedin accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report and Financial statements 2019 (the "Annual Report"), which
comprise: the consolidated and parent company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2019; the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and parent company statements of cash flows, and the
consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements,
which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinionis consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statementsin the UK, whichincludes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided
to the group or the parent company.

Other than those disclosedin note 1.4 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the group or the parent
company in the period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

Our audit approach

Context

Hargreaves Lansdown plcis listed on the London Stock Exchange and its principal activity is the provision of regulated investor investment
services to UK retail clients. As aresult, key focus areas for Hargreaves Lansdown plc are on growing assets under administration and
operating within a highly regulated market. These activities provide the context for our audit.

In the year, there have been no significant transactions or business reorganisations outside the normal course of business and no
significant changes in regulation that impact Hargreaves Lansdown plc.
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Overview

« Overallgroup materiality: £15.2 million (2018: £14.6 million), based on 5% of profit
before tax.

Materiality + Overall parent company materiality: £9.9 million (2018: £10.0 million), based on 5%
of profit before tax.

+ We performed a full scope audit of the complete financial information of two individually
financially significant reporting units, which together represent 99.0% of the Group's
profit before tax.

Audit scope

« Specific audit procedures were also performed over consolidation adjustments,
balances that could be tested at a group level which included intangible assets, staff
costs, cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and material movements through
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Key audit
matters

+ Revenue recognition (refer to the audit committee report, and note 1.1) (Group).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.

Capability of the audit in detectingirregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to breaches of UK and European regulatory principles, such as those governed by the Financial Conduct Authority, and we
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws
andregulations that have a directimpact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, the Listing
Rules, the Financial Conduct Authority's Client Asset Sourcebook and the UK tax legislation. We evaluated management's incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue of the company. Audit procedures performed by
the engagement teamincluded:

« Discussions with risk and compliance function, internal audit and the company's legal counsel, including consideration of known
or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

« Assessment of matters reported on the company's whistle-blowing helpline and the results of management's investigation
of such matters;

» Readingkey correspondence with the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to compliance with laws and regulations;
» Reviewingrelevant meeting minutes including those of the Board and Risk Committee;

« Reviewing dataregarding customer complaints and the company's register of litigation and claims, in so far as they related
to non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

« Identifying and testingjournal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations; and
» Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our testing.

There are inherentlimitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.
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Independent auditors' report to the

members of Hargreaves Lansdown plc continued

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition (refer to the audit committee report,
and note 1.1)

Revenue is material to the group andis animportant determinant
of the group's profitability.

Revenue may be misstated due to errorsin system calculations

or manual processes, for example, arising from incorrect securities
prices orlevels of assets held used in these calculations and
processes. Further, there are incentive schemes in place for
Directors and staff which are in part based on the group's revenue
performance. Where there are incentives based on performance,
thereis aninherentrisk of fraud in revenue recognition as there is

aninherentincentive to misstate revenue.

We assessed each revenue stream for the two in-scope reporting

units and determined that there is a significant risk based on the

opportunity for errors to occur in each of these revenue streams.

Our assessment of the risks for each revenue type which we
needed to obtain evidence over is as follows:

Type of revenue

Description of risks, including
fraudrisk factors

Asset and transaction-
based revenue
streams calculated

by the underlying
administration system
Management fees

on SIPPs andISAs

Platform fees
Stockbroking commission

Otherincome

These revenue streams are either
calculated based on the value of
assets held or based on activities
undertaken by the client of the
group, such as stockbroking.

The value of securities and all client
activitiesis held in the underlying
administration system which
supports the Vantage and PMS
platforms. The rates are derived
from standard rate tables.

Unauthorised changes to, or errors
intheseinputscouldleadtoa
misstatement of revenue.

Asset and transaction based revenue streams

To address theriskidentified in the asset and transaction based
revenue streams calculated by the underlying administration
system, we independently recalculated the revenue recognised.

This covered management fees, platform fees and an element
of stockbroking commission. Our calculations were based on data
extracted from the administration system.

In order torely on the data extracted, we:

« Reconciled transactional data provided from opening positions
through to closing positions of individual securities held; and

« Testedasample of transactions to supporting documentation
such as clientinstructions and a sample of security positions
to stock reconciliations and external sources (such as fund
manager statements).

This testing provided sufficient evidence for us to determine
the data extracted was reliable for the purposes of performing
the recalculations.

We tested the inputs of our recalculations by agreeing standing
data, such as fee structures, commission rates, stock movements
and security prices to supporting evidence on a sample basis.

No exceptions were noted from testing the standing data.

Onthe basis of this testing, we determined it was appropriate for us
to use the standing data to perform our independent recalculation
of each of the revenue streams.

We compared our independent recalculations to the amount
reported and noted differences that, in our view, were trivial and
required no further investigation.

We tested the remaining asset and transaction based revenue
within the two in-scope reporting units which included other
income and an element of stockbroking commission on a sample
basis, agreeing each revenue item sampled back to supporting
documentation. We noted differences that, in our view, were trivial
and required no further investigation.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Description of risks, including
fraudrisk factors

Type of revenue

The AMCs are calculated by an
independent third party, based on
the net asset value of the funds
and the published AMC rate.

Revenue streams
calculated by
managementor

a third party

Annual management
charges (AMCs') relating to
the Hargreaves Lansdown
Multi-Manager funds and
Select funds

Gross interest on client money is
calculated by management based
onthe deposit balance and the rate
agreed with the bank.

As aresult, amaterial misstatement
of revenue could arise from
fraudulently manipulating
calculations or spreadsheet errors.

Interestincome on
clientmoney

The above key audit matter applies only to the group. The parent
company does notreport revenue.

Revenue streams calculated by management or a third party
Annual management charges (AMCs') relating to the Hargreaves
Lansdown Multi-Manager funds and Select funds.

We agreed revenue samples through to cash received evidenced
by bank statements, recalculated the management fees, and
tested a control operating at the firm which independently verifies
the fund's net asset values provided by the independent third party.
We noted differences that, in our view, were trivial and required

no furtherinvestigation.

Interestincome on client money

On a sample basis, we manually recalculated the gross interest
earned on client money based on records maintained by
management and tested these records by agreeing a sample of
deposits and interest rates to documentation received from the
relevant bank. No exceptions were noted as part of our testing.

Allrevenue streams

As part of our testing described above, we performed procedures
to determine that revenue was recognised accurately and traced
to cashreceipts. In addition, we tested a sample of journals posted
tothe generalledger based on our assessment of fraud risk.

We understood the nature of these journals and agreed the
appropriateness of the journal to supporting documentation.

No exceptions were noted that were indicative of fraud or error.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the parent company to communicate in our report.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the parent company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in

which they operate.

The groupiis structured as one segment, comprising 20 separate reporting units. There were 6 trading subsidiaries during the year, two of
which we considered to be financially significant reporting units and on which we performed an audit of their complete financial
information. Together these two financially significant reporting units represent 99.0% of the group's profit before tax. An entity was
considered to be financially significant if it contributed more than 5% of consolidated profit before tax. Specific audit procedures were also
performed over consolidation adjustments, balances that could be tested at a group level which included intangible assets, staff costs,
cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and material movements through the consolidated statement of changes in equity. All of the
audit work was performed by the engagement team in the UK as all books and records were available at one location.

The parent company is a holding company with investments in subsidiaries in the Hargreaves Lansdown plc group. It does not trade
outside of the group. The only materialincome it received during the year was dividend income received from its subsidiaries.
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Independent auditors' report to the
members of Hargreaves Lansdown plc continued

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually
andinaggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Overall materiality £15.2 million (2018: £14.6 million). £9.9 million (2018: £10.0 million).
How we determinedit 5% of profit before tax. 5% of profit before tax.
Rationale for As the Group is profit orientated, we have As the parent company is profit orientated,
benchmark applied calculated materiality with reference to profit we have calculated materiality with reference
before tax. to profit before tax.

Foreach componentin the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality. The range of
materiality allocated across components was between £5.8 million and £13.7 million. Certain components were audited to a local statutory
audit materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £760,000 (Group audit)
(2018: £730,000) and £495,000 (Parent company audit) (2018: £500,000) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or draw attentiontoin ~ We have nothing material to add or to draw
respect of the directors' statement in the financial statements about whether the attentionto.

directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the financial statements and the directors' identification of any
material uncertainties to the group's and the parent company's ability to continue
as a going concern over a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements.

However, because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee
astothe group's and parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern. For example, the terms
onwhich the United Kingdom may withdraw from
the European Union are not clear, and it is difficult

to evaluate all of the potential implications on

the group's trade, customers, suppliers and the
wider economy.

We are required to reportif the directors' statement relating to Going Concern We have nothing to report.
inaccordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly statedin this report, any form
of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform
procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have beenincluded.
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Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 (CA06),
ISAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described
below (required by ISAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors'
report for the year ended 30 June 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements. (CAQ6)

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors' report. (CA06)

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity
of the group
We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

» Thedirectors' confirmation on page 26 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks
facing the group, including those that would threatenits business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

» Thedisclosuresinthe Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

« Thedirectors' explanation on page 95 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessment

of the principal risks facing the group and statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the group. Our review was substantially
lessin scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors' process supporting their statements;
checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the "Code");

and considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company
and their environment obtained in the course of the audit. (Listing Rules)

Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to reportin respect of our responsibility to report when:

» The statement given by the directors, on page 60, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group's and parent company's position and
performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the group and parent company obtained
in the course of performing our audit.

» The section of the Annual Report on page 61 describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

« Thedirectors' statement relating to the parent company's compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from
arelevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ Remuneration
In our opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006. (CA06)
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Independent auditors' report to the
members of Hargreaves Lansdown plc continued

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities set out on page 96, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this reportis shown orinto whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Otherrequiredreporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not beenreceived
from branches not visited by us; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

«+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are notin agreement
with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the members on 25 October 2013 to audit the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagementis 6 years,
covering the years ended 30 June 2014 to 30 June 2019.

Alex Bertolotti (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 August 2019
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Section 1: Results for the year
Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Year ended Year ended 173
30 June 2019 30June 2018 g
Note £m £m o
[(e}
Revenue 11 480.5 4475 )
Fair value gains on derivatives 2.2 2.3 "g‘>
Operating costs 13 (179.4) (1s87) &
Operating profit 303.3 2911
Finance income 16 2.8 15
Finance costs 17 (0.3) (0.2)
Profit before tax 305.8 292.4
Tax 1.8 (58.2) (55.7)
Profit for the financial year 247.6 236.7
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 247.4 236.3
Non-controlling interest 0.2 0.4
247.6 236.7
- ©
Earnings per share Q
Basic earnings per share (pence) 19 52.1 497 g
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 1.9 52.0 49.6 §
(0]
Theresults relate entirely to continuing operations.
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 247.6 236.7
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 247.6 236.7
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 247.4 236.3
Non-controlling interest 0.2 0.4
247.6 236.7

Theresults relate entirely to continuing operations.
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Section 1: Results for the year
Notes to the Group financial statements
Income statement

1.1 Revenue

Revenue represents fees receivable from financial services provided to clients, netinterest income on client money and management
fees chargedto clients. It relates to services provided in the UK and is stated net of value added tax.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for services
provided in the normal course of business, net of commission payable, discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes.

Recurring
Recurringrevenue is the largest source of income for the Group encompassing: platform fees, fund management fees, interest
on client money and ongoing adviser charges.

Platform fees are received for the provision of custody and administration of products on the HL platform and are charged monthly
in arrears for the service provided in the period, recognised on an accruals basis as they fall due. The consideration due is based on
the value of clients' underlying assets under administration.

Fund management fees are calculated as a proportion of the net asset value of the funds under management in each of the HL
Multi-Manager and Select funds for the management services provided by the Group's fund management subsidiary. They are charged
monthly in arrears and are recognised on an accruals basis in the period during which the service is provided.

Ongoing adviser charges are levied monthly in arrears for the period during which the service is provided and are calculated
as a percentage of the assets under management within the Group's portfolio management service.

Interest earned on client money is the net interest margin earned on money held within Group products by clients andis accrued
on atime basis, based on the client money balances under administration and by reference to the effective interest rate applicable.

Although most recurring revenue is based on the value of underlying benefits, these are not considered to constitute variable income
in which significant judgement or estimation is involved. The calculations are based on short timelines or point in time calculations that
represent the end of a quantifiable period, in accordance with the contract, and are charged to and paid by the client on the same value,
constituting the transaction price for the specified period.

Transactional
Transactional revenue is mainly comprised of: fees on stockbroking transactions, initial adviser charges and renewal commission.
The priceis determinedin relation to the specific transaction type and are frequently flat fees.

The Group earns fees on stockbroking transactions entered into on behalf of clients. The fee earnedis recorded in the accounts on
the date of the transaction, being the date on which services are provided to clients and the Group becomes entitled to the income.

Initial adviser charges are made to clients for providing full portfolio management services and ad hoc advice to clients on specific
financial matters. Revenue is recognised at the point at which an agreement is made to provide advice.

Renewal commissionis earned on third-party agreements entered into on the advice of the Group's advisory services and is recognised
onan accruals basis as it becomes due and payable to the Group.

Other

Otherrevenue is made up entirely of the provision of funds data services and research to external parties through FundsLibrary.
Billingis either carried out in advance or in arrears with transactional amounts determined in advance and agreed in line with the
contract for services. For those amounts billed in advance, the income is deferred over the contract period. Those amounts billed
inarrears are accrued for over the performance period of the contract, in line with the estimated usage of services

As at year end, the Group has discharged all of its obligations in relation to contracts with customers, other than inrelation to those
services that are billed in advance or arrears. These amounts are not material and where an obligation still exists at year end and the
payment exceeds the services rendered a contractliability is recognised, as deferred income in trade payables and spread across the
period of the transaction evenly.

Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m

Revenue
Recurring revenue 387.3 3449
Transactional revenue 84.3 94.0
Otherrevenue 8.9 8.6
Totalrevenue 480.5 4475
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1.2 Segmental reportin 2
9 P g g
Under IFRS 8, operating segments are required to be determined based upon the Group's internal organisation and management &
structure and the primary way in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is provided with financial information. In the case 3
of the Group, the CODM s considered to be the Executive Committee. 5
[tis the view of the Board and of the Executive Committee that there is only one segment, being the Group —a direct-to-investor
investment service administering investmentsin ISA, SIPP, Fund and Share accounts and Active Savings, providing services for individuals
and corporates. Itis considered that segmental reporting does not provide a clearer or more accurate view of the reporting within the
Group. Given that only one segment exists, no additional informationis presentedin relation toiit, as it is disclosed throughout these
financial statements.
The Group does not rely on any individual customer and so no additional customer information is reported.
1.3 Operating costs
Operating costs g
Operating costs represent those arising as a result of our operations and include depreciation and amortisation. Allamounts are g
recognised on an accruals basis. §
(0]

Leasing

Rentals payable for assets under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as anincentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Marketing and distribution costs
Marketing and distribution costs include the advertising and marketing costs, as well as the cost of providing statements and
informationto clients.

Operating profit has been arrived at after charging:

Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Depreciation of owned plant and equipment 5.4 4.4
Amortisation of otherintangible assets 4.6 3.4
Marketing and distribution costs 12.7 16.3
Operatinglease rentals payable —property 3.4 29
Office running costs —excluding operating lease rents payable 3.4 3.3
FSCS costs 6.8 35
Other operating costs 45.9 375
Staff costs (note 1.5) 97.2 87.4
Operating costs 179.4 158.7
. ' .
1.4 Auditors remuneration
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018 o
£m £m =
o
Audit fees =
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the statutory audit of the Company's g
annual financial statements - - a
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for the audits of the g
Company's subsidiaries 0.1 01
Audit related assurance services 0.3 0.2
0.4 0.3

Audit fees for the year for the Company are below £50,000 and due to rounding are not shown in full in the above table.
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Section 1: Results for the year
Notes to the Group financial statements
Income statement

Staff costs represent amounts paid to employees and non-executive directors in respect of services provided in the year including
wages and salaries, share-based payment expenses, bonuses, payments to a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme and
related social security costs. Amounts are recognised on an accruals basis as the services are provided.

The Group aims to attract, motivate and retain high calibre employees by rewarding them with competitive salary and benefit packages,
which may be linked to the creation of long-term shareholder value. Salary ranges are established by reference to those prevailing in the
employment market generally for employees of comparable status, responsibility and skills. Allemployees are eligible to be considered
for anannual discretionary bonus. In addition to cash bonuses, the Group operates various share-based remuneration schemes as
describedin note 1.10. Other pension costs relate wholly to defined contribution schemes.

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
No. No.

The average monthly number of employees of the Group

(including Executive Directors) was:

Operating and support functions 1,163 1,006
Administrative functions 411 392
1,574 1,398
Their aggregate remuneration comprised: £€m £m
Wages and salaries 79.8 71.2
Social security costs 8.5 7.8
Share-based payment expenses 3.8 36
Other pension costs 9.7 8.1
Total costs paid for staffing 101.8 90.7
Capitalisedinthe year (4.6) (3.3)
Staff costs 97.2 874

The staff costs of £101.8 million (2018: £90.7 million) include costs capitalised under intangible assets. In total, £3.8 million of wages and
salaries (2018: £2.8 million), social security costs of £0.5 million (2018: £0.3 million) and pension costs of £0.3 million (2018: £0.2 million)
were capitalised.

Interestincomeis accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal balance and the effective interest rate applicable for the office
bank accounts.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to receive payment have been established.

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Interest on bank deposits 2.8 15
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1.7 Finance costs

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Commitment fees 0.3 0.2

The finance costs relate to the commitment fees paid in respect of a revolving credit facility taken up in the prior year. The facility allows
the Group to draw up to £75 million (2018: £75 million) and is undrawn as at 30 June 2019. The facility incurs interest charges, consisting
of amargin of 0.85% plus LIBOR per annum when drawn .

1.8 Tax

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current taxis calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferredtaxis the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carryingamounts of assets and liabilities

in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using

the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Groupis able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferredtaxis calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferredtaxis charged or credited in the income statement, except whenit relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,

in which case the deferred taxis also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Current tax: on profits for the year 58.4 56.0
Current tax: adjustments in respect of prior years 0.1 0.2
Deferredtax (note 2.8) (0.2) (0.4)
Deferred tax: adjustments in respect of prior years (note 2.8) (0.1) (0.2)
58.2 557

Corporation taxis calculated at 19% of the estimated assessable profit for the year to 30 June 2019 (2018: 19%).

In addition to the amount charged to the consolidated income statement, certain tax amounts have been charged or (credited) directly
to equity as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m
Deferredtax relating to share-based payments 0.6 (1.6)
Current tax relating to share-based payments (1.0) (1.1)
(0.4) (2.7)
109
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Section 1: Results for the year
Notes to the Group financial statements
Income statement

1.8 Tax continued

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

Itis expected that the ongoing effective tax rate will remain at a rate approximating to the standard UK corporation tax rate in the medium
term, except for the impact of deferred tax arising from the timing of exercising of share options which is not under our control. The
standard UK corporation tax rate was reduced to 19% (from 20%) on 1 April 2017 and, accordingly, the Group's profits for this accounting
year are taxed at an effective rate of 19%. Deferred tax has beenrecognised at 18.5% or 17%, being the rates expected to be in force at the
time of the reversal of the temporary difference. A deferred tax asset in respect of future share option deductions has been recognised
based onthe Company's share price as at 30 June 2019.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Profit before tax 305.8 292.4
Tax at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2018: 19.0%) 58.1 556
Non-taxable income (0.1) (0.2)
[tems not allowable for tax - 0.1
Adjustments in respect of prior years - 0.2
Impact of the change intax rate 0.2 -
Tax expense for the year 58.2 557
Effective taxrate 19.0% 19.0%

Factors affecting future tax charge

Any increase or decrease to the Company's share price willimpact the amount of tax deduction available in future years on the value

of shares acquired by staff under share incentive schemes. The Finance Act 2015 was enacted on 18 November 2015 and reduced the
standard rate of UK corporation tax to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The Finance Act 2016 was substantively enacted
on 6 September 2016 reducing the rate further to 17% from 1 April 2020, replacing the originally planned 18% rate.
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1.9 Earnings per share (EPS) 2
Q
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number J.'f
of ordinary sharesin free issue during the year, including ordinary shares heldin the Hargreaves Lansdown Employee Benefit Trust ﬁ
(HLEBT) and Hargreaves Lansdown SIP Trust (SIP) reserve which have vested unconditionally with employees. §
Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all potentiallly dilutive ordinary shares.
The weighted average number of anti-dilutive share options and awards excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share
was nilat 30 June 2019 (2018: nil).
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Earnings
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted EPS — net profit attributable to equity holders
of parent company 247.4 236.3
Number of shares @
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 474,318,625 474,318,625 §
Weighted average number of shares held by HL EBT and SIP (125,270) (328,053) §
Weighted average number of shares held by HL EBT and SIP that have vested unconditionally ®
with employees 382,065 439127
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic EPS 474,575,420 474,429,699
Weighted average number of dilutive share options held by HL EBT and SIP that have not vested
unconditionally with employees 1,189,428 984,793
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted EPS 475,764,848 475,414,492
Earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic EPS 52.1 497
Diluted EPS 52.0 49.6

1.10 Share-based payments

The Groupissues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. Share options are expensed on

a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on management's best estimate of awards vesting and adjusted for the impact
of non-market-based vesting conditions. Annual revisions are made to the estimate of awards vesting, based on non-market-based
vesting conditions. The impact of the revisionis recognised in the income statement such that the cumulative expense reflects

the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to reserves.

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
onmanagement's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Any gains or losses on sale of the Company's own shares held by the EBT are credited or debited directly to the EBT reserve
and are treated as non-distributable profits.

Equity-settled share option scheme
The Group seeks to facilitate equity ownership by employees, principally through schemes that encourage and assist the purchase
of the Company's shares.

The Group operates three share option and share award plans: the Employee Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (SAYE),
the Hargreaves Lansdown plc Share Incentive Plan (SIP) and the Hargreaves Lansdown Company Share Option Scheme (the Executive
Option Scheme).

uo[3eW IO IBYIO

Awards granted under the SAYE scheme vest over three or five years. Awards granted under the Employee Share Incentive Plan vest

over athree-year period. Awards granted under the Executive Option Scheme range between vesting at grant date and a maximum of

10 years. Options are exercisable at a price equal to the market value of the Company's shares on the date of grant. There are currently

no performance conditions attached to any options granted under any of the schemes, with the exception of the Sustained Performance
Plan (SPP) —an Executive Option Scheme, although options are forfeited (in most circumstances) if the employee leaves the Group before
the options vest.
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Details of the share options and share awards outstanding during the year are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2019 Year ended 30 June 2018
Weighted average Weighted average
Share options exercise price Share options exercise price
No. Pence No. Pence
SAYE
Outstanding at beginning of the year 856,927 1,093.2 792,477 975.4
Granted during the year 263,238 1,384.0 187,466 1,377.0
Exercised during the year (197,460) 1,044.2 (85,133) 667.5
Forfeited during the year (30,762) 1,048.0 (37,883) 990.3
Outstanding at the end of the year 891,943 1,191.4 856,927 1,093.2
Exercisable at the end of the year 24,057 1,067.6 1,040 864.9
Executive Option Scheme
Outstanding at beginning of the year 2,524,947 957.3 3,557,149 995.2
Granted during the year 194,277 = 281,209 1317
Exercised during the year (583,217) 1,116.2 (918,802) 8426
Forfeited during the year (297,296) 1,239.3 (394,609) 977.8
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,838,711 759.6 2,524,947 9573
Exercisable at the end of the year 230,354 642.2 161,086 932.5
SIP
Outstanding at beginning of the year 37,235 23.5 39,600 23.5
Exercised during the year (2,350) 23.5 (2,365) 235
Outstanding at the end of the year 34,885 23.5 37,235 235
Exercisable at the end of the year 34,885 23.5 37,235 235

The weighted average market share price at the date of exercise for options exercised during the year was 2,037.4 pence (2018:1,593.9 pence).

The share options outstanding at the end of each year have exercise prices and expected remaining lives as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2019 Year ended 30 June 2018

Weighted Weighted
average options average options
Share options exercise price Share options exercise price
No. Pence No. Pence

Weighted average expected remaining life
O-lyears 1,285,819 865.0 1,240,927 1,068.0
1-2 years 895,004 1,021.2 1,090,031 903.8
2-3 years 414,037 1,046.3 939,420 10374
3-4years 98,731 0.0 50,000 1,3776
4-5years 71,948 0.0 98,731 0.0
2,765,539 889.3 3,419,109 980.9
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The fair value at the date of grant of options awarded during the year ended 30 June 2019 and the year ended 30 June 2018 has been

estimated by the Black-Scholes methodology and the principal assumptions required by the methodology were as follows: g
o
At 30 June At30June %
2019 2018 g
Weighted average share price 1,974.3p 1,642.5p 3
Expected dividend yields 1.81% 1.92%
SAYE
Weighted average exercise price 1,384.0p 1,377.0p
Expected volatility 28% 29%
Risk-freerate 0.80% 0.94%
Expected life 3years 3years
Fair value 814.9p 484.6p
Executive scheme
Weighted average exercise price 0.00p 131.66p
Expected volatility 30% 28%
Risk-freerate 1.45% 0.52% 5
Expected life 4.6 years 4.5years %
Fair value 2,046.0p 1,202.6p 3
3
(2]
(0]

The expected volatility
The expected Hargreaves Lansdown plc share price volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share

price since flotationin May 2007.

Prior to 15 May 2007, the Company's shares were not listed on a stock exchange and therefore no readily available market price existed
for the shares. Since 15 May 2007, a quoted market price has been available for the Company's shares.

The Group recognised total expenses related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions as shownin note 1.5.
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Section 2: Assets and liabilities

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2019
At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 21 1.3 13
Otherintangible assets 2.2 23.0 181
Property, plantand equipment 2.3 16.0 13.8
Deferredtax assets 2.8 3.8 41
44.1 373
Current assets
Investments 2.4 1.1 15
Derivative financial instruments 25 0.1 0.2
Trade and other receivables 26 748.6 627.2
Cash and cash equivalents 27 179.3 125.3
929.1 754.2
Total assets 973.2 791.5
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2.9 485.7 364.7
Derivative financial instruments 25 - 0.1
Current tax liabilities 27.5 20.8
513.2 385.6
Net current assets 415.9 368.6
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 2.10 0.7 0.7
Total liabilities 513.9 386.3
Net assets 459.3 405.2
EQUITY
Share capital 31 1.9 19
Sharesheld by EBT reserve (3.4) (3.5)
EBT reserve 1.5 6.2
Retained earnings 457.9 399.4
Total equity, attributable to the owners of the parent 457.9 404.0
Non-controllinginterest 31 1.4 12
Total equity 459.3 405.2

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 137 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 7 August 2019

and signed on its behalf by:

Philip Johnson
Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Group financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

2.1 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combinationis allocated to the cash-generating unit expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are reviewed for impairment at least annually as a matter of course,
and whenever an event or change in circumstances occurs which indicates potentialimpairment. The carrying value of goodwill

is compared to the recoverable amount, whichis the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognisedimmediately in profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed.

podasdibajens

Ondisposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m

1.5 15

Cost—at beginning and end of year

Accumulated impairment losses
Atbeginningand end of year

Carryingamount —at end of year

ddUBUIDA0D

0.2 0.2
1.3 13

The net carrying value of goodwill relates entirely to the acquisition of Hargreaves Lansdown Pensions Direct Limited (HLPD) now named
Hargreaves Lansdown Advisory Services Limited (HLAS).

The Group has prepared financial forecasts for the business for the period to June 2022 that show the Group as a whole and HLAS,

will remain profitable and cash generative. HLAS is profit-making and has a net asset position as at 30 June 2019. As a result there are no
significant indicators that goodwillis impaired.
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Section 2: Assets and liabilities
Notes to the Group financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

2.2 Otherintangible assets

Otherintangible assets comprise customer lists, computer software and the Group's key operating system, which are stated at cost
less amortisation and any recognised impairment loss. Amortisationis provided, where material, on allintangible assets excluding
goodwill at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset evenly using a straight-line
method over its estimated useful life as follows:

Customer list —eight years

The customer list relates to acquired books of business and does not include internally generated client lists. The carrying value of the
assetsis reviewed for impairment at least every 12 months, or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable.

Computer software —over three to eight years

Computer software relates to purchases of licences and software, inline with the requirements of IAS 38. The carrying values of
computer software are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. The gain orloss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carryingamount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Internally developed software —eight years
IT development costs are capitalised only to the extent that they have led to the creation of enduring assets, which deliver benefits
atleast as great as the amount capitalised and in accordance with the recognition criteria of IAS 38 intangible assets.

When assessing projects for capitalisation we apply IAS 38's recognition and measurement criteria for internally generated intangible
assets to development expenditure that is both propositional in nature (as opposed to regulatory or administrative), and whichis,
oris expected to be, material over the life of the project.

Development work has been undertakenin-house by IT staff and management to enhance the key operating system. The key
operating systemis fundamental to the operation of the platform, which holds client assets, enabling revenue to be earned.

In-house development work has also been undertaken in Hargreaves Lansdown Savings Limited to develop a digital cash savings
product. Development commenced in the year to 30 June 2016. The Group launched the service in December 2017 to a limited number
of clients and is committed to providing the financial resources required to see it through to expected profitability, having since grown
the number of clients to approximately 28,000.

Costs relating to an asset that is not yet fully available for use by the business, are classified as internally developed software and are
reviewed forimpairment at least annually. No issues have been noted in the current year. In accordance with the provisions of IAS 38
the costs are capitalised as an intangible asset and subsequently amortised over the estimated useful life of the systems of eight years,
starting from the date at which the assets are put into use.

Impairment of intangible assets excluding goodwill

At the end of eachreporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss. If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimatedin order to determine the extent of the loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows, independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount

is the higher of fair value, less costs to sell, and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less thanits carryingamount, the carryingamount of the assetis reduced
toits recoverable amount and animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Internally 173

Customer Computer developed g

list software software Total o

£m £m £m £m e

Cost ‘é

At1July 2017 0.4 100 9.4 198 &
Additions 0.6 3.8 52 9.6
At 30 June 2018 10 13.8 14.6 29.4
Additions 2.8 36 31 9.5
At 30 June 2019 3.8 17.4 17.7 38.9

Accumulated amortisation

At 1July 2017 0.1 6.8 1.0 79
Charge 0.1 2.2 11 34
At 30 June 2018 0.2 9.0 21 11.3
Charge 0.1 2.6 19 46
At 30 June 2019 0.3 11.6 4.0 15.9

Carryingamount o

At 30 June 2019 3.5 5.8 13.7 23.0 §

At 30 June 2018 0.8 4.8 12.5 181 §

At1July 2017 0.3 3.2 8.4 119 ]

The amortisation charge above is included in other operating costs in the income statement.

The customer lists are a separately acquired intangible asset and do not include any internally generated element. The remaining
amortisation period for these assets is six to eight years.

Computer software includes externally acquired licences and internally generated system improvements.

Commitmentsinrespect of intangible assets are showninnote 5.3.
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Section 2: Assets and liabilities
Notes to the Group financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Depreciationis charged based on the estimates of useful economic lives and expected residual values, which are reviewed annually,
for all plant and equipment. Management determines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based on
experience with similar assets and taking into account other relevant factors, such as any expected changes in technology. The charge
is calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset evenly using a straight-line method overits
estimated useful life as follows:

Computer hardware —over three to ten years
Office equipment (includes fixtures and leasehold improvements) —over three to ten years.

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Computer Office
hardware equipment Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At1July 2017 25.0 82 332
Additions 4.3 2.2 6.5
At 30 June 2018 29.3 10.4 39.7
Additions 6.7 0.9 76
At 30 June 2019 36.0 11.3 47.3
Accumulated depreciation
At1July 2017 17.3 4.2 21.5
Charge 34 10 4.4
At 30 June 2018 20.7 52 259
Charge 4.1 13 54
At 30 June 2019 24.8 6.5 31.3
Carryingamount
At 30 June 2019 11.2 4.8 16.0
At 30 June 2018 8.6 52 13.8
At1July 2017 77 4.0 117
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2.4 Investments

Investments are recognisedin the Group's statement of financial position, on trade date, when the Group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of aninstrument and are initially measured at fair value.

Investments by default are designated as being held at fair value through profit or loss and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Fair value being the quoted market price of the listed investment, with any gain or loss reported within the income statement.
Aninvestmentis classifiedin this categoryifitis held principally for the purpose of sellingin the short-term mandatorily, in accordance
with IFRS 9.

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to the cash flows, or substantially all of the risks and rewards

of ownership from the asset are transferred or expire. On derecognition of a financial asset inits entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

At beginning of year 1.5 41

Purchases - -

Disposals (0.4) (2.6)

Atend of year 1.1 15
Comprising:

Current assetinvestment — UK listed securities valued at quoted market price 1.1 15

£1.1million (2018: £1.5 million) of investments are classified as held at fair value through profit and loss, being deal-related short-term
investments. Inthe previous year this also included holdings in the HL multi-manager funds as a result of the daily box position —see note

5.8 for more details.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into short-term derivative financial instruments as a result of the currency service and overseas trading services
offeredtoits clients. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contractis entered into, and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period, if applicable. The resulting gain or loss is recognised immediately
intheincome statement.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as
afinancial liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financial statements unless the Group has both legal right and intention to offset.

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Assets 0.1 0.2
Liabilities - 01

Derivative contracts are short-term counterparty positions between the Group, its clients and third parties in the market. As a result there
are derivative liabilities and derivative assets presented in the statement of financial position in respect of open positions at year end.
All derivative positions are recognised as current assets or liabilities.

£2.2 million (2018: £2.3 million) of gains have been made, on a net basis, as a result of the fair value movements on derivatives in the year.
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Section 2: Assets and liabilities
Notes to the Group financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

2.6 Trade and other receivables

Financial assets are recognised in the Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and are initially measured at fair value.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any expected credit
losses. The financial assets are heldin order to collect the contractual cash flows and those cash flows are payments of interest and
principal only. The Group recognises Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) relating to trade receivables in line with the simplified approach

per IFRS 9 and calculated based on the historic information available from the preceding years alongside factors impacting the individual
debtors, economic conditions and forecast expectations. Impairmentlosses are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Term deposits
Term deposits comprise cash deposits held by UK licensed banks for a period of greater than three months, over which there is no recall
during the term of the deposit. The amounts are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method in line with IFRS 9.

Accruedincome

Accruedincome relates to balances for which the Group has provided services, but balances are billed in arrears and as such are not
yetdue. The amount relates to fund management fees, interest on deposits and services direct to clients. The revenue is recognised
evenly over the period during which services are provided, with initial recognition occurring at commencement of the agreement

or period.

Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Financial assets:

Trade receivables 461.4 348.5
Term deposits 215.0 222.0
Other receivables 4.5 4.2
680.9 5747

Non-financial assets:
Accruedincome 59.1 45.8
Prepayments 8.6 6.7
748.6 627.2

In accordance with market practice, certain balances with clients, Stock Exchange member firms and other counterparties totalling
£429.3 million (2018: £327.1 million) are included in trade receivables. These balances are presented net where there is a legal right of
offset and the ability and intention to settle net. The gross amount of trade receivables is £524.8 million (2018: £417.3 million) and the gross
amount offset in the statement of financial position with trade payablesis £95.5 million (2018: £90.2 million). Other than counterparty
balances, trade receivables primarily consist of fees and amounts owed by clients and renewal commission owed by fund management
groups. There are no balances where there is a legal right of offset but not a right of offset in accordance with accounting standards,

and no collateral has been posted for the balances that have been offset.

Given the short-term nature of the Group's receivables and the expectation of the Group in relation toits counterparties, there has been
no material expected credit loss recognised in the period —see note 5.7 for further details.

The Group does not have any contract assets inrespect of its revenue contracts with customers (2018: nil)
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2.7 Cash and cash equivalents 2
Q
@
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, %
subject toinsignificant changes in value and are considered to be holdings of less than three months or those over which the Group has §
animmediate right of recall. They are initially classified as loans and receivables, which means they are initially recognised at fair value -
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carryingamount of these assets is approximately
equal to their fair value.
Deposits held by the Group on unbreakable terms greater than three months are classified as receivables.
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents:
Group cash and cash equivalent balances 179.0 1215
Restricted cash—balances held by HL EBT 0.3 3.8 o
179.3 1253 §
>
Q
At 30 June 2019, segregated deposit amounts held by the Group on behalf of clients in accordance with the client money rules of the §

Financial Conduct Authority amounted to £5,398 million (2018: £9,645 million). In addition, there were currency service cash accounts held
onbehalf of clients not governed by the client money rules of £28.7 million (2018: £22.5 million). The client retains the beneficialinterest
in both these deposits and cash accounts, and accordingly, they are not included in the statement of financial position of the Group.

Restricted cash balances relate to the balances held within the HL Employee Benefit Trust. These are strictly held for the purpose
of purchasing shares to satisfy options under the Group's share option schemes.

2.8 Deferredtax assets

Deferred tax assets arise because of temporary differences only. The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years. Deferred tax has been recognised at 18.5% or 17%, being the rate
expected to be in force at the time of the reversal of the temporary difference.

Other deductible

Fixed asset Share-based temporary
taxrelief payments differences Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1July 2017 (0.2) 18 0.3 2.0
Credit/(charge) toincome 0.2 0.4 (0.2) 0.5
Credit to equity - 16 - 1.6
At 30 June 2018 01 3.8 0.2 4.1
Credittoincome 0.2 0.1 - 0.3
Charge to equity - (0.6) - (0.6)
At 30 June 2019 0.3 3.3 0.2 3.8

Deferred tax expected to be recovered or settled:

Within 1year after reporting date 01 0.4 0.1 0.6
>1year after reporting date 0.2 29 0.1 3.2
0.3 3.3 0.2 3.8
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Section 2: Assets and liabilities
Notes to the Group financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

2.9 Trade and other payables

Financialliabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

Trade payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. In accordance with market practice,

certain balances with clients, Stock Exchange member firms and other counterparties are included as creditors.

Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 433.9 3274
Social security and other taxes 7.3 87
Other payables 19.6 14.1
460.8 350.2

Non-financial liabilities
Accruals 23.8 13.6
Deferredincome 1.1 0.9
485.7 364.7

In accordance with market practice, certain balances with clients, Stock Exchange member firms and other counterparties totalling
£425.6 million (2018: £324.6 million) are included in trade payables, similarly to the treatment of trade receivables. As stated in note 2.6
above, where we have alegal right of offset and the ability and intention to settle net, trade payable balances have been presented net.

Other payables principally comprise amounts owed to staff as a bonus and rebates due to the regulated funds operated by the Group.
Accruals and deferred income principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and receipts from clients, where cashiis

received in advance for certain services

2.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors' best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting period, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Provisions are recognised for future committed property lease payments when the Group receives no benefit from the property through
continuing usage and future receipts from any sub-letting arrangements are not in excess of the Group's future committed payments.

£m
Included within non-current liabilities — property costs
At 1July 2017 0.6
Charged during the year 0.1
At 30 June 2018 0.7
Charged during the year =
At 30 June 2019 0.7

The provision on property-related costs represents the Group's future committed lease payments on non-cancellable leases and other
contractual obligations that arise on the surrendering of operating leases, in relation to the head office in Bristol. These property provisions

are not expected to be fully utilised until 2026.
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Section 3: Equity
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Attributable to the owners of the Parent

(%]
Shares Non- .;-1’:
Share heldby EBT EBT Retained controlling Total »
capital reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity o
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m 8
At 30 June 2017 1.9 (7.0) 79 304.1 306.9 0.8 307.7 )
Total comprehensive income! - - - 236.3 236.3 0.4 236.7
Employee Benefit Trust
Shares soldin the year - 121 - - 12.1 - 12.1
Shares acquired inthe year - (8.6) - - (8.6) - (8.6)
HL EBT share sale - - (4.9) - (4.4) - (4.4)
Reserve transfer on exercise
of share options - - 2.7 (27) - - -
Employee share option scheme
Share-based payments expense - - - 35 3.5 - 3.5
Current tax effect of share-based
payments (note 1.8) - - - 11 1.1 - 1.1
Deferred tax effect of share-based o
payments (note 1.8) - - - 16 1.6 - 1.6 S
Dividend paid (note 3.2) - - - (144.5) (144.5) - (144.5) §
At 30 June 2018 19 (3.5) 6.2 399.4 404.0 12 405.2 ®
Total comprehensive income! - - - 2474 247.4 0.2 247.6
Employee Benefit Trust
Shares soldinthe year - 151 - - 15.1 - 15.1
Shares acquiredin the year - (15.0) - - (15.0) - (15.0)
HL EBT share sale - - (7.4) - (7.4) - (7.4)
Reserve transfer on exercise
of share options - - 2.6 (2.6) - - -
Employee share option scheme
Share-based payments expense - - - 3.8 3.8 - 3.8
Current tax effect of share-based
payments (note 1.8) - - - 1.0 1.0 - 1.0
Deferred tax effect of share-based
payments (note 1.8) - - - (0.6) (0.6) - (0.6)
Dividend paid (note 3.2) - - - (190.5) (190.5) - (190.5)
At 30 June 2019 19 (3.4) 15 4579 457.9 14 459.3

1 Totalcomprehensiveincome includes profit after tax for the year and are the same figure.
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Section 3: Equity
Notes to the Group financial statements
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

3.1 Share capital

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Authorised: 525,000,000 (2018: 525,000,000) ordinary shares of 0.4p each 2.1 2.1
Issued and fully paid: ordinary shares of 0.4p each 1.9 19
Shares Shares

Issued and fully paid: number of ordinary shares of 0.4p each 474,318,625 474,318,625

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

The shares held by the EBT reserve represents the cost of shares in Hargreaves Lansdown plc purchased in the market and held by the
Hargreaves Lansdown EBT to satisfy options under the Group's share option schemes.

The EBT reserve represents the cumulative gain on disposal of investments held by the HL EBT. The reserve is not distributable by the
Company as the assets and liabilities of the EBT are subject to management by the Trustees in accordance with the EBT trust deed.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein.
Non-controlling interests consist of the minority's proportion of the net fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired at the date of the
original business combination and the non-controlling interest's change in equity since that date. The non-controlling interest represents
a22% shareholding in FundsLibrary Limited and a 7.5% shareholding in Hargreaves Lansdown Savings Limited, which are both subsidiaries
of the Company.

3.2 Dividends

Dividend recognition
Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised in the accounting period in which the dividends are declared and
paid, or, if earlier, in the accounting period when the dividend is approved by the Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

2018 final dividend of 22.1p (2017 second interim dividend: 20.4p) per share 104.7 96.7
2018 special dividend of 7.8p (2017: nil) per share 37.0 -
2019 interim dividend of 10.3p (2018: 10.1p) per share 48.8 47.8
Total dividends paid during the year 190.5 144.5

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors declared a final ordinary dividend of 23.4 pence per share and a special dividend of
8.3 pence per share payable on 18 October 2019 to shareholders on the register on 27 September 2019. Dividends are required to be
recognisedin the financial statements when paid, and accordingly the declared dividend amounts are not recognised in these financial
statements, but willbe included in the 2020 financial statements as follows:

£m
2019 final dividend of 23.4p (2018 final dividend: 22.1p) per share 110.9
2019 special dividend of 8.3p (2018 special dividend: 7.8p) per share 39.3
Total dividends 150.2

The payment of these dividends will not have any tax consequences for the Group.

Under anarrangement dated 30 June 1997, the Hargreaves Lansdown Employee Benefit Trust, which held the following number of ordinary
sharesin Hargreaves Lansdown plc at the date shown, has agreed to waive all dividends.

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

No. of shares No. of shares

Number of shares held by the Hargreaves Lansdown Employee Benefit Trust 387,684 413,604
Representing % of called-up share capital 0.08% 0.09%
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Section 4: Consolidated statement of cash flows
Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018 g
Note £m £m é"
Net cash from operating activities )
Profit for the year after tax 247.6 236.7 "g‘>
Adjustments for: ~+
Income tax expense 58.2 557
Depreciation of plant and equipment 5.4 4.4
Amortisation of intangible assets 4.6 3.4
Share-based payment expense 3.9 3.6
Increase in provisions = 01
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 319.7 303.9
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (128.4) 437
Increase/(decrease) in payables 121.0 (46.9)
Cash generated from operations 312.3 300.7
Income tax paid (50.8) (55.9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 261.5 244.8 @
Investing activities g
(Increase)/decrease in term deposits 7.0 (42.0) §
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7.6) (6.5) ®
Purchase of intangible assets (9.5) (9.6)
Proceeds on disposal of investments 0.4 2.6
Net cash used ininvesting activities (9.7) (55.5)
Financing activities
Purchase of own sharesin EBT (15.0) (8.6)
Proceeds on sale of own sharesin EBT 7.7 7.7
Dividends paid to owners of the parent (190.5) (144.5)
Net cash used in financing activities (197.8) (145.4)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 54.0 439
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 27 125.3 81.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (including restricted cash) 27 179.3 1253
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Section 5: Other notes
Notes to the Group financial statements
Other

51 Generalinformation

Hargreaves Lansdown plc (the "Company" and ultimate parent of the Group) is a company incorporated and domiciled in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 whose shares are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange. The address of the registered
office is One College Square South, Anchor Road, Bristol BS15HL, United Kingdom. The nature of the Group's operations and its principal
activities are set outin the Operating and Financial Review as part of the Strategic Report.

These financial statements are presented in millions of pounds sterling (Em) which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Hargreaves Lansdown plc have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union (EU), and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements are prepared ona going
concern basis as discussed on page 95.

The financial statements have been streamlined and presented to allow users to better understand the primary statements and the
related balances that make them up. It is our aim to ensure that the information provided is pertinent and indicates the balances of most
importance, while ensuring conformity with IFRS. In order to do this, we have aligned the notes to the financial statements with the
relevant primary statements; where there is an associated accounting policy, it is clearly denoted by a box presented at the beginning

of the note.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.2.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and subsidiary undertakings controlled

by the Group made up to 30 June 2019. The Group controls a subsidiary when it has power over aninvestee, is exposed, or has rights,

to variable returns fromits involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
The Group reassesses whether it controls a subsidiary when facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
elements of control.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group. Allintra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquired entity. The acquired entity's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognitionunder IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquired entity's identifiable net assets.

Application of new standards
In the current year, the following new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted but do not materially affect
the amountsreported or the accounting policies in these financial statements other than as described below:

IFRS 9

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ and the related amendments to other IFRS standards that are
applicable for the first time for financial periods beginning on or from 1 January 2018. The standard replaces IAS 39 'Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement'. The adoption of IFRS 9 does not require the Group to restate prior periods. As a result, no adjustments
have been made to openingreserves as at the date of initial application. The date of initial application was 1 July 2018 and the financial
instruments of the Group that continue to be recognised at this date have been classified in accordance with the requirements of

the standard.

The Group has also adopted the amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' that apply for the year ended 30 June 2019.

IFRS 9introduces new requirements for:
a) The classification and measurement of financial assets;
b) Impairment of financial assets;

c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities; and

d) Disclosures in relation to the initial application of IFRS 9.
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a) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Allrecognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be measured subsequently at amortised cost or fair
value on the basis of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

The directors of the Company have assessed the financial assets of the Group that continued to be held as at 1 July 2018 based on the
circumstances at that date. The conclusions arrived at in relation to the initial application of IFRS 9 have the followingimpact on the Group's
financial assets:

« The Group'sinvestments in equity instruments that are held for trading will not be subject to a change in measurement; those
instruments were and continue to be measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL);

« Financial assets held asloans and receivables under IAS 39 that were measured at amortised cost will continue to be measured at
amortised costunder IFRS 9 as they are held within the business model to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist
solely of repayments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

« Derivative financialinstruments held are also not subject to a change in measurement and continue to be held and measured at FVTPL.

These classifications have had no impact on the Group's financial position, profit or loss, other comprehensive income or total
comprehensive income.

b) Impairment of financial assets

Impairment measurement under IFRS 9 requires an assessment to be made of the expected credit losses on financial instruments.
This does not apply to equity instruments, but does apply to the trade and other receivables balances. IFRS 9 requires the Group to
measure the loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the asset has experienced significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition.

This requires directors of the Company to assess the expected increases in credit risk for the financial instruments held by the Group in
a given financial year. In relation to financial assets upon which the Group is required to assess losses, the following have been considered:
« Trade andotherreceivables; and

« Cashandcash equivalents.

Equity investments classified and measured at FVTPL are not subject to impairment as they are all Level 1investments valued based
onthe latest available market price.

The application of IFRS 9 has not led to a change in the level of impairment recognised by the Group.

Alarge proportion of the receivables of the Group are short term and mostly in relation to counterparty balances. With these types

of balances, inthe event of the failure by one party to complete the transaction, there are equal and opposite transactions that will be
cancelled or rearranged to cover potential losses. Where there are outstanding receivables for fees from customers, those customers are
either institutions with high credit ratings and low chances of default or they are individuals with asset balances that exceed the value of the
receivable. Inthe event paymentis not received from individuals there is recourse to sell assets to cover any debts. As aresult the
expectation of loss in relation to these balances is not material.

Financial assets, both receivables and cash and cash equivalents, for which there is no collateral of this type or for which credit ratings are
not available are addressed using the simplified approach. Given the immaterial nature of the balances over which this approach has been
applied it has not had an effect on the financial statements in the current or prior year.
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Section 5: Other notes
Notes to the Group financial statements
Other

51 Generalinformation continued

c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Group that are in the scope of IFRS 9 have not been subject to any change in classification or measurement,
subsequently trade and other payables previously measured at amortised cost will continue to be measured in that way. Derivative financial
instrument liabilities willbe measured at FVTPL as with the Derivative assets.

d) Disclosuresinrelation to the initial application of IFRS 9

There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the Group had previously designated as at FVTPL under IAS 39 that were subject
toreclassification or which the Group has elected to reclassify upon the application of IFRS 9. There were no financial assets or financial
liabilities which the Group has elected to designate as at FVTPL at the date of initial application of IFRS 9.

No adjustments have been made to prior year comparatives as a result of the adoption of IFRS 9.

IFRS 15

Inthe current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' for the first time and is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 introduces a five step approach to revenue recognition and replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’.
A detailed assessment of all revenue streams, using the five step model outlined in the standard, has been undertaken, considering those
steps as outlined by the standard:

« |dentifying the contract with a customer;

« |dentifying the performance obligations in the contract;

» Determining the transaction price;

» Allocating the transaction price to separate performance obligations; and
« Recognising revenue as the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group has applied the modified approach to implementation of IFRS 15 and have taken the practical expedient afforded under

IFRS 15:20 to not restate any matters in relation to completed contracts or contracts that have been modified prior to the date of initial
application. There has been no consideration received in respect of obligations that expired in previous periods. Transaction price can
accurately be determined, for all contracts, with obligations being realised equally over the course of the contract where the transaction
is not performedimmediately.

There has been no material change in the accounting policies in relation to revenue as a result of the implementation of IFRS 15, meaning
that there was noimpact on adoption of the standard, with all of the policies in place under IAS 18 satisfying the requirements under IFRS
15, with one exception. Inline with IFRS 15, cash incentives paid to clients, who transferred to the platform for at least 12 months, have been
considered to be areductionin revenue earned from those clients, whereas previously these incentives were considered an operating cost.
These incentives willnow be recognised over a period of 12 months, being the period over which the incentive must be earned. As a result,
the netimpact to the Consolidated Income Statement has been to increase operating profit by £0.9 million, within the year, after the
application of the new standard, IFRS 15, than previously would have been recognised under IAS 18. This has not impacted amounts stated
in prior periods, as contracts were considered to be complete at the end of the prior period.

Other standards and amendments adopted this year have had no impact and are outlined below:
« Annualimprovements to IFRS 2014-2017 cycle:
— Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'
+ Amendmentto IFRS 2, 'Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions';
« Amendments to|AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’;

« IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’, which addresses how to determine the date of a transaction for
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use oninitial recognition of an asset, expense or income, when paid or received in advance
for a transaction in foreign currency.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not yet been applied
inthese financial statements were inissue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU):

— IFRS 16 'Leases'’ — Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
— IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' between an Investor andits Associate or Joint Venture

— Amendment to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' — Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2018 Cycle

— Amendments to IFRS 9 'Prepayment Features with — IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty of Income Tax Treatments'

Negative Compensation’

No early adoption of accounting standards has occurred for the years ended 30 June 2019 or 30 June 2018.
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Management have assessed the new and impending standards, as outlined above, and have outlined the impacts as follows:

IFRS 16

IFRS 16 issued in January 2016, changes the way leases are treated and removes the concepts of finance leases and operating leases.
The adoption of IFRS 16 from 1 July 2019 will lead to the recognition of a right of use asset and corresponding liability for each of the
agreements we have on our offices, due to the requirement under the standard to capitalise lease commitments. This standard replaces
the IAS 17 distinction between "operating” and "finance" leases for lessees.

The Group has four leases impacted by the adoption of IFRS 16, all over property, at the end of the period, with remaining commitments

of £23.9 million, at 30 June 2019. In addition the Group has one other lease that is too short to be considererd under IFRS 16. The current
proposed adoption will see the Group recognise material assets in the region of £21.0m and liabilities of £20.0m, leading to an immaterial
netimpact on the balance sheet. Key judgements have been made inrelation to the appropriate discount rate usedin the application

of IFRS 16, although none of the judgements would lead to a material change in the amounts recognised on adoption of the standard.

The Group has chosen to apply the simplified approach and has taken a prospective approach to the valuation of the right-of-use assets as
at the transition date.

IFRS 16 will be effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019. As at the date of this report, the implementation of IFRS 16
has been completed for the 2020 financial year, with the appropriate impacts considered for the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statement of Financial Position being in agreement with the values set out above.

Accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profitandloss. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out at the start of each note to which they relate.

Accounting policies as shown in these notes have been consistently applied throughout the current and prior financial year.

5.2 Key sources of judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of revenues, expenses, assets andliabilities and the disclosure of contingentliabilities. If in the future such estimates and assumptions,
which are based on management's best judgement at the date of preparation of the financial statements, deviate from actual
circumstances, the original estimates and assumptions will be modified as appropriate in the period in which the circumstances change.
There are no assumptions made about the future, or any other major sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

5.3 Commitments

Operating lease commitments —as lessee

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating lease recognised as an expense in the year 3.4 2.9
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum
lease payments under the remaining term of non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due
as follows:
Within one year 3.7 37
Inthe second to fifth years inclusive 14.3 14.8
After five years 5.9 10.1
Total minimum lease payments 23.9 28.6

Operatinglease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties. The Group leases various offices under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation values and renewal rights.

Capital commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had capital commitments of £0.1 million (2018: £0.1 million) for IT equipment.
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5.4 Subsidiaries

Alist of the investments in subsidiaries included in the consolidated results of Hargreaves Lansdown plcis shownin note 6.4 to the Parent
Company financial statements. Also included in the Group Consolidated Financial Statements are "The Hargreaves Lansdown Employee
Benefit Trust", "The Hargreaves Lansdown plc SIP Trust".

5.5 Events after the reporting period

On7 August 2019 the Directors proposed a final ordinary dividend payment of 23.4 pence per ordinary share and a special dividend
of 8.3 pence per share, payable on 18 October 2019 to all shareholders on the register at the close of business on 27 September 2019
as detailed in note 3.2.

5.6 Related party transactions

The Company has arelated party relationship with its subsidiaries, its Directors and members of the Executive Committee (the "key
management personnel”). Transactions between the Company and its key management personnel are disclosed below. Details of
transactions between the Company and other related parties are also disclosed below.

Trading transactions
The Company enteredinto the following transactions with Directors within the Hargreaves Lansdown Group and related parties who
are not members of the Group:

During the years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Company has been party to a lease with Peter Hargreaves, a significant
shareholder and former Director, for rental of the old head office premises at Kendal House. A 10 year lease was signed on 6 April 2011 for a
rental of part of the building, to be used for a small number of staff and for disaster recovery purposes at a market rate rent of £0.1 million
per annum. No amount was outstanding at either year end.

Throughout the year, the non-controllinginterest in both HL Savings Limited and FundsLibrary Limited has been held by Stuart Louden,
an employee of the Group. There has been no change in the holdings in the current period — see note 6.4 for further details.

During the years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Group has provided arange of investment services in the normal course
of business to shareholders on normal third-party business terms. Directors and staff are eligible for a slight discount on some of the
services provided.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group, being those personnel who were either amember of the Board of

a Group company or amember of the Executive Committee during the relevant year shown below, is set out below in aggregate for each
of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 5.9 9.0
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.2
Share-based payments 2.3 17
8.3 10.9
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In addition to the amounts above, eight key management personnel (2018: eight) received gains of £1.6 million (2018: £1.9 million) as a ”
result of exercising share options. During the year, awards were made under executive option schemes for 10 key management personnel §
(2018:10). S
(2]
Included within the previous table are the following amounts paid to Directors of the Company who served during the relevant year. ‘.g
Fulldetails of Directors' remuneration, including numbers of shares exercised, are shown in the Directors' remuneration report. &
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 1.4 4.0
Share-based payments 0.9 0.5
283 45
In addition to the amounts above, Directors of the Company received gains of £0.2 million relating to the exercise of share options
(2018: £0.2 million).
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018 [}
Q
£m £m 5
Emoluments of the highest paid Director 0.6* 2.4 )
No. No.
Number of Directors who exercised share options during the year fl 1
1 1

Number of Directors who were members of money purchase pension schemes

1 The highest paid Director was the Chief Executive Officer and full details of his emoluments can be found in the audited 'Remuneration payable' table in the Directors'
remunerationreport.

Any amounts outstanding with related parties are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or receivedin
respect of amounts outstanding. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts inrespect of the amounts owed by the related parties.
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Financialinstruments include both assets and liabilities. Financial assets principally comprise trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, current asset listed investments and derivative financial instruments. Financial liabilities comprise certain provisions,
trade and other payables, and derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value Financial assets Financial liabilities measured
At30June through profitand loss atamortised cost atamortised cost Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Investments:
Equity investments 1.1 15 = - = - 1.1 15
Derivative financial instruments 0.1 0.2 - - - - 0.1 0.2
Trade and otherreceivables:
Trade receivables - - 461.4 348.5 - - 461.4 348.5
Other receivables - - 4.5 4.2 - - 4.5 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents = - 179.3 125.3 ) - 179.3 125.3
Term deposits - - 215.0 222.0 - - 215.0 222.0
Total financial assets 1.2 17 860.2 700.0 - - 861.4 7017
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 0.1 - - - - - 01
Trade payables = - = - 433.9 3274 433.9 3274
Other payables - - - - 26.9 22.8 26.9 22.8
Total financial liabilities - 0.1 - - 460.8 350.2 460.8 350.3
Fair value hierarchy
The table below sets out the classifications of each class of financial asset and liability and their fair values.
Level 2
Levell  Directly observable Level3
Quoted prices marketinputs Inputs not based
for similar otherthan onobservable
instruments Levellinputs market data Total
£m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1.1 - - 1.1
Trading derivatives:
Foreign exchange Assets = 0.1 = 0.1
Foreign exchange Liabilities - - - -
1.1 0.1 - 1.2
At 30 June 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 - - 15
Trading derivatives:
Foreign exchange Assets - 0.2 - 0.2
Foreign exchange Liabilities - (0.1) - (0.1)
15 0.1 - 16

There were no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 assets during the year (2018: £nil).
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

Instrumentsincludedin Level 1 comprise primarily equity investments and fund units entered into on a counterparty basis. As such thereis
no recurring valuation of financial instruments between reporting periods.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where itis available and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2. The valuation technigues employed in the valuation of over-the-counter derivatives rely on market forward rates as quoted at
the end of the period used as inputs into an appropriate pricing model.
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Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Financial risk management

The main risks arising from financial instruments are market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk. Each of these risks is discussed in detail below.

The Group monitors financial risks on a consolidated basis. Hargreaves Lansdown's financial risk management is based upon sound
economic objectives and good corporate practice. No hedging transactions have taken place during the years presented. The Group
has designed a framework to manage the risks of its business and to ensure that the Directors have in place risk management practices
appropriate to alisted company. The management of risk within the Group is governed by the Board.

Market risk

« Interestraterisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group will sustain losses from adverse movements in rates associated with interest-bearing assets.
Thereis an exposure tointerest rates on banking deposits held in the ordinary course of business. At 30 June 2019, the value of financial
instruments on the Group Statement of Financial Position exposed to interest rate risk was £394.3 million (2018: £347.3 million) comprising
cash, cash equivalents and term deposits.

Impact of change ininterest rates on finance income in the Consolidated Income Statement.

2019 2018

£m £m

+50bps (0.5%) 1.9 0.5
-50bps (-0.5%) (1.9) (0.5)

This assumes the interestincome has been earned evenly over the period and that rates have remained constant over the period.

This exposure is continually monitored to ensure that the Group is maximising its interest earning potential within accepted liquidity and
credit constraints. The Group has no external borrowings and as such is not exposed to interest rate or refinancing risk on borrowings.
Cash at bank, including restricted cash, earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Term deposits are also made
for varying periods of between one day and 13 months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earninterest
at the respective fixed-term deposit rates.

Giventhat a source of revenue is based on the value of client cash under administration, the Group has anindirect exposure to interest rate
risk on cash balances held for clients, the balance of which was £10,822 million at 30 June 2019 (2018: £9,645 million). These amounts are not
includedin the Group statement of financial position.

« Foreign exchange translation and transaction risk

Foreign currency riskis the risk that the Group will sustain losses through adverse movements in currency exchange rates. With substantially
allof the Group's businesses currently operating within the UK, and therefore with minimal net assets and transactions of the Group
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange translation or transaction risk and as such
does not hedge any foreign current assets or liabilities. The Group deals in foreign currencies on a matched basis on behalf of clients,
limiting foreign exchange exposure.

« Pricerisk

Priceriskis the risk that a decline in the value of assets adversely impacts on the profitability of the Group as a result of an asset not
meetingits expected value. The Group is exposed to price risk oninvestments, in corporate entities, held on the Group statement of
financial position. At 30 June 2019, the fair value of investments recognised on the Group statement of financial position was £1.1 million
(2018: £1.5 million). A 20% move in equity prices, in isolation, would have an impact of £0.2 million (2018: £0.3 million).

As amain source of revenue is based on the value of client assets under administration, the Group has an indirect exposure to price risk
oninvestments held on behalf of clients. These assets are not on the Group statement of financial position. The risk of lower revenues

is partially mitigated by asset class diversification. The Group does not hedge its revenue exposure to movements in the value of client

assets arising from these risks, and so the interests of the Group are aligned to those of its clients.

In addition, the Group acts as a private clientinvestment manager, unit trust manager and agency stockbroker on a matched basis soits
exposure to market price movements in this capacity is limited to when there is a trade mismatch or error, or if one matched counterparty
fails to fulfil its obligations. The impact of these risks is minimised by limits and monitoring controls.
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5.7 Financial instruments continued

Liquidity risk

The Groupis exposed to liquidity risk, namely the risk that it may be unable to meetits payment obligations as they fall due. The Group
is highly cash generative and holds significant liquid assets. The Group actively maintains a proportion of cash balances on short-term
deposit to ensure that the Group has sufficient available funds for operations.

The table below analyses the maturities of the undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liabilities of the Group based on the remaining
period to the contractual maturity date at the end of the reporting period.

At 30 June 2019 At30June 2018
0-3months 3-12months  Overlyear Total 0-3months  3-12months Over lyear Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables:
Trade payables 433.9 = = 433.9 3274 - - 327.4
Other payables 19.5 5.0 2.4 26.9 21.7 - 11 22.8
Derivative liabilities at fair value

through profitand loss - - - - 01 - - 01
453.4 5.0 2.4 460.8 349.2 - 11 350.3

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

The Group is exposed to credit risk from counterparties to securities transactions during the period between the trade date and the
ultimate settlement date if the counterparty fails either to deliver securities or to make payment. Settlement risk is substantially mitigated
as aresult of the delivery versus payment mechanism whereby if a counterparty fails to make payment the securities would not be
delivered to the counterparty. Therefore the risk exposure is to an adverse movement in market prices between the time of trade and
settlement. Conversely, if a counterparty fails to deliver securities, no payment would be made.

The trade receivables presented in the statement of financial position are net of expected credit losses.

Alsoincluded within trade and other receivables in the statement of financial position are term deposits, these are deposits with UK
licensed banks for a period of three months or greater, where the Group does not have immediate recall on the cash. The maximum
amount of time that these deposits are outstanding at year end is 13 months.

Cashis held with UK licensed banks. The credit risk on liquid funds is minimised by only depositing with UK-regulated banks and the
Group takes a conservative approach to treasury management, carrying out regular reviews of all its banks' and custodians' credit ratings.

As atthe end of the reporting period, no financial assets were individually determined to be impaired.

The following table discloses the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk on financial assets.

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m £m
Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash) 179.3 125.3
Trade and other receivables 465.9 3527
Term deposits 215.0 222.0

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financialinvestments 1.1 15
Derivative financial assets 0.1 0.2
861.4 701.7
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The following table contains an analysis of financial assets that are past due but notimpaired at the end of the reporting period. An asset

is past due when the counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. §
o
The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses for receivables, allowing the use of lifetime expectedloss &
provisions to be made. To determine expected creditlosses financial assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, ‘13
being the number of days past due. &
Neither
impaired nor 0-3months 3-6 months 6-12months Over 12 months
pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2019
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 452.2 6.0 16 0.8 0.8 461.4
Otherreceivables 4.5 - - - - 4.5
Term deposits 215.0 - - - - 215.0
Derivative assets 01 - - - - 0.1
671.8 6.0 16 0.8 0.8 681.0 o
Held-for-trading assets 11 - - - - 1.1 3
672.9 6.0 16 0.8 0.8 682.1 §
At 30 June 2018
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 339.9 6.0 11 10 0.5 348.5
Other receivables 4.2 - - - - 4.2
Term deposits 222.0 - - - - 222.0
Derivative assets 0.2 - - - - 0.2
566.3 6.0 11 10 0.5 574.9
Held-for-trading assets 1.5 - - - - 1.5
567.8 6.0 11 10 06 576.4

During the year, the Group has provided £nil (2018: £nil) in respect of receivables that are not expected to be recovered. At the end of
the reporting period, £0.1 million (2018: £0.2 million) of receivables are impaired, all of which have been provided for in full. As a result,
the carryingamount of impaired receivables is £nil (2018: £nil).

The expectedlossin relation to receivables is considered to be immaterial, due to the short-term nature of the receivable balance and
the smallvalue of assets that are outstanding for long periods, without any potential recourse allowing the Group to reclaim the balance.

The following table shows the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due norimpaired using the following
counterparty grading:

« Financialinstitutions
Inrespect of trade receivables, £154.9 million (2018: £103.8 million) is due from financial institutions regulated by the FCA in the course
of settlement as a result of daily trading and £3.9 million (2018: £3.7 million) relates to revenue items due from financial institutions
regulated by the FCA.

+ Individuals
Inrespect of trade receivables, the balance is related to amounts due from individual clients in the course of settlement as aresult
of daily trading.
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5.7 Financial instruments continued

The table below shows the credit category of financial assets that are neither past due norimpaired.

Financial Corporate

institutions clients Individuals Total
£m £m £m £m

At 30 June 2019
Trade receivables 1549 0.2 2971 452.2
Other receivables 4.5 - - 4.5
Term deposits 215.0 - - 215.0
Derivative assets - - 01 0.1
Held-for-trading assets 11 - - 1.1
3755 0.2 297.2 672.9

At 30 June 2018
Trade receivables 107.4 0.1 232.4 339.9
Other receivables 4.2 - - 4.2
Term deposits 222.0 - - 222.0
Derivative assets - - 0.2 0.2
Held-for-trading assets 15 - - 1.5
3351 0.1 232.6 567.8

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are i) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; i) to maintain a strong capital base and utilise it efficiently to
support the development of its business andiii) to comply with the regulatory capital requirements set by the FCA. Capital adequacy

and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by the Group's management and Board.

Regulatory capital is determined in accordance with the requirements of the Capital Requirements Directive IV prescribed in the UK by
the FCA. The Directive requires continual assessment of the Group's risks in order to ensure that the higher of Pillar 1 (Minimum Capital
Requirements) and Pillar 2 (Supervisory Review) requirements is met.

Pillar Timposes a minimum capital requirement on investment firms which is calculated as the higher of the sum of the credit and market
risk capital requirements and the fixed overheads requirement (FOR). The FOR equates to 25% of the fixed overheads reported in the most
recent audited financial statements.

Pillar 2 requires investment firms to assess firm-specific risks not covered by the formulaic requirements of Pillar 1, the objective of this
being to ensure that investment firms have adequate capital to enable them to manage their risks. The Group completes its assessment
of regulatory capital requirements using its ICAAP under Pillar 2, which is a forward looking exercise that includes stress testing on major
risks, such as a significant market downturn, and identifying mitigating action.

As required by the FCA, Hargreaves Lansdown holds capital based on a multiple of Pillar 1 and maintains a significant surplus over this
requirement at all times.

The Group manages its retained earnings and share capital which total £459.8 million as at 30 June 2019 (2018: £401.3 million). Surplus
regulatory capital was maintained throughout the year at both a consolidated Group level, as well as at an individual regulated entity level.
Under the requirements of Pillar 3 (Disclosure), the Group is required to disclose regulatory capital information, and has done so by making
the disclosures available in the Group's website at https://www.hl.co.uk/investor-relations/key-financial-data/pillar-3-disclosures2.
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5.8 Interestin unconsolidated structured entities

The Group has determined that the investment funds it manages are structured entities. Structured entities include entities that

are designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when the relevant
activities are directed by means of a contractual relationship. As the Group directs the investing activities of the 10 Hargreaves Lansdown
Multi-Manager funds and the three Hargreaves Lansdown Select funds, through its investment management agreements with them,

it considers them to be structured entities. The Group holds interests in these funds through the receipt of management fees, together
with directinvestments in the entities. Investments in the funds have been designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

podasdibajens

The entities are entirely funded by the capital contributions associated with the purchase of units in the funds by unitholders and through
return oninvestments. None of the entities have issued debt or has borrowings and none are reliant on the Group for any funding.

The Group does not sponsor any of the structured entities and there are no guarantees or commitments.

Where the Group has an equity holding in the funds, the maximum exposure to loss relates to future management fees should the market
value of the funds decrease, plus the fair value of the Group's investment in that fund.

Structured entities with direct holdings

Directinvestments in structured entities relate to box positions held by Hargreaves Lansdown Fund Managers Ltd. and through portfolios
held in Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Limited that mimic holdings in the Portfolio Management Service and HL Portfolio+.
No investments exist as at 30 June 2019 due to the change in pricing methodology in the year, to a single price model, eliminating the box
profits and associated investment holdings.

ddUBUIDA0D

The table below shows the details of unconsolidated structured entities in which the Group has direct holdings as at 30 June 2019 and
30 June 2018.

Annual

Annual management

Net AUM Financial assets management chargereceivable

Number of funds atFVTPL charge asat30June

Type of funds £m £m £m £m

2019 Unit Trust 13 9,385.1 - 68.3 6.2
2018 Unit Trust 12 9,559.4 0.2 67.1 6.0
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At30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 6.4 51.7 43.8
51.7 43.8
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6.5 242.3 2477
Cash and cash equivalents 6.6 22.5 15.2
Current tax asset 1.0 .
265.8 262.9
Total assets 317.5 306.7
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 67 43.2 45.2
43.2 452
Net current assets 222.6 2177
Total liabilities 43.2 45.2
Net assets 274.3 261.5
EQUITY
Share capital 6.9 1.9 19
Retained earnings 6.9 272.4 259.6
Total equity 274.3 261.5

The Company recorded a profit for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 of £199.4 million (2018: £199.2 million).

The financial statements of Hargreaves Lansdown plc, registered number 02122142, on pages 138 to 144, were approved by the Board
and authorised forissue on 7 August 2019.

Philip Johnson
Chief Financial Officer
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Parent company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Retained Total

Share capital earnings equity %
£m £m £m o
[(e}
At1July 2017 19 201.4 203.3 a
Profit and total comprehensive income - 199.2 199.2 "gb
Increase ininvestmentin subsidiaries - 3.5 3.5 &
Dividend paid - (144.5) (144.5)
At 30 June 2018 19 259.6 261.5
Profit and total comprehensive income - 199.4 199.4
Increase ininvestmentin subsidiaries - 39 3.9
Dividend paid - (190.5) (190.5)
At 30 June 2019 19 272.4 274.3
Details of the Company's dividends are as set outin note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements.
©
Q
8
3
3
®
Parent company statement of cash flows
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
Note £m £m
Net cash from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 6.8 209.8 242.3
Net cash from operating activities 209.8 242.3
Investing activities
Increase in term deposits (8.0) (92.0)
Purchase of investment in subsidiary (4.0) (6.0
Net cash used ininvesting activities (12.0) (98.0)
Financing activities
Dividends paid to owners of the parent (190.5) (144.5)
Net cash used in financing activities (190.5) (144.5)
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6.6 7.3 (0.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6.6 15.2 15.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6.6 22.5 15.2
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6.1 Generalinformation

Hargreaves Lansdown plc (the "Company") is a company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act
2006 whose shares are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange. The address of the registered office is One College Square South,
Anchor Road, Bristol BS15HL, United Kingdom. The Company is the parent company of the Group, and the nature of the Group's
operations and its principal activities are set outin the Operating and Financial Review.

The Company financial statements are presented in millions of pounds sterling which is the currency of the primary economic
environmentin which the Company operates.

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union (EU), and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The Company financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors believe that they have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 12 months from the date the financial statements
are adopted.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout
the current and prior financial year.

6.2 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies of the Company are the same as those of the Group which are set out in the relevant notes to the consolidated
financial statements, except that it has no policy in respect of consolidation and investments in subsidiaries are carried at historical cost,
less any provisions forimpairment.

6.3 Profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no income statement or statement of comprehensive income is presented
for the Company. The Company's profit after tax for the year was £199.4 million (2018: £199.2 million).

The Auditors' remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 1.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

140 = Contents Hargreaves Lansdown / Reportand Financial Statements 2019



6.4 Investmentin subsidiaries ¢
Q
Year ended Year ended é.
30June 2019 30June 2018 3
£m £m 'g
Investments in subsidiaries -
At beginning of year 43.8 34.2
Increase ininvestmentin subsidiaries 7.9 9.6
Atend of year 51.7 438
Comprising:
Non-currentinvestments —Investments in subsidiaries valued at cost less impairment 51.7 43.8
Alist of the investments in subsidiaries is shown below, along with their country of incorporation and principal activity. Investmentsin
subsidiaries are shown at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid. Unless otherwise disclosed below, all subsidiaries have one
ordinary class of share only and all shares are held by Hargreaves Lansdown plc.
Subsidiary Country of Company purpose/ Percentage Voting
company name incorporation function ownership rights g)
and principal s
Hargreaves Lansdown Advisory Services Limited UK? Advisory services 100% 100% g
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Limited UK? Unit trust and equity broking, 100% 100% 3

investment fund management,
life and pensions consultancy

Hargreaves Lansdown Fund Managers Ltd. UK* Unit trust management 100% 100%
FundsLibrary Limited (previously Library Information ~ UK! Data provider 78% 78%
Services Limited)

Hargreaves Lansdown Stockbrokers Ltd UK? Trading company* 100% 100%
Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited (100% UK Nominee services 100% 100%

shares held by Hargreaves Lansdown Asset
Management Limited)

Hargreaves Lansdown Insurance Brokers Limited UK Dormant company* 100% 100%

Hargreaves Lansdown Investment Management UK* Dormant company* 100% 100%

Limited (100% shares held by Hargreaves Lansdown

Fund Managers Ltd)

Hargreaves Lansdown Savings Limited UK? Cash services 92.5%—Ordinary  92.5%
100%~Class A

Hargreaves Lansdown Savings (Nominees) Limited UK* Nominee services* 92.5% 100%

(100% shares held by Hargreaves Lansdown

Savings Limited)

Hargreaves Lansdown Pensions Limited UK* Dormant company* 100% 100%

(100% shares held by Hargreaves Lansdown Advisory
Services Limited)

Hargreaves Lansdown Pensions Trustees Limited UK? Trustee of the HL SIPP* 100% 100%
Hargreaves Lansdown EBT Trustees Limited UK Trustee of the Employee Benefit Trust’ 100% 100%
Hargreaves Lansdown Trustee Company Limited UK? Trustee of the Share Incentive Plan’ 100% 100%
HL TechSp.Z20.0O Poland? Service Company 100% 100%

(100% shares held by Hargreaves Lansdown Asset
Management Limited)

* Exempt from the requirements to prepare, file and audit individual financial statements under s394A and s448A of Companies Act 2006.
t Exempt from the requirement for audit under s479A of the Companies Act 2006.

1 Registeredaddress: One College Square South, Anchor Road, Bristol BST5HL.

2 Registered address: Pl. Europejski 1, Warsaw, 00-844, Poland.
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Section 6: Company financial statements
Notes to the Company financial statements

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m £m
Financial assets
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries and EBT 26.6 39.9
Term deposits 215.0 207.0
241.6 246.9
Non-financial assets
Prepayments 0.7 0.8
242.3 2477
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
Company cash and cash equivalent balances 22.5 15.2

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and institutional cash funds with near-instant access.

No disclosures for financial instruments have been made in respect of the Company as the only significant financialinstruments held
by the Company are cash and term deposit balances as shown above.

Year ended Year ended
30June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Financial liabilities

Amounts payable to subsidiaries 39.1 45.0
Other payables 2.1 0.1
41.2 451

Non-financial liabilities
Deferredincome and accruals 2.0 01
43.2 452

Amounts payable to subsidiaries comprise short-term borrowing from subsidiaries, repayable on demand. The fair values of amounts
owed to subsidiaries are equal to their carrying amounts.
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6.8 Notes to the company statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Profit for the year after tax 199.4 199.2
Adjustments for:

Income tax credit (1.1) -

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 198.3 199.2

Decreaseintrade receivables 13.5 30.5

(Decrease) / increase in trade payables (2.0) 12.6

Cash generated from operations 209.8 242.3

6.9 Share capital

Details of the Company's share capital are as set out in note 3.1to the consolidated financial statements.

The share premium account represents the difference between the issue price and the nominal value of shares issued and was unchanged

at £8,000 throughout the 2018 and 2019 financial years.

The capital redemption reserve relates to the repurchase and cancellation of the Company's own shares and was unchanged at £12,000

throughout the 2018 and 2019 financial years.

Details of the movements inretained earnings are set out in the parent company statement of changes in equity.

6.10 Related party transactions

The key management personnel of the Group and the Company are the same. The relevant disclosures are given in note 5.6 to the

consolidated financial statements. These are the only staff costs incurred by the Company in the year.

The Company has two employees (2018: two), being the Executive Directors.

The cost of providing share scheme benefits to the employees of the subsidiaries is not charged directly to the subsidiaries. Instead,

the Company provides a capital contribution toits subsidiaries in respect of these schemes.

The Company entered into the following transactions with subsidiaries and the Employee Benefit Trust, which are related parties.

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2019 30June 2018

£m £m

Dividends received from subsidiaries 204.0 199.0
Management charges to subsidiaries 0.7 07
Capital contribution to subsidiaries 7.9 9.6
Amounts owed by related parties at 30 June 26.6 39.9
Amounts owed to related parties at 30 June 39.1 45.0

Any amounts outstanding with related parties are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or receivedin
respect of amounts outstanding. No provisions have been made for doubtful debtsin respect of the amounts owed by the related parties.
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Section 6: Company financial statements
Notes to the Company financial statements

6.11 Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are showninnote 5.5 of the consolidated financial statements on page 130.

6.12 Financial risk management

Note 5.7 to the consolidated financial statements includes the Group's policy on capital management, its exposure to financial risks and
its policies and processes to manage those risks. There are financial instruments in the Company made up of amounts receivable from
subsidiaries and the Employee Benefit Trust and amounts payable to subsidiaries. The nature and extent of risks arising from these
financial instruments are as follows:

Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk, namely the risk that it may be unable to meet its payment obligations as they fall due.

The payment obligations primarily relate to amounts payable to subsidiaries which are more than offset by the amounts owed from
subsidiaries. In addition, the Company holds significant cash balances on short-term deposit to ensure that it has sufficient available
funds to meetits obligations and fund its operations.

At the end of the reporting period, none of the liabilities of the Company are past due or represent a significant long-term liability.

Creditrisk

Creditriskis the risk that a counterparty fails to perform its financial obligations, resulting in financial loss; however, the amounts owed to
the Company are primarily fromits own subsidiaries. Given the profitability and net assets of the majority of subsidiaries, credit risk is
considered minimal.

As per the wider Group, cash is held with UK licensed banks. The credit risk onliquid funds is minimised because the counterparties are
banks with strong credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The Group takes a conservative approach to treasury
management and selection of banking counterparties, and carries out regular reviews of all its banks' and custodians' credit ratings.

As atthe end of the reporting period, no financial assets were individually determined to be impaired. The balance of assets past due
isimmaterial.

The following table discloses the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk on financial assets.

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
£m £m
Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 22.5 15.2

Included within trade and other receivables:
Term deposits 215.0 207.0
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries and EBT 26.6 399
264.1 2621
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Five year summary
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m £m
Grossrevenue 480.5 447.6 385.7 388.3 395.1
Commission payable/loyalty bonus - (0.1) (0.1) (61.8) (100.9)
Net revenue! 480.5 447.5 385.6 326.5 294.2
Fair value gains on derivatives 2.2 2.3 2.2 0.0 0.0
Operating costs (179.4) (158.7) (126.7) (108.2) (96.1)
Operating profit 303.3 291.1 261.1 218.3 198.1
Finance income 2.8 15 1.2 0.6 10
Finance costs (0.3) (0.2) - - -
Other gains - - 35 - -
Profit before tax 305.8 292.4 265.8 218.9 199.1
Tax (58.2) (55.7) (53.8) (41.6) (41.8)
Profit after tax 247.6 236.7 212.0 177.3 157.3
Non-controllinginterests (0.2) (0.4) (0.3) (0.4) (0.6)
Profit for the financial year attributable
to owners of the parent company 2474 235.3 2117 176.9 156.7
Equity shareholders' funds 4576 404.0 306.9 2537 236.6
Weighted average number of shares for 475.76 475.41 474.73 474.72 473.72
the purposes of diluted EPS (million)
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
Equity dividends per share paid during year 40.2 30.5 34.8 335 32.3
Basic earnings per share 521 497 44.7 374 33.2
Diluted earnings per share 52.0 49.6 44.6 373 331

1 Following the implementation of the Retail Distribution Reviewin March 2014, the gross reported revenue was boosted by a new revenue stream and at the same time loyalty
bonuses paid to Vantage clients were significantly increased. In order to better compare revenue performance across the five years above, net revenue which s total revenue
less the commission payable andloyalty bonus has been shown.
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Glossary of alternative financial performance measures

Within the Report and Financial Statements various alternative financial performance measures are referred to, which are non-GAAP
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) measures. They are used in order to provide a better understanding of the performance
of the Group and the table below states those which have been used, how they have been calculated and why they have been used.

Measure

Calculation

Why we use this measure

Dividend pay-out ratio (%)

The total dividend per share divided by the
earnings per share (EPS) for a financial year.

Provides a measure of the level of profits
paid out to shareholders and the level
retainedin the business.

Dividend per share (pence per share)

Total dividend payable relatingto a
financial year divided by the total number
of shares eligible to receive a dividend.
Note ordinary shares held in the
Hargreaves Lansdown Employee Benefit
Trust have agreed to waive all dividends.

Dividend per shareis pertinent information
to shareholders and investors and provides
them with the ability to assess the dividend
yield of Hargreaves Lansdown plc shares.

Operating profit margin

Profits after deducting operating costs but
before the impact of finance income and
other gains or losses divided by revenue.

Provides a measure of profitability of the
core operating activities and excludes
non-core items.

Percentage of recurring revenue (%)

The total value of renewal commission
(after deductingloyalty bonuses), platform
fees, management fees andinterest
earned on client money divided by the total
revenue.

Provides a measure of the quality of

our earnings. We believe recurring
revenue provides greater profit resilience
and henceis of higher quality than
non-recurring revenue.

Revenue margin (bps)

Total revenue divided by the average value
of assets under administration which
includes the Portfolio Management
Services assets under management held
in funds on which a platform feeis charged.

Provides the most comparable means
of tracking, over time, the margin earned
onthe assets under administration and
is used by management to assess
business performance.

Revenue margin from cash (bps)

Revenue from cash (net interest earned on
the value of client money held on the
platform divided by the average value of
assets under administration held as client
money).

Provides a means of tracking, over time,
the margin earned on cash held by
our clients.

Revenue margin from funds (bps)

Revenue derived from funds held by clients
(platform fees, initial commission less
loyalty bonus) divided by the average value
of assets under administration held as
funds, which includes the Portfolio
Management Services assets under
management held in funds onwhich
aplatform feeis charged.

Provides the most comparable means
of tracking, over time, the margin earned
on funds held by our clients.

Revenue margin from HL Funds (bps)

Management fees derived from HL Funds
(but excluding the platform fee) divided
by the average value of assets held in the
HL Funds.

Provides a means of tracking, over time,
the margin earned on HL Funds.

Revenue margin from shares (bps)

Revenue from shares (stockbroking
commissions, management fees where
shares areheldina SIPP or ISA, less

the cost of dealing errors) divided by
the average value of assets under
administration held as shares.

Provides a means of tracking, over time,
the margin earned on shares held by
our clients.
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Measure

Calculation

Why we use this measure

Recurringrevenue

Revenue thatis received every month
depending on the value of assets held
onthe platform, including platform fees,
management fees and interest earned
on clientmoney.

We believe recurring revenue provides
greater profit resilience and henceis of

higher quality than non-recurring revenue.

Transactional revenue

Revenue thatis non-recurring in nature
and dependent on a clientinstruction
such as adealto buy or sell shares or
take advice.

Suchrevenue is not as high quality as
recurring revenue but helps to show the
diversification of our revenue streams.
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Glossary of terms

AGM Annual General Meeting

AIFMD Alternative Investment Fund
Managers Directive

AML AntiMoney Laundering

Assetretention rate Based on the monthly
lost AUA as a percentage of the opening
month's AUA and averaging for the year

AUA Assets Under Administration. This
is the value of all assets administered or
managed by Hargreaves Lansdown on
behalf ofits clients

AUM Assets Under Managementis the
value of all assets managed by Hargreaves
Lansdown Fund Managers

Basic EPS Basic earnings per share
BCP Business Continuity Plan

Board The Board of Directors of
Hargreaves Lansdown plc

CASS Client Assets Sourcebook

Client retention rate Based on the monthly
lost clients as a percentage of the opening
month's total clients and averaging for

the year

CODM Chief Operating Decision Maker
Company Hargreaves Lansdown plc

Corporate Schemes This related to
HL Workplace Solutions which allows
employers to offer the benefits of the
Hargreaves Lansdown Vantage service
to employees via the workplace

CRD IV Capital Requirements Directive IV
CRO Chief Risk Officer

CSDR Central Securities Depositories
Regulation

150

D2C Direct to Consumer
Diluted EPS Diluted earnings per share
DR Disaster Recovery

DTR The FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebook

DWP Department of Work and Pensions

EBT Employee Benefit Trust

FCA Financial Conduct Authority, regulator
of the UK financial services industry

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FSCS Financial Services Compensation
Scheme

FTE Full-time equivalent employees

FVTPL Fair value through profit or loss

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles

Group Hargreaves Lansdown plc and its
controlled entities

HL Hargreaves Lansdown

HMRC HM Revenue and Customs

IAS International Accounting Standards

ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process

IFRS International Financial Reporting
Standards

ISA Individual Savings Account

IT Information Technology

= Contents

KPIKey Performance Indicator

LISA Lifetime ISA

Listing Rules Regulations subject to
the oversight of the FCA applicable to
companies listed on a UK stock exchange

Loyalty bonus A reward to customers for
holding certain collective investments
within the Vantage wrapper. This is paid
onaregular basis as a percentage of
qualifying assets

LTIP Long-termincentive plan

Material Risk Takers persons identified as
meeting the criteria of "material riks takers"
as set outin the European Banking
Authority regulatory technical standard and
consequently subject to the requirements
of the Remuneration Code.

MiFID Il Markets in Financial Instruments
Directivelll

MLRO Money Laundering Reporting Officer

Multi-Manager funds A range of funds
offered by Hargreaves Lansdown which are
managed under the Fund of Funds format

Net new business (NNB) Represents
subscriptions, cash receipts, cash and stock
transfersinless cash withdrawals, cash and
stock transfers out

Net new clients Represents the net of new
clients less lost clients in the period

Number of new clients Unique number

of clients holding atleast one account (PMS,
ISA, SIPP or Fund and Share Account) with
avalue greater than £100 at the year end

NPS Net Promoter Score

Net revenue Total revenue less
commission paid, whichis primarily
the loyalty bonus paid to clients
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ONS Office for National Statistics

Organic growth Growthin assets under
administration can be attributed to two
main causes. The firstis growth due to the
appreciation in the value of existing assets
and the secondis organic growth through
additional contributions

Pillar 1and 2 capital requirements The
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
set out certain capital requirements which
must be met by qualifying financial
institutions

Pillar 3 A set of disclosure requirements
which enable the market to assess
information on a firm's risks, capital and
risk management procedures

Platforum The advisory and research
business specialising in investment
platforms which compiles the Direct
Platform Guide

PMS Portfolio Management Service

PSD2 The second Payment Services
Directive

RDR Retail Distribution Review

SAYE scheme Save As You Earn scheme
SIPP Self-invested Personal Pension

SMCR Senior Managers and Certification
Regime

SREP The FCA's supervisory review and
evaluation process

Treating clients fairly A central concept
tothe FCA's retail regulatory agenda, which
aims to ensure an efficient and effective
market and thereby help consumers
achieve afair deal

UCITS Undertakings for Collective
Investmentin Transferable Securities

UK Corporate Governance Code

A code published by the FRC which sets out
standards for best boardroom practice with
afocus on Board leadership and
effectiveness, remuneration, accountability
andrelations with shareholders

Vantage The Group's flagship service,
Vantage, is a direct-to-investor platform

W50 Wealth 50, whichis our selection of the
best funds available to UK investors

Year end/financial year Our financial year
starts on1July and ends on 30 June
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